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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K contains certain forwalabking statements within the meaning of Sectiol 2f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
amended, regarding, among other things, the aat®ipfinancial and operating results of the Compdioyr this purpose, forwarddoking
statements are any statements contained hereiarthaiot statements of historical fact and inclumé,are not limited to, those preceded k
that include the words, “estimate,” “could,” “shdyl “would,” “likely,” “may,” “will,” “plan,” “inte nd,” “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,”
“projected,” or similar expressions. Those statements are sutnjdmown and unknown risks, uncertainties anceofactors that could cat
the actual results to differ materially from thasmtemplated by the statements. The forward lookifigrmation is based on various fac
and was derived using numerous assumptions. Impoidators that could cause the Compangttual results to differ materially from th
projected, include, for example:

e general economic, market or business conditi

e the ability of the Company to generate sufficieales to generate operating profits, or to sell povslat a profit
e the ability of the Company to raise funds in thiufa through sales of securiti¢

e the ability of the Company to obtain commercialegtance of its products and servic

e the ability of the Company to compete with its catiprs to obtain market sha

e whether the Company’customers purchase or rent ePort devices ortbar products in the future at levels currentlyi@patec
by our Company, including our Jump Start Progr

e whether the Company’customers continue to operate or commence opgraRorts received under the Jump Start Progri
otherwise at levels currently anticipated by thenpany;

e whether the Company’s customers continue tozetilhe Compang’ transaction processing and related services,rasustome
agreements are generally cancelable by the customthirty to sixty day' notices;

e whether the recent significant increase in theraftange fees to be charged by Visa and Master@ardnfiall ticket debit ca
transactions would adversely affect our businesduding our revenues, gross profits, and antieigpdtiture connections to ¢
network;

e whether the Company would be able to pass aloritg frustomers the recent significant increase ferahange fees charged
Visa and MasterCard for small ticket debit carahsactions without those customers cancelling ttagitracts with us

e the ability of the Company to obtain sufficient flnthrough operations or otherwise to repay itst dddtigations, or to fun
development and marketing of its produ

e the ability of the Company to satisfy its tradeigations included in accounts payable and accriagdlities;

e the ability of the Company to predict or estimatefuture quarterly or annual revenues and expegises the developing a
unpredictable market for its products and the lafokstablished revenue

e the ability of the Company to retain key custonfessn whom a significant portion of its revenuesi&ived;
e the ability of a key customer to reduce or delagchasing products from the Company;

e as a result of the slowdown in the economy andiertightening of the capital and credit markets, @ustomers may modi
delay or cancel plans to purchase our productemices, and suppliers may increase their pricdae their output or char
their terms of sale

Although we believe that the expectations refledétethe forwardiooking statements are reasonable, we cannot giagrduture results, leve
of activity, performance, or achievements. Actuedults or business conditions may differ materiélgm those projected or suggeste:
forward-looking statements as a result of vari@addrs including, but not limited to, those desedlabove and in the “Risk Factosgction o
this Form 10K. We cannot assure you that we have identifiedhalfactors that create uncertainties. Moreovew risks emerge from time
time and it is not possible for our managementrealist all risks, nor can we assess the impactl oisks on our business or the extent to w
any risk, or combination of risks, may cause actaallts to differ from those contained in any farddooking statements. Readers shoulc
place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.

Any forward-looking statement made by us in thigrkdlO-K speaks only as of the date of this FormK1QJnless required by law, \
undertake no obligation to publicly revise any fardrlooking statement to reflect circumstancesventés after the date of this Form KOar tc
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.






USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
PART |
Item 1. Business.
OVERVIEW

We are a provider of technology-enabled solutidwas facilitate electronic payment transactions ealde-added services within the unatten
Point of Sale (“POS"market and a leading provider in the small ticketyerage and food vending industry. Since our flugnéh 1992, w
have designed and marketed systems and solutiah$attilitate electronic payment options, as wellttae ability to remotely monitor, cont
and report on the results of distributed assetsh sas vending machines, kiosks, personal computenstocopiers, and launc
equipment. Historically, these distributed assetgehrelied on cash for payment in the form of cainbills, whereas, our systems allow thel
accept cashless payments such as through the aseredit card. We derive revenues from the salesd and rental of our POS terminals,
license and/or service fees and transaction feewmsialled POS terminals. As of June 30, 2011, Geenpany had approximately 119,
devices connected to its netwoilhe Company counts its ePort connections upon shipof an active terminal to a customer under ean
at which time activation on its network is perfodnigy the Company, and the terminal is capable ofiooting business via the Compa
network and related services. An ePort connedtioes not necessarily mean that the unit is actuaditalled by the customer on a venc
machine, or that the unit has begun processingawions, or that the Company has begun receiviogthty service fees in connection w
the unit. At the time of shipment of the ePort, tiustomer becomes obligated to pay the time-activation fee, and is obligated to pay moy
service fees in accordance with the terms of tretocoer's contract with the Company. Durithg year ended June 30, 2011, the Com
processed approximately 72 million cashless traime totaling approximately $120 million, repreBeg a 95% increase in transaci
volume and a 76% increase in dollars processed fhen87 million cashless transactions totaling dd&8 million in the previous fiscal ye
ended June 30, 201Pursuant to its agreements with customers, the @ognparns transaction processing fees equal tocemage of tt
dollar volume processed by the Company, whichrekided as licensing and transaction processingnugs in its Consolidated Statemen
Operations. The Comparg/transaction processing volume is not indicativéhe gross profit from license and transactiorsfedich is base
upon the monthly service fees and transaction gsicg fees paid to us by our customers.

Our solutions consist predominately of POS eledtrpayment devices, proprietary operating systeradified payment software and repor
and communication capabilities. Our solutions drke # process traditional magnetic stripe credd debit cards, contactless credit and «
cards, as well as near-field communication (“NFE&juipped mobile phones where consumers could mekmgnts with their cell phones. (
proprietary POS solutions enable electronic micagrpents at unattended POS locations.

Our customers primarily consist of beverage and feending machine owners and operators; commdetialdry operators servicing collec
universities and multiamily housing; brand marketers wishing to provildeir products or services via kiosks or vendinghirges; equipme
manufacturers that would like to incorporate ourvmeked devices (e.g., remote monitoring, reporting control as well as cashless paym
into their products; and business center operatangh include hotels and audio visual companid®e functionality of our solutions incluc
the flexibility to execute a variety of payment &pations on a single system, transaction secudbnnectivity options, compliance w
certification standards, and centralized, accuratd;time sales and inventory data to manageilois&d assets.

The Company also manufactures and sells energy gearent products which reduce the electrical powasemption of equipment, such
refrigerated vending machines and glass front esptus reducing the electrical energy costs &ssatwith operating this equipment.
derive equipment revenues from our energy managepneducts through the sale of the product.

We have a nineteen year history in our industmecamgnized brand name, value proposition for ostamers, and reputation of innovatiol
our product and services. We believe that the farggpositions us to capitalize on industry trends.

THE INDUSTRY

We operate in the small ticket electronic paymémdsistry and more specifically the unattended PQ@8ket. Our solutions facilitate electro
payments in industries that have traditionallye@lion cash transactions. In addition, our solutjprmvide electronic monitoring and onl
reporting for distributed assets. We believe tH¥ang industry trends will drive growth in demaffar electronic payment systems in gen
and more specifically within the markets we serve:

[ the shift toward electronic payment transactiorss amay from cash and checl
| the increase in both consumer and merchant/opatatoand for electronic transaction functionalitygl
[ improving POS technology and NFC equipped mobilenghpayment technolog



Shift toward electronic payment transactions and away from cash and checks

There has been a shift away from paper-based meihfodayment, including cash and checks, towarestrlnichased methods of payme
While consumers continue to use checks and caphytdor goods and services, there is a migratiovatds the use of catoased payment
purchase items. According to The Nilson Reportewsand research publication on consumer paymetgrsg, electronic payment transac
volume surpassed papeased transaction volume for the first time in 20€@ntinuing the trend of migration of consumemngactions fror
paper-based to electronic payments. According éoDecember 2009 Nilson Report, the four card-baystems—eredit, debit, prepaid, a
electronic benefits transfergenerated $3.59 trillion in the United States i@20The number of payment transactions using ceedis, deb
cards, prepaid cards, and EBT cards totaled 66llfdnbin 2008—up 6.7% from 2007. By 2013, cardsed purchases are projected to r
nearly $4.5 trillion, with over 89 billion trans@ats projected for this same period.

Consumer Payment Systems
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Increase in Consumer and Merchant/Operator Demand for Electronic Payments

Increase in Consumer Dema. The unattended, vending and kiosk POS marketisasrically been dominated by cash purchases. WHen
oftentimes, cash purchases at unattended POSdosatepresent a cumbersome transaction for theuomrsbecause they do not have
correct monetary value (paper or coin), or the oorer does not have the ability to convert theishiito coins. We believe electronic payn
system providers such as USA Technologies thahteet consumerglemand within the unattended market will be ableffer retailers, cai
associations, card issuers and payment processoftsuginess owners an expanding value proposititred?OS.

Increase in Merchant/Operator Dema. Increasingly, merchants and operators of unati@mmayment locations (e.g., vending machines
wash, tabletop games, etc.) are utilizing electrgraiyment alternatives. Several of the Compsuay'stomers have been able to drive incre
revenue of their distributed assets through thjgaeded market opportunity. Furthermore, owners lireonstrated the ability to increase
price of their goods with little to no decline rmbsaction volume. In addition, electronic paynmmrgtems provide merchants and operators rea
time sales and inventory data utilized for backeeffreporting and forecasting, helping them to ngantheir business.

Increase in Demand for Networked Ass. M2M technology includes capturing value from véiss modules and electronic devices to imp
business productivity and customer service. Then té#2M describes any kind of ®ay communication system between geographi
distributed devices through a centrally managethsoé application without human intervention. Aatiog to M2M Magazine (s it Touching
Our Everyday Lives?”, M2M, November 18, 2008), thare over 50 billion machines capable of beingvagted.

Networked assets provide improved internal busingssesses such as energy management systems ecagfabbllecting diagnost
information and communicating with the operasohost information system to optimize energy cornsion. Networked assets also have
ability to remotely monitor merchandise to maximigaes and track inventory in rdahe. In addition, networked assets provide vale
information regarding consumergurchasing patterns and payment preferences apwperators to more effectively reach and se
consumers. Networked assets allow information tadsgralized and reported in electronic format éinglthe data to be more accurately
thoroughly analyzed and digitally presented andlabk online. According to the M2M Magazine artictited above, the networked a
industry is in its nascency, and electronic sohlutproviders that can provide interconnectivity betw distributed assets offer consun
retailers, machine operators and manufacturerspaneled value proposition by optimizing the captied of a distributed asset.



POS Technology and NFC Equipped Mobile Phone Payment | mprovements

Advances in Computir. History has shown that advances in microprocgssiohnology, storage capacity and software arbleggincreasin
complexity and functionality of electronic paymaystems at unattended POS locations. Such advareespanding the range of services
functionality offered by electronic payment systemnsluding credit and debit, prepaid cards, gédtds and loyalty card programs, electr
bill payment and electronic check truncation. ldiiidn, advances in technology, computing and tientunications over the past decade
reduced the cost of production and operations afensophisticated electronic payment systems, tigerethucing the barrier of adoption
merchants and operators.

Card Innovation at the POSRecent industry developments such as the emezgeéFC or contactless equipped mobile phone payimave
resulted in the POS becoming an important aredffgrentiation for card associations, card isswerd payment processors. As the marke
issuing credit cards has become more saturatdteitliS., card associations and card issuers dezaifiating their brands by expanding t
offerings. Payment processors are also differéntjghemselves by expanding their offerings astfbemd authorization and badnd clearin
and settlement have become more commoditized. &ssdciations, card issuers and payment processodiferentiating their offerings,
part, by offering valuedded applications and incorporating innovativehtedogies including contactless / NFC equipped meophoni
payment technology.

Payment Terminal Innovations at the P.. NFC and mobile payments are projected to contomen upward trajectory, with 65% of tc
tablets and smartphones equipped with NFC paymegrdhilities and as many as 800 million consumeth NFC-enabled handsets by 2(
(Goldman Sachs Equity Research Report, June 9,)20his same report cites that Google believes thete are approximately 300,(
existing POS terminals worldwide that are compatiith the Google Wallet, with about 120,000 ofgldn the US. With approximat:
50,000 NFC and mobile payments ready ePorts shippexalr customers, we believe that the continuedeise in consumer preferer
towards contactless payments may represent aisigmifgrowth opportunity for the Company.

SPECIFIC MARKETS WE SERVE

Our current customers are primarily in the sgfve, small ticket retail markets including begerand food vending and kiosk, comme!
laundry, car wash, amusement and gaming, and affifiee. While these industry sectors represeny ardmall fraction of our total marl
potential, as depicted below, these are the arbasemve have gained the most traction. In additiolpeing our primary markets, these se«
serve as a proof-of-concept for other unattende8 PQustry applications.

: Vending
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Vending.According to Vending Times2010 Census of the Industry, annual U.S. salefiénvending industry sector were estimated t
approximately $43 billion. The market segment caraidressed by our endgad solution consisting primarily of vended produettailing fo
$1.00 or greater. According to this census, thairgnindustry experienced a 6% decline in 2010w&009, due in large part to the down
in the economy and the decrease in serviceabléidosasuchas manufacturing plants, but the contraction ofudingprompted operators to la
for additional ways to make up revenue. AccordingAutomatic Merchandiser State of the Industry Re@011, operators increased tl
investment in technology to improve business adfficies and increase margins. Among these techymofogstments, 3.5% of operat
surveyed indicated that they had invested in cashp@ayments system while 1.7% indicated they hstdlled a remote monitoring system. V
the continued shift to electronic payments andatieancement in mobile and POS technology, we keelibe traditional beverage and fi
vending industry will continue to look to cashlgsg/ments systems to increase sales and marginsedmdrowth.

Kiosk. According to IHL Consulting Group Market Studytelé July 1, 2010, approximately $678 billion weensacted through selfservice

kiosks in 2009, which represents an increase df9rém the previous year. Furthermore, IHL projetizst spending at seffervice kiosks wi
grow approximately 10% during 2010 and that demfandelf-service kiosks should push sales at these termioaiser $1 trillion by 201
Kiosks are becoming increasingly popular as selfise “specialty” shops within larger retail envinments. Valueadded services, such
photo enlargement and custom imaging are a prormhaample, located within many major retailers.mMarchants continue to seek new w
to reach their customers outside of retail locatiamd mobile and electronic payment technology nthise expansion more plausible,
believe electronic payment system providers whosganice the payment needs of kiatkven transactions will be able to offer retailerarc
associations, card issuers and payment processegpanding value proposition at the POS.

In 2008/2009, Single Cup/Office Coffee Service (‘&L sales posted a five percentage point decliom fthe prior 12nonth period, markir
the first setback since 2003/2004. OCS revenuesetht$3.73 billion in 2009/2010, according to tid@ Automatic Merchandiser State of
Coffee Service Industry Report, September 2010.0Ating to this same publication, theydar gain from 2003/2004 to 2007/2008 was
longest consistent growth trend in the industrlyistory, driven by higher pricing and investminbetter quality products and equipment,
the decline in sales was a direct result of demfjnworksite populations and employer cost cuttiAgcording to the National Coffi
Associations 2008 National Coffee Drinking Trends survey, 20@& the first year that daily coffee consumptiomag adults surpassed ¢
drink consumption. The 2011 study listed 40% ef 1824 year olds who responded as drinking coffee dajyfrom 31% in 2010 with a to
of 58% of the population surveyed saying they draaffee in the past day, up from 56% in 2010 buwil@®0% in 2009. In October 20t
entered into a three year contract with Starbucksyant to which Starbucks will offer coffee in tteaded kiosk locations using the ePor8G-
cashless payment system. As of the date herewé #re a couple of hundred ePort devices beingygleglin unattended kiosks pursuant to
agreement.

Commercial Laundry According to a 2010 Report on Dry Cleaning andridry Services published by Anything Researchctireent size ¢
the laundry services market is $22.4 billion, alidaugh the industry experienced a revenue dedir&% in 2009 compared to 2008, long t
forecasts for the industry project positive growthe Dry Cleaning and Laundry Facilities Industmpfite published by First Research de
July 11, 2011, states that the laundry serviceastg includes about 30,000 companies with combigr@aual revenue of approximately :
billion. Major companies include Coinmach Servib&YCLEAN USA, MacGray, and Martin Franchises. The industry inclualesut 20,00
companies that provide retail laundry and dry dleguservices, and 10,000 that provide servicesutiiinacoin-operated laundromats. The coin-
laundry segment is fragmented: the 50 largest figmserate about 40% of revenue. This segment obtiseess is made up of both coin-
operated laundries and coin-operated machines ddcat multifamily housing developments such as apartmentsdaomiums an
universities. The Coin Laundry Association’s websivww.coinlaundry.org, points out that €oin laundries thrive in periods of both gro
and recession. During periods of recession, whemehownership decreases, the selfvice laundry market expands as more peopleraiel¢

to afford to repair, replace or purchase new washed dryers, or as they move to apartment howgithginadequate or nonexistent laun
facilities.” The selfservice laundry market consists of an estimateshgmy customer base of approximately 96 million pedying in renta
housing, as of the 2010 U.S. Census. A secondatpmier base consists of the over 2 million resideilege and university students in the
(U.S. Census Bureau, 2004). We reach our targetghprimarily via the seven largest laundry opamato the US.

Business Centel. According to the American Hotel & Lodging Assaaiam, the hotel and lodging industry was a nead@45billion industr
with approximately 47,000 hotels in the United 8saand 300,000 worldwide in 2008. With the incrdaglebalization of our economies ¢
the increased need for travel for both personaltarsiness reasons, there remains a demand foendatt business center availability in ho
with ever-greater percentages of travelers neealitgexpecting use of computers, printers, fax nmeshicopiers, and other business services.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
We believe that we benefit from a number of advgesdagained through our nineteen year history inrmaustry. They include:

Trusted Brand Namd&.he USA Technologies brand has a strong nationaltation for quality, reliability and innovation. &\believe that ca
associations, payment processors and merchantatopeitrust our system solutions to handle findnitensactions in a secure opera
environment. Our trusted brand name is best exéiegblthrough several onsay exclusive relationships, each averaging threarsy i
duration, which we have solidified with severald&gy organizations within the unattended POS ingustcluding Merit/AMI Entertainmel
and Air-Serv.



Large Installed BaseWe have a large installed base of unattended P&&@hic payment systems. As of June 30, 20&1had approximate
119,000 connections to our network. Our technolpgyides POS payment solutions as well as tigad- POS and diagnostic data to
customers. Our customers maintain both the payrselotion as well as the retilne data with one provider rather than through tipig
providers. Our installed base supports our saldsaarketing infrastructure by enhancing our abil@yestablish or expand our market posit
Finally, our installed base provides several opputies for referrals for new business, either frdra merchant or operator of the deplc
asset or through one of our several strategicioelstips.

Attractive Value Proposition for Our Custome. We believe that our solutions provide our custaren attractive value proposition. (
solutions make possible increased purchases byuowmrs who in the past were limited to the phystadh value on hand while makin
purchase at an unattended terminal. Rather thaolsé&ar coins or dollar bills to feed a vending ime, customers have the option of pa
by card. We believe our solutions make possibleeimsed convenience and a broader universe of ptenstomers -those with cash
electronic forms of payment. Furthermore, the aafsour solution continues to decrease making it eneconomically attractive for
customers to install our devices in their machi@ag. historical data demonstrates that approxima®€% of all of the transactions
traditional beverage and food vending machineging our ePor® terminals consist of credit/debit card transactions

Large and Increasing ScalDuring the year ended June 30, 2011, we generatid ltcensing and processing fees of $16.4 mil
successfully processed approximately 72 milliomgections accounting for more than $120 milliopimchases and, as of June 30, 2011
approximately 119,000 connections to our network. Mglieve that our scale and footprint enable usddket and distribute our products nr
effectively and in more markets than most of ounpetitors, and to provide our customers with inniwea comprehensive and reliable sys
solutions.

Leading Research and DevelopmtOur research and development initiatives focusduting features and functionality to our system sohs
through the development and utilization of our gsxing and reporting network and new technologyeive began operations in 1992,
have been granted 81 patents and currently haygateht applications pending. We have developedviatnge and reliable unattended F
electronic payment devices and solutions over #st gpeveral years. For example, our most recehtesssvending solution, the ePort EDGE
was made available for sale to our customers dutiedourth quarter of the 2009 fiscal year. OuoB-8 is an integrated orpece desigi
combining the cardeader and processor while enabling magnetic seape transactions and NFC equipped mobile phonmpat; and is 65
smaller than our previous G-7 model.

NFC ReadyUSA TechnologiesePort G series and ePort Connect service wouldbaerel process NFC and/or mobile payments at the pt
sale. The Company partnered with Visa, MasterCaddathers for a significant rollout of these degiceesulting in approximately 50,000 N
and mobile-ready ePort devices shipped to our ousts. The Company continues to connect its cui@séeries model, the ePort G8 to
network, putting it in a position to benefit fromyagrowth in consumer adoption of these paymenhous.

One-Stop Shop, End-to-End Solutigve believe that our ability to bundle the servizesuded in our cashless payment solution, as asthi
ability to tailor them to individual customer needsakes it easy and efficient for our customeradopt and deploy our technology, and re:
in a service unmatched in the small ticket selfvice retail vending market today. Other cashpEssnent solutions available in the ma
today require the operator to set up their own ant® for cashless processing, manage multiple sepioviders (i.e. hardware termi
manufacturer, wireless network provider and credid processor), as well as to implement their oashless systems. Our solution prov
all of the following, under one cohesive servicehuetia;

) A broad product line of devices or software, cadirsigof the ePort G8 which can accept multiple ferofi cashless payme
from swipe and contactless and the 2010 Nationabiatic Merchandising Association (“NAMA”) -Innovah-Award-
winning ePort EDGE

° Unique payment programs such as our JumpStart eaginly programs, which help operators acquire Bagtenardwar
without an uf-front capital investmen

° Our comprehensive e-to-end ePort Connect cashless payment service whahd@s merchant account -up, wireles
activation, merchant services, o-the-air updates, and 24x7 customer service and sug

° Business deployment planning services to help éoperasuccessfully deploy cashless payment syst&ims. program i
based on extensive market data, which helps gyideators to the locations where cashless vendirghimes would be mc
successful



OUR GROWTH OPPORTUNITY

Our objective is to enhance our position as a headirovider of technology that enables electroragrpent transactions and valaddet
services at small-ticket, sedkrvice, retail locations such as traditional bagerand food vending, kiosks and commercial lauriting ke’
elements of our strategy are to:

Leverage Existing Customers/PartneWe have a solid base of key customers across reuttiprkets (vending, kiosk, etc.) that have depd
our solutions. We have worked to build these refethips, drive future deployments, and develop ceniied network interfaces. C
customers have seen the benefits of our produatssarvices firsttand and represent the largest opportunity to soatesolution. Thes
customers are a key component of our plan to draes.

Expand Distribution in Core MarketWe have worked to develop a strong market presinitee vending and energy markets. Increasing
and distribution to our largest customers is imgotrto the longerm success of the Company, but we are intentlysed on building a broac
base of customers within these core markets toedong term revenue and value. Our efforts in tieigard have led to the addition
approximately 900 new customers during the fisealry2011.

Further Penetrate Attractive Adjacent MarkeWe plan to continue to increase the functionalitpar system solutions to address the spe
needs of various markets. We currently focus orifipesegments of unattended POS markets, inclutigdjtional beverage and food vend
kiosk, commercial laundry and business center itngdisgctors. We believe we have the ability to pete a much larger addressable mark
selling or licensing our technologies to equipmerakers of everyday devices such as toll booths,itiflation and vacuum equipment,
washes and countless other devices. Using wiretbamdreless networks and centralized, sefvased software applications, managers
remotely monitor, control, and optimize a network devices regardless of where they are locatedvbiéed devices enable cash
transactions, sales analysis, remote monitoring,cgmimized machine maintenance.

New Product InnovatiorWe are a leading innovator of technology that eemklectronic payment transactions and valdéed services at 1
unattended POS locations. We will continue enhanoiar solutions in order to satisfy our customard the endsonsumers relying on ¢
products at the POS locations. Our product innowateam enhances the design, size, and speedadfrdasmission, as well as security
compatibility with other electronic payment solutiproviders’technologies. We believe our continued product vation will lead to furthe
adoption in the unattended POS payments markeexample, our newer ePort &Y solution is 65% smaller than our previous modet] th
current retail cost of the ePort EDGE™ is $199¢mvice.

Leverage Intellectual Properi. We have been granted 81 patents which assedugaclaims, including claims relating to unattengegmer
processing, networking and energy management deviceaddition, we own numerous trademarks, copysigdesign rights and trade sec
We will continue to leverage this intellectual peoty to add value for customers, attain an increéatgre of the market, address compel
and attempt to generate licensing revenues.

Capitalize on High Growth Opportunities in Interiatal Markets. We are currently focused on the U.S. and Canaatarket for our ePc
devices and related network but may seek to establipresence in emerging, high growth electroaioment markets in Europe, Asia
Latin America. In order to do so, we would havereest in additional sales and marketing and reteand development resources targ
towards these regions. Our energy management delv@e been shipped to customers located in the OaBada, Mexico, United Kingdo
Germany, France, Japan, Australia, and the Philgpi

Capitalize on the growing NFC and mobile paymergads.NFC and mobile payments are projected to contimuaroupward trajectory, wi
65% of total tablets and smartphones equipped NREC payment capabilities and as many as 800 milionsumers with NF@nable:
handsets by 2014 (Goldman Sachs Equity ResearclorRelune 9, 2011). This same report cites thatgodbelieves that there
approximately 300,000 existing POS terminals woitthsthat are compatible with the Google Wallet,hwabout 120,000 of those in the U
With approximately 50,000 NFC and mobile paymeetsly ePorts shipped to our customers, the Compaligvbs that the continued incre
in consumer preferences towards contactless pagmemitesents a significant growth opportunity fa €Company.

OUR PRODUCTS

Our products are available in several distinctivadmar configurations, offering our customers flekiy to install a POS solution that best
their needs and customer demands.

Intelligent Vendin¢™ and Kiosk. As of June 30, 2011, we have approximately 11®g®ort® and other cashless devices that are connec
our ePort Conned® solution for the vending and kiosks industries. ®Bort Conned® solution for the vending and kiosk industries ere
cashless payments at unattended POS machines.@dorect® is an end-teend suite of cashless payment and telemetry sarficehe se
service retail industries.

The Company counts its ePort connections upon ghipmof an active terminal to a customer under emtrat which time activation on
network is performed by the Company, and the tealri;icapable of conducting business via the Compametwork and related services.
ePort connection does not necessarily mean thaitrthiés actually installed by the customer on adiag machine, or that the unit has be
processing transactions, or that the Company hgsrbeeceiving monthly service fees in connectiothwiie unit. At the time of shipment
the ePort, the customer becomes obligated to pagriktime activation fee, and is obligated to pay mong#rvice fees in accordance with
terms of the customer's contract with the Company.






Intelligent Vending™ Our latest improvement to Intelligent Vending™ isr @Port® G-8, which provides the same benefitthasG7, plus
important new features at a lower price. The G-Bitgmn is 65% smaller than the G-7 and combitreslitional magnetic strip and NI
equipped mobile phone payment capabilities. In teatdi our ePort Edge™ product became availableséde to customers during the fol
quarter of the 2009 fiscal year. The ePort Edge™ amepiece design and is intended for those in the vendidustry who want a magne
swipe-only cashless system at a current retaiepfc199 per device.

Kiosk. We provide an ePo® solution that utilizes our ePa& or software client, USALiv® , and our comprehensive technology suppor
customer service to offer an electronic paymenioopand web-based remote monitoring and managefoerdll kiosk types. Our ePo®
solution enables kiosks to sell an increased waétitems and at a higher price point as compdoedashenly kiosks as consumers
typically limited to the amount of available casiHoand. Kiosks permit a host of new services tohrexavailable at the point-oiemand, suc
as Sony’s self-service and Picture Station kiosksere consumers can produce prints from their oigitadl media. In addition, our ePog&
solution powers the POS solutions for unattendediproviders such as Merit Megatouch, Fantasyddoatth and AlRserv. In October 20(
Starbucks chose our eP@tmobile solution to deliver their product to custamthrough coffee kiosks.

eSuds™. eSuds™ is our solution developed for the comimakl@undry industry. eSuds™ offers amngil alert system to notify users regarc
machine availability, cycle completion, and otheter#s and supports a variety of valdded services such as custom advertisir
subscription-based payments.

Our eSuds™ system enables laundry operators tader@ustomers cashless transactions via the ugeeinfcredit cards, debit cards and o
payment mediums such as student IDs. In additioneSuds™ service reduces operational costs thratiligration of our remote monitorit
technology, thereby maximizing the scheduling alviee visits and increasing machine time. The system increases customer satisfe
through improved maintenance, higher machine abitiths specialized services (i.e.,meail alerts to indicate that laundry cycle is fimégl) an
the convenience of non-cash transactions.

Installations of our eSuds™ product have been cetaglat 56 college and universities and are satvaceapproximately 7,600 washer
dryer machines. For example, installations of dBuds™ product have been completed at Carnegie Meéllaversity, Rutgers Universit
Case Western Reserve, Johns Hopkins University,plerdniversity and others. We are working with tese and distributors, such
Caldwell & Gregory, to install eSuds™ at other egks and universities. The Company also has amrese the multi-familyhousing laundr
market through its relationship with CoinMach, arfiwhich has indicated that it operates approxitye8®0,000 laundry machines in Na
America.

As of June 30, 2011, we had 830 eSuds™ room cdesaervicing approximately 7,600 washer and dmgachines. We count an eSuds
connection upon actual installation of our devioeaovasher or dryer or room controller.

BusinessExpress®.We originally developed Business Express® to previlfservice business center solutions to the Hotel ldotel
industry. With the introduction of the ePort® SDKdaePort® Transact®ur target market has expanded to include primércopier deale
and manufacturers. The Business Express® solutidndes the ePort® SDK for computer-based transestsuch as a Public PCa@nd th
ePort® Transact®which enables printers and copiers to accept credit debit cards for payment. These products aupled with ou
customer service support and ePort Connect® badksgstem for payment processing and other valuegddrvices.

ePort® Transact®, which became available in Mar@hQ? is the latest version of our original paymeahnology system developed for self-
service business center devices such as printére@y machines. It is a cashless-transactiombling terminal that permits customers to
office equipment with a swipe of their credit otbiétecard. The ePort® Transact® can be sold asralstione device to hotel, motel and of
locations with business center needs, or to priatet copier dealers and manufacturers to be salldeio customers with the cashless of
already installed.

As of June 30, 2011, we have several hundred BssiBgpress® units installed nationwide with sevefahe major hotel chains.

Energy Management Produc. Our Company offers energy conservation produtEndrgy Misers”® ) that reduce the electrical pov
consumption of various types of existing equipmexugh as vending machines, glass front coolers adher “always-on”appliances k
allowing the equipment to selectively operate ipaaver saving mode when the full power mode is rettessary. Each of the Company’
Energy Miser® products utilizes occupancy sensing technologyeterthine when the surrounding area is vacant ouped. The Ener¢
Miser ® then utilizes occupancy data, room and product &atpres, and an energy saving algorithm to sgkdgtcontrol certain higlkenerg,
components (e.g. compressor and fan) to realizetriglal power savings over the lotgrm use of the equipment. Customers of
VendingMiser® product benefit from reduced energy consumptioris¢catepending on regional energy costs, machine, gpd utilization ¢
the machine. Our Energy Misegsalso reduce the overall stress loads on the equiprhelping to reduce associated maintenance costs.
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The Energy Mise® family of energy-control devices includes:
VendingMiser®- installs in a cold drink vending machine and ihkithe electrical power consumption of the vendiaghine.
CoolerMiser™:- reduces the electrical energy used by slidinggta pull open glass-front coolers that contain-perishable goods.

VM2IQ® and CM2IQ®- the second generation of the VendingMi@and CoolerMiser™ devices that is installed diredtlgide th
machine and has the capability to control the cgodiystem and the advertising lights separately.

SnackMiser® reduces the amount of electricity used by norigefated snack vending machines.

PlugMiser™ - reduces the amount of electricity used by all typéplug loads including those found in personalnoodular office
(printers, personal heaters, and radios), videadergames, and more.

We do not consider our energy management prodsatsranections to our network.

OUR SERVICES

Through ePort Conne@® , we offer end-to-end services to support our e@evtces and ePort SDK.

The ePort Conne@® service includes card payment and processing ssnand M2M operational data such as:

Card Processing ServicesThrough our existing relationships with card mssors and card associations, we provide mercltaouat an
terminal ID set up, pre-negotiated discounted faesmall ticket purchases and direct electronid$utiansfers EFTs to our custonseban|
account for all settled card transactions as we#rassure compliance with current processing reiguisit

Wireless ConnectivityWWe manage the wireless SIM account activation ritligion, and the relationship with wireless praasigl for ou
customers.

Customer/Consumer Service®Ve support our installed base by providinghdr help desk support, repairs, and replacemeirnpéirec
system solutions. In addition, as the merchaneobrd on all transactions, all inbound billing iirigs are handled through a Béur help des
thereby eliminating the need for merchants andaipes to be bothered with customer billing inqudrésd potential chargebacks.

Online Sales Reporting and Remote Manageméiffective remote management is essential to efisttive deployment, maintenance ¢
management of unattended POS locations. Via thelll&”online reporting system, we provide reportofgecredit and cash transactions, |
configuration, reporting by machine and region,dage range and transaction type, data reportsgerations and finance, graphical repor
for sales and to customers, and condition monigofiim equipment service as well as activation of mlevices and location redeployments.

Over-the-Air Update Capabilitiegsutomatic over-theair updates to software, settings, and securityopod from our network to our ePort ¢
reader keep our customers’ hardware upldte and enable customers to benefit from any advaent made after their hardware or soft
purchase.

We enter into a processing and licensing agreenoem@Port Connect Services Agreement, with ourarnsts pursuant to which we act as
exclusive provider of cashless financial servicgsiie customes distributed asset, and the customer agrees tagag activation fee, montl
service fees, and transaction processing feesa@reements are generally cancelable by the custopoer thirty to sixty days notice to us.

OUR TECHNOLOGY-BASED SOLUTION

We believe that our ability to bundle our produatsl services, as well as the ability to tailor thenndividual customer needs, makes it ¢
and efficient for our customers to adopt and deploy technology, and results in a service unmatéhdtle vending market today. This one-
stop-shop solution includes the ePort Con@a&nd-toend payment and processing services and our cagbdgsnent device or software
distributed assets such as vending machines, kiteksdry equipment, car wash, amusement and garffige coffee and other smaltket,
self-service industries.

The Client. The Company offers its customers several diffed®@vices or software to connect their distributsdets. These range fr
software to hardware devices consisting of conrmdrds, magnetic strip card readers, and NFC resadére devices or software can
embedded inside the host equipment, such as eP#trtsBftware residing in the central processing i Kiosk or tablegep game; it can |
integrated as part of the host equipment, suchuagPort® G8 or EDGE hardware that can be attached to the afom vending machine, a
payment hub in a self service car wash; or it caa peripheral, stand-alone terminal, such as DransAct® terminal for Copier Express.

ePort® is the Company’s core device, which is currentlingeutilized in vending and commercial laundry aggtions. Our ePor® produc
facilitates cashless payments by capturing the paymedia and transmitting the information to oetwork for authorization with the paym:
system (e.g. credit card processors). Additionpbbdities of our ePo® consist of control/access management by authorigeds, collectic
of audit information (e.g. product or service saldte and time of sale and sales amount), diagnivdtrmation of the host equipment,
transmission of this data back to our network febvbased reporting.

ePort TransAc® is the latest version of the Compi's original cashless, transaci-enabling device developed for ¢service business cen



equipment such as PCs, fax machines and copiendaSio the ePo® , the ePort TransA@ capabilities include control/access manager
collection of sales data (e.g. date and time df,ssdles amount and product or service purchaaad)tfransmission back to our network
reporting to customers.
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The Connectivity MediumgOur solutions are interconnected for the transfeyur customers’ data through our USAL®enetwork, providini
multiple connectivity options such as phone lintneenet or wireless. Increasing wireless connegtigptions, coverage and reliability hi
allowed us to service a greater number of custdoeations. Additionally, we make it easy for ourstamers to deploy wireless solutions
acting as a single point of contact. We have cotgchwith Verizon Wireless and AT&T in the Uniteth&s and Rogers Wireless in Cana
order to supply our customers with wireless netwamkerage.

The Network. Our USALive ® network is responsible for transmitting paymenbinfation from our terminals for processing as vee
transmitting sales and diagnostic data for stoeagkreporting to our customers. Also, the netwtitiugh servebased software applicatio
provides remote management information and enalglesol of the networked devicefunctionality. Through our network we have thdigt
to upload software and update devices remotelylgrabs to manage the devices (e.g., change prbfonotionality, software upgrades, ¢
change terminal display messages).

USALive ® is the enabler of turnkey cashless payment praogdsr our customers. The network is certified wsveral cashless paym
systems, such as credit card processors and pyopariagement systems, facilitating the authoripatiod settlement of credit cards, d
cards, hotel room keys and student identificatiards. The network also has the capability to adisa®vn payment processing system for ¢
cashless payment media, such adim@stored value or employee payroll deductiore Tietwork authorizes transactions, occurring aththe
equipment, with the appropriate payment systemsamdls approval or decline responses back to theorietd device to allow or terminate
transaction for the purchase of the product oriserMhe network consolidates successfully appravadsactions from multiple devic
batches, and then transmits these batched tramisatt the payment system for settlement.

Data Security Visa has listed the Company as a PCI DSS Comp8antice Provider in the North American region azsult of validatio
conducted by a third party as of January 1, 201He TUSAT listing on Visa list of compliant companies can be found onlirt
http://usa.visa.com/download/merchants/dispof-pcidsscompliantserviceproviders.pdf

SALES AND MARKETING

The Companys sales strategy includes both direct sales andnethadevelopment, depending on the particular dyosrof each of ot
markets. Our marketing strategy is diversified amudes media relations, direct mail, confererexead client referrals. As of August 31, 2C
the Company was marketing and selling its prodthetsugh its full time staff consisting of eleveropée.

Direct Sales

We sell directly to the major operators in eacloof target markets. Each of our target marketoimidated by a handful of large compar
and these companies comprise our primary custorase.bn the small ticket beverage and food vendiector, approximately ten lai
operators dominate the sector; in the commerciaidey sector, seven operators currently controlrttzgority of the market. We also w
directly with hoteliers for our eTransA@t and Business Express® products.

Within the small ticket beverage and food vendinduistry, our customers include soft drink bottlarsl independent vending opera
throughout the United States and Canada. On thedsiok bottler side, we are attempting to secutditional distribution agreements ¢
servicing our existing customer’s requirementscfashless locations and the related network services

Indirect Sales/ Distribution

We have entered into agreements with resellerddestidbutors in connection with our energy managenpeoducts. We also have agreem
with select resellers in the car wash, amusememtgaming and vending markets in an effort of broader reach and subsidize direct s
efforts in these markets.

Marketing

Our marketing strategy consists of building oumiokdy creating a company and product presencelasiry conferences and events in ord
raise visibility within our industry, create oppanity to conduct product demonstrations, and cdnsith potential customers one-ame
sponsoring educational workshops with trade asSong such as National Automated Merchandiser Aatoa (“NAMA”), to educate tr
industry on the importance and benefits of ourtsmtuand establish our position as the industrgéeadevelop several case studies to illus
the value of our products; the use of direct maihpaigns; and advertising in verticaliyiented trade publications such as Vending Ti
Automatic Merchandiser and Energy User News.
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IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIPS
AT&T Mobility

In November 2009, we signed an amendment to ostiegiagreement to use AT&J digital wireless wide area network for transpdrtiata
including credit card transactions and inventonynagement data. The initial term of the amendmetiirese years, expiring November 2012
the end of the initial term, the agreement autoradlyi renews for successive one year terms unkxssiated by either party. AT&T is
provider of advanced wireless voice and data sesvfor consumers and businesses, operating thestagipital wireless network in No
America and the fastest nationwide wireless datavord in the United States. We offer AT& wireless services in connection with our e
® devices which are utilized in the traditional sntalket beverage and food vending market in thedéhStates.

Verizon Wireless

In April 2011, we signed an agreement to use Vergdigital wireless wide area network for transpeftdata, including credit ca

transactions and inventory management data. Thalitérm of the agreement is three years, expifipgl 2014. At the end of the initial ter

the agreement automatically renews for successie month periods unless terminated by either papiyn thirty days notice. Verizo

Wireless operates the natisrfastest, most advanced 4G network and largestt ratiable 3G network. The company serves 104ianillota

wireless connections, including more than 88 millietail customers. We offer Verizon’s wirelessvegs in connection with our eP@&rt
devices which are utilized in the traditional smitket beverage and food vending market in theddhBtates.

On September 21, 2011, the Company and Verizorrezhiato a Joint Marketing Addendum (the “Verizograement”)which amended tt
three year agreement described above. Pursuahet¥drizon Agreement, the Company and Verizon wouddk together to help identi
business opportunities for the Companproducts and services. Verizon may introduceCti@pany to existing or potential Verizon custor
that Verizon believes are potential purchaserf®f@ompanys products or services, and may attend saleswilithe Company made to ths
customers. The Company and Verizon would collaleocst marketing and communications materials thatladvbe used by each of then
educate and inform customers regarding their joiatketing work. Verizon has the right to list then@anys products and services in its C
Solutions Guide for use by its sales and marketimgloyees and in its external website. The Compesyagreed to pay to Verizon a ditee
referral fee for each customer introduced to then@any by Verizon that would become a customer @fGbmpany. The Verizon Agreemer
terminable by either party upon 45 days noticeraiite months.

Crane Payment Solutions

In December 2010, Crane Payment Solutions (“Crareusiness unit within the Merchandising Systemgng&amt of Crane Co. and !
Company entered into a thrgear Strategic Partnership Agreement to delivesraliined cashless vending solution to Crane cus®meXortt
America. Under the agreement, USA Technologies dtome the lead provider and supplier of all gaatessing, wireless communicati
and data services for Crane’s customers in coripmatith the new Currenza®ashless bill validator card reader. In additionthie cari
processing capabilities of the Company, the Compaitiyprovide certain hardware solutions and gr@&néne a license for designated U<
patents as a part of the relationship.

VISA

On April 1, 2009 we entered into a Contactless TeaiSupport Agreement with VISA U.S.A. INC. (“VISA pursuant to which VISA wou
pay us the amount of $200 for each eithat we deployed prior to December 31, 2009. Threemgent covered up to a maximum of 4
ePorts® . These ePort® would accept credit and debit cards utilizing VISAontactless technology as well as VISAhagnetic strif
payment cards. In June 2009, the agreement wasdeuié¢a provide funding for up to an additional D5Ports®vhich may be installed «
vending machines owned by The Compass Group. VI8Aldvpay us an aggregate of $800,000 if all 4,0@6res® were timely deployed. O
customer (i.e., the location owner) would enteo iatthreeyear exclusive processing agreement with us in ection with the vending machi
utilizing the ePor® . The Company deployed a total of 2,961 units, or2$5@0, under this agreement during the period kyf Ju2009 throug
December 31, 2009.

On August 16, 2010, we entered into an AcceptandeRromotional Agreement with VISA. Pursuant to #jgeement, VISA agreed, amu
other things, to pay to the Company up to $250@0year, for total payments of up to $750,000. pagments to the Company are to be
by the Company over the three year term of theeageat to support and promote the installation apmlayment of at least 50,000 additic
ePort®, or other payment terminals, in vending nreeh If the Company does not install at least B0,8Ports®pr other payment termina
over the term of the three year agreement, the @agnvould be required to refund a pada portion of the funds. Through June 30, 202
have installed and made operational approximatg9@® units under this agreement.

Compass/Foodbuy

On June 30, 2009, we entered into a Master Purchgssement (“MPA”) with Foodbuy, LLC (“Foodbuy”the procurement company
Compass Group USA, Inc. (“Compassihd other customers. As per its website, Compass $9.9 billion organization with locatic
throughout the US, Mexico, and Canada, is the leexdeending, foodservice management and suppovices, is the largest national venc
operating company, operating 200 branches, ha®©Q8¢eations, and is one of the leading owners @etators of vending machines in
United States. Compass is a division of UK-baseh@ass Group PLC.

The MPA provides, among other things, that for dqgaeof thirtysix months, Foodbuy on behalf of Compass shalizetiUSAT as the sc
credit or debit card vending system hardware atate® software and connect services provider fdarless than sever-five percent of th



vending machines of Compass utilizing cashless paysnsolutions. The MPA also provides that for aqakeof thirty-six months, USAT she
be a preferred supplier and provider to Foodbuyitndustomers, including Compass, of USAproducts and services. The MPA provide
initial pricing for the ePort hardware and montkBrvice and DEX telemetry fees at USAT's standaicdimy. Foodbuy$ customers have 1

right under the MPA to acquire USAT's G-8 or Eddrog devices through USA3’'Quick Start Program. The MPA also provides fer dbility
of the customer to obtain DEX telemetry servicesnflUSAT in connection with vending machines utiigithe ePort devices.
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On July 1, 2009, USAT and Compass, in conjunctioth the MPA described above, entered into a QuitktSMaster Lease Agreem
pursuant to which Compass could purchase USAT'sd&Bdge ePort devices utilizing USATQuick Start Program. The Quick Start Procg
enables Compass to acquire USAT'’s ePort through m@th noncancellable lease. Under the Quick Start Progranmgass will pay USA
a monthly amount, per terminal, that includes #asé of the ePort hardware and activation feetdtaémonthly payment due under the Qi
Start Program would be deducted by USAT directly afuthe gross revenues generated from the Compasting machines. Compass wc
be able to utilize the Quick Start Program to agePorts during the three year term of the Md3techase Agreement referred to above.

On July 1, 2009, USAT and Compass, in conjunctidth the MPA described above, also entered intova theee year ePort Connect Serv
Agreement pursuant to which USAT will provide Corepavith all card processing, data, network, comgations and financial services, i
DEX telemetry data services required in connectiith all Compass vending machines utilizing ePorts.

Merit/AMI Entertainment

In October of 2008, we entered into an exclusivedkyear agreement for the supply of e®devices and ePort Conne®tcashless servic
with Merit Entertainment (“Merit”). Merit is the prvider of Megatouch countertop entertainment systand selected the eP@tsoftware an
ePort Conneo® Services to help give Megatouch players the abititpay with their debit or credit cards. Undesthgreement every nev
manufactured Megatouch system will include our €RBamnect® software. Merit has indicated to us that it curkehias an installed base
over 250,000 touch screen games.

JUMP START PROGRAM

In December 2009, the Company commenced a prograitsfcustomers referred to as the Jump StartrBnog“Jump Start”)Pursuant to tr
Jump Start Program, the Company would continuewn the ePort device utilized by its customer. A¢ time of the shipment of the eF
device, the customer is obligated to pay to the Gamy the standard onigne activation fee, is obligated to pay monthlyvime fees i
accordance with the terms of the customer's cantvdb the Company, and the Company receives timgaprocessing fees generated f
the device. The Jump Start Program also includessfort Connect®ervices package for wireless connectivity, cammcessing, consurr
services, online reporting, and over-the-air maglaterts.

Because Jump Start is designed to help vendingatipsrand bottlers acquire the ePort cashlessratrat no upfront cost, paying only a |
monthly service fee, and avoiding the need to meakeajor upfront capital investment, the Companycgdtes that the Jump Start Prog
will accelerate adoption in the marketplace otort technology as well as increase its licengett@amsaction fee revenues.

When the program was commenced, the Company aatdcighat the Jump Start Program would consist tefast 15,000 ePort Edge devit
In May 2010, the Company expanded the programdtudie the ePort G8 terminal. In July 2010, the Canypexpanded the program tc
aggregate of 35,000 ePort terminals and the progeaminated in December 2010. During the Sprin@@f1, the Company reintroduced
Jump Start Program and anticipates approximate§080Jump Start units to be connected during th& Z8cal year.

MANUFACTURING

The Company utilizes independent third party congmfor the manufacturing of its products. The Camppurchases other components ¢
business center (computers, printers, fax and coaghines) through various manufacturers and rese{ur manufacturing process ma
consists of quality assurance of materials andnigsif finished goods received from our contractofacturers. We have not entered in
longterm contract with our contract manufacturers, mare we agreed to commit to purchase certain giesbtf materials or finished goc
beyond those submitted under routine purchase sirtigrically covering short-term forecasts.

COMPETITION

The cashless vending, remote business service raardyeconservation industries are competitive mark&'hile the Company offers unic
products and services within smaller niche markétthese industries, a number of competitors inkfe@ader market may offer products
services within our niche market in the futureth® cashless vending market, we are not aware yfdaect competitor that provides
complete end-t@nd solution, offering a cashless/remote monitodegice and turnkey service, which includes cammtessing services. \
are aware of four competitors that offer a cashlessiware device, MEI, Coin Acceptors Inc. (Coindoantaloupe Systems, Inc. and In
Technology, LLC. We are aware of four competitdrat toffer a remote monitoring device, MEI, CantglelBystems, Inc, InOne Technolc
LLC, and Crane Streamware. We are aware of onetdie@mpetitor that offers a wireless service fashtass processing, Apriva. In additi
there are numerous credit card processors that adfel processing services to traditional retathleiishments that could decide to offer sin
services to the industries that we serve.
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In May 2010, NAMA, an association serving the veglicoffee service and foodservice management iridasannounced a cashless ven
program for their members. As described by NAMA toeir website, the goal of the program is to endieMA members to offer the
customers the convenience of cashless paymentseasanable cost across small and large averaggation pricing in a variety of indus
segments. They further describe the NAMA Cashledsti®n program as a networked endetod solution that is hardware neutral, works
qualified communication suppliers and card assmgiatfor payment reconciliation and account managemn addition, NAMA states th
are working to provide members with a broad ranfgpreferential financial services. This programlimes one or more of the competitor
the Company referred to in the preceding paragraph.

In the cashless laundry market, we are aware ofdimeet competitor, Ma&ray Corporation. In the automated business cengket, we at
aware of three direct competitors. In the energpameament market, we are aware of one direct cotopédr our Energy Miser products in -
United States of America; and, we are aware of competitor for energy management products in Eurdpee businesses which hi
developed unattended, credit card activated cosyrsiems currently in use in non-vending machin@diegtions (e.g., gasoline dispensir
public telephones, prepaid telephone cards anéttidispensing machines), might be capable of deugdoproducts or utilizing their existi
products in direct competition with our eP@t control systems targeted to the vending industtye Tompany is also aware of sev
businesses that make available use of the Intemmétuse of personal computers to hotel guestsaim Hotel rooms. Such services mi
compete with the Compars/Business Express, and the locations may not énddBusiness Express, or if ordered, the hotestguey not us
it. Finally, the production of highly efficient vding machines and glass front coolers or altereativergy conservation products may redu
replace the need for our energy management praducts

The Companys key competitive factors include our unique prdguour integrated services, product performanak f@ice. In addition,
includes our ability to deliver these as a one-siopp, which we believe makes our technology easiadopt and deploy for the operator.
competitors are well established, have substapt@géater resources than the Company and havelisk&ab reputations for success in
development, sale and service of high quality pet&luUAny increase in competition in the future magult in reduced sales and/or lo
percentages of gross revenues being retained bgadahgpany, or otherwise may reduce potential prafitsesult in a loss of some or all of
customer base.

CUSTOMER CONCENTRATIONS

Financial instruments that subject the Company torecentration of credit risk consist principalliyaash and cash equivalents and accc
and finance receivables. The Company maintains aadicash equivalents with various financial insitins. Approximately 22% and 52%
the Companys accounts and finance receivables at June 30, &0d 2010, respectively, were concentrated with amgk two (28% with or
and 24% with another) customer(s), respectivelypragimately 48%, 52%, and 44% of the Companltense and transaction proces
revenues for the years ended June 30, 2011, 26802@09, respectively, were concentrated with t28%4 with one and 23% with anothi
two (35% with one and 17% with another), and ongta@mer(s), respectively. There was no concentraifoequipment sales revenue for
year ended June 30, 2011. For each of the yeaedehdhe 30, 2010 and 2009 approximately 11% o€trapan’s equipment sales revel
was concentrated with one customer. The Compamgmers are principally located in the United &tat

TRADEMARKS, PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND PATENTS

The Company received federal registration apprasialthe following trademarks: Blue Light Sequence®M2iQ®, EnergyMiser®
ePort®, ePort Connect®, ePort Edge®, Intelligennhdiag®, PC Express®, Public PC®, SnackMiser®, Th&c® That Never Sleeps®
TransAct®, USA Technologies & Design®, USALive®, MiingMiser®, and VM2iQ®.The Company has three trademarks per
registration, Pay Dot™, Creating Value Through wetgn™ and eSuds™.

Much of the technology developed or to be develdmethe Company is subject to trade secret pratecfio reduce the risk of loss of tri
secret protection through disclosure, the Compasyemtered into confidentiality agreements wittkég employees. There can be no assul
that the Company will be successful in maintairsngh trade secret protection, that they will b@geized as trade secrets by a court of lar
that others will not capitalize on certain aspedttie Company’s technology.

Through June 30, 2011, 73 United States patentsBdideign patents have been issued to the Comparty5 United States and 7 fore
patent applications are pending.

The list of issued patents that remain in forcasigollows:

° U.S. Patent No. 6,856,820 entitled “Anviahicle device for wirelessly connecting a vehidéehe internet and for transact
e-commerce and-busines”;

) U.S. Patent No. 5,844,808 entitled “Apparatus amedhods for monitoring and communicating witplarality of networke
vending machine¢’;
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U.S. Patent No. 7,690,495 entitl“Card reader assem!”;

U.S. Patent No. 7,076,329 entitl* Cashless vending transaction management by a VesdtAnode of operati”;
U.S. Patent No. 7,464,867 entitl*Cashless vending transaction management by a VesdtAnode of operati”;
U.S. Patent No. 7,131,575 C1 entit” Cashless vending transaction management by a VesdtAnode of operati”;
U.S. Patent No. 7,693,602 entitl* Cashless vending transaction management by a \ssigt enode of operati”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,615,186 entitte@dmmunicating interactive digital content betweeghieles and internet based ¢
processing resources for the purpose of transae-commerce or conductin¢-busines”;

U.S. Patent No. 7,003,289 entitle@dmmunication interface device for managing wirgldata transmission betwee
vehicle and the interr”;

Canadian Patent No. 2,207,603 enti* Credit and debit card operated vending mac”;

U.S. Patent No. 5,637,845 entitl“Credit Card and Bank Issued Debit Card Operatete8yand Method for Controlling
Prepaid Card Encoding/Dispensing Macl”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,119,934 entitle@redit Card and Bank Issued Debit Card Operatete8yand Method for Controlling
Prepaid Card Encoding/Dispensing Macl”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,152,365 entitle@redit Card and Bank Issued Debit Card Operatete8yand Method for Controlling
Vending Machine (as Amend¢’;

U.S. Patent No. 5,619,024 entitle@rédit Card and Bank Issued Debit Card Operatede8ysand Method for Controllit
and Monitoring Access of Computer and Copy Equipt”;

U.S. Patent No. D423,474 entitl“Datapor”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,754,641 entitlddyhamic identification interchange method for exafiag one form of identification f
anothe”;

U.S. Patent No. D428,444 entitl“Electronic Commerce Terminal Enclosure for a Vegditachine’;
U.S. Patent No. D437,890 entitl“Electronic Commerce Terminal Enclosure for a Vegdi#achin¢’;
U.S. Patent No. D441,401 entitl“Electronic Commerce Terminal Enclosure with Brag”;

U.S. Patent No. D428,047 entitl“Electronic Commerce Terminal Enclos”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,243,626 entitldaxternal power management device with current nooimiyy precluding shutdown duri
high currer”;

U.S. Patent No. D415,742 entitl“Laptop Data Port EnclosL”;

U.S. Patent No. 7,286,907 entitl“Method and Apparatus for Conserving Power Consulned Refrigerated Applian
Utilizing Audio Signal Detectio”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,021,626 entitl*Method and Apparatus for Forming, Packaging, Stpridisplaying and Selling Clothi
Articles”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,975,926 entitled “Method ang@atus for Power Management Control of a CompreBased Applianc
that Reduces Electrical Power Consumption of anliappe”;

U.S. Patent No. 7,200,467 entitled “Method ang@atus for Power Management Control of a CompreBased Applianc
that Reduces Electrical Power Consumption of anliappe”;
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U.S. Patent No. 6,622,124 entitleMéthod of transacting an electronic mail, an elmitr commerce, and an electrc
business transaction by an electronic commercearnafroperated on a transportation vet”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,606,605 entitl*Method to obtain customer specific data for pubticess electronic commerce ser’;
U.S. Patent No. D480,948 entitl“Mounting bracket for mounting a cashless paymemtiteal to a vending machi”;
U.S. Patent No. D475,750 entitl“Paper guide for a point of sale term”;

U.S. Design Patent No. D543,588 entit* Point of Sale Terminal Mountable on a Vending Mae’;

U.S. Patent No. 6,801,836 entitl Powe-conservation based on indoor/outdoor and am-light”;

European Patent No. 1419425 entitled “Power-Owasien System based on Indoor/Outdoor and Ambliggitt” (validatec
in Germany, Spain, France, the United Kingdom, léegl);

U.S. Patent No. 5,477,476 entitl"Power conservation system for computer periph”;
U.S. Patent No. D475,414 entitl“Printer bracket for point of sale termi”;
U.S. Patent No. D476,036 entitl“Printer bracket for point of sale termi”;

Australian Patent No. 2001263356 entitlé&kefrigerated vending machine exploiting expandedperature variance duri
powel-conservation moc’;

Mexican Patent No. 234363 entitl“Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandedpterature variance during pow-
conservation moc’;

U.S. Patent No. 6,389,822 entitl“Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandedprature variance during pow-
conservation moc’;

U.S. Patent No. 6,581,396 entitl“Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandedprature variance during pow-
conservation moc’;

U.S. Patent No. 6,898,942 entitl“Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandedprature variance during pow-
conservation moc’;

U.S. Patent No. 6,931,869 entitl“Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandedprature variance during pow-
conservation moc’;

U.S. Patent No. D418,878 entitl“Sign Holde”;

U.S. Patent No. 7,630,939 entitl* System and method for locally authorizing cashtesmssactions at point of s;
U.S. Patent No. 6,056,194 entitl“System and Method for Networking and Controllinghdig Machine”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,321,985 entitl* System and Method for Networking and Controllinghdiang Machine”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,505,095 entitl“System for Providing Remote Audit, Cashless Paymand Interactive Transacti
Capabilities in a Vending Machi” (Stitch);

Canadian Patent No. 2,409,228 entit Temperature controller for a refrigerated vendirachin¢’;

U.S. Patent No. 6,389,337 entitle¢‘Transacting -commerce and Conducting-business Related to Identifying ¢
Procuring Automotive Service and Vehicle Replacenfart” (Stitch);

U.S. Patent No. D478,577 entitl“ Transceiver base u”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,609,102 entitled “Universaleiattive advertising and payment system for pubtcess electror
commerce and business related products and se”;
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U.S. Patent No. 6,604,085 entitlddriiversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,601,038 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,604,086 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,601,037 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,611,810 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,606,602 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,601,039 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,604,087 entitlddriversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,615,183 entitlddriversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,601,040 entitlddriversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,609,103 entitlddriversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,629,080 entitlddriversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 7,089,209 entitlddriversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,643,623 entitl*Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,684,197 entitl*Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,807,532 entitl*Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,763,336 entitl*Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

Canadian Patent No. 2,291,015 entit“Universal interactive advertising and payment sysfer public access electrol
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. D475,751 entitl“User interface bracket for a point of sale tern”;

U.S. Patent No. D476,037 entitl“User interface bracket for a point of sale tern”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,895,310 entitlVehicle related wireless scientific instrumentatiefematic”;
U.S. Patent No. 6,853,894 entitl“Vehicle related wireless scientific instrumentatiefematic”;
U.S. Patent No. D477,030 entit“Vending machine cashless payment tern”;

U.S. Patent No. 7,593,897 entitl“Wireless system for communicating cashless ventliiagsactiondata and vendir
machine audit data to remote locati”;
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° U.S. Patent No. 7,502,672 entitled/iteless Vehicle Diagnostics Device and Method v@8#rvice and Part Determinat
Capabilities (as amend¢”;

) U.S. Patent No. 7,805,338 entitl“Method of constructing a digital content play fist transmission and presentation ¢
public access electronic termi”;

° U.S. Patent No. 7,856,289 entitl“Method and apparatus for conserving power consunyea vending machine utilizii
audio signal detectic’; and

° U.S. Patent No. 7,865,430 entitl“Cashless transaction payment mo”.
The Company believes that one or more of its patemtluding U.S. Patent No. 6,505,095 entitl&gstem for providing remote audit, cash
payment, and interactive transaction capabilititsaivending machine” and U.S. Patent No. 7.131&mtkled “MDB Transaction Strin
Effectuated Cashless Vending”, are important irtgating its intellectual property used in its e4R®rcontrol system targeted to the venc
industry. The aforesaid patent expires in July 2021
The Company filed for reexamination of U.S. Patdot 7,131,575 (Reexamination Control No. 90/008)4&7d for reexamination of U.
Patent No. 6,505,095 (Reexamination Control No0@8/448). On January 6, 2009, the U.S. Patent ©ffisued an Ex Parte Reexamine
Certificate in connection with U.S. Patent No. B35 confirming patentability without any amendmenthe claims. On August 11, 20
the U.S. Patent Office issued an Ex Parte Reexdimim@&ertificate in connection with U.S. Patent Ng505,095 which, among other thir
approved amendments to certain of the prior claintsapproved twelve new claims, for a total of k@nes.
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development expenses, which are ettlird selling, general and administrative expems¢he Consolidated Statements
Operations, were approximately $997,000, $1,864,800 $2,691,000, for the years ended June 30, 201D, and 2009, respectively.

EMPLOYEES

On August 31, 2011, the Company had 42 full-timgleyees and three part-time employees.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.
Risks Relating to Our Business
We have a history of losses since inception andwe continue to incur losses, the price of our shasecan be expected to fall.

We have experienced losses since inception. Wecexpeontinue to incur losses for the foreseeédtiere as we expend substantial resot
on sales, marketing, and research and developniemirgproducts. From our inception through June W1, our cumulative losses fr
operations are approximately $194 million. For fiszal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 208%awe incurred net losses of $6,457,
$11,571,495, and $13,731,818, respectively. Ouermags have not been sufficient to sustain our tipes If we continue to incur losses,
price of our common stock can be expected to fadlassurances can be given that we will ever bftalnte.

We may require additional financing to sustain ouroperations and without it we may not be able to cdinue operations.

At June 30, 2011, we had working capital of $11,508. We had an operating cash flow deficit of $8,529, $12,347,182, and $8,477¢
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, 2009, respectively. Based upon past business tigesawe may not currently he
sufficient financial resources to fund our openasi@fter July 1, 2012. Therefore, we may need madit funds to continue these operati
Should the financing we require to sustain our wagkcapital needs be unavailable or prohibitivekpensive when we require it,
consequences could be a material adverse effemtiopusiness, operating results, financial conditiad prospects.

Our existence is dependent on our ability to raiseapital that may not be available.

There can be no assurance that our business wilepfinancially profitable or generate sufficiemvenues to cover our expenses. F
inception, we have generated funds primarily thtotlie sale of securities. Although we believe thathave adequate existing resource
provide for our funding requirements through atsteduly 1, 2012, there can be no assurances thatilvbe able to continue to gener
sufficient funds thereafter. We expect to raisedfuiim the future through sales of our debt or ggsétcurities until such time, if ever, as we
able to operate profitably. Subsequent to July0122 our inability to obtain needed funding carelgpected to have a material adverse effe
our operations and our ability to achieve profiligilf we fail to generate increased revenuesailrto sell additional securities, you may |
all or a substantial portion of your investment.

Our products may fail to gain widespread market aceptance. As a result, we may not generate sufficierevenues or profit margins tc
become successful.

There can be no assurances that demand for oungisodill be sufficient to enable us to generatfigant revenue or become profitat
Likewise, no assurance can be given that we wililie to achieve a sufficient number of eP@tsonnected to our network or sell equipn
utilizing our network or our energy management pigid to enough locations to achieve significanenesxes or that our operations car
conducted profitably. Alternatively, the locatiowkich would utilize the network may not be succekkications and our revenues woulc
adversely affected. We may in the future lose locat utilizing our products to competitors, or magt be able to install our products
competitors’locations, or may not obtain future locations whiebuld be obtained by our competitors. In additithrere can be no assura
that our products could evolve or be improved tettiee future needs of the marketplace.

We may be required to incur further debt to meet fuure capital requirements of our business. Should & be required to incul
additional debt, the restrictions imposed by the tems of such debt could adversely affect our finanal condition and our ability to
respond to changes in our business.

If we incur additional debt, we may be subjecthte tollowing risks:

° our vulnerability to adverse economic conditiond aompetitive pressures may be heightel

° our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, ahges in our business and industry may be lim

° our debt covenants may affect our flexibility imphing for, and reacting to, changes in the econamalyin our industry

° a high level of debt may place us at a competitisadvantage compared to our competitors thates® leveraged a

therefore, may be able to take advantage of oppitida that our indebtedness would prevent us fponsuing;

° the covenants contained in the agreements goveaungutstanding indebtedness may limit our abtlityoorrow addition:
funds, dispose of assets, pay dividends and mak&icéenvestments
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° a significant portion of our cash flows could bedi$o service our indebtedne
° we may be sensitive to fluctuations in interestsat any of our debt obligations are subject toalde interest rates; ar

° our ability to obtain additional financing in thetfire for working capital, capital expendituresjaisitions, general corpor:
purposes or other purposes may be impa

We cannot assure you that our leverage and sutfictiesis will not materially and adversely affemtr ability to finance our future operatic
or capital needs or to engage in other businesgiteed. In addition, we cannot assure you thatitaital financing will be available whi
required or, if available, will be on terms satettay to us.

Current conditions in the global financial marketsand the distressed economy may materially adversebffect our business, results «
operations and ability to raise capital.

Our business and results of operations may be ralyexdversely affected by the continued advermeditions in the financial markets and
economy generally. Declining business and consumoefidence and the risks of increased or continugeimployment, have precipitated
economic slowdown and ongoing recession. Theseteeenl the continuing market upheavals may havadaerse effect on us, our suppl
and our customers. The demand for our productsdldmeiladversely affected in an economic downturnamdevenues may decline under ¢
circumstances.

We rely on the equity markets for funding our besi by issuing equity securities. We may findfiicilt, or we may not be able, to access
equity markets, or we may experience higher fundiosts as a result of the current adverse markedittons. Continued instability in the
markets may limit our ability to access the capitalmay require to fund and grow our business.

The loss of one or more of our key customers cougdgnificantly reduce our revenues and profits.

We have derived, and believe we may continue tiveler significant portion of our revenues fromimiled number of large custome
Approximately 22% and 52% of the Compas@ccounts and finance receivables at June 30, @A 2010, respectively, were concentr
with one and two (28% with one customer and 249% waitother customer) customer(s), respectively. é&xiprately 48%, 52%, and 44% of-
Companys license and transaction processing revenuetiéoydars ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009 cteshe were concentrated w
two (25% with one and 23% with another), two (35%hwone and 17% with another), and one customeréspectively. There was
concentration of equipment sales revenue for tlee gaded June 30, 2011. For each of the years ehohed30, 2010 and 2009 approxime
11% of the Company’s equipment sales revenue wasettrated with one customer. The Compargdstomers are principally located in
United States.

Our customers may buy less of our products or sesvilepending on their own technological developmamduser demand for our produ
and internal budget cycles. A major customer in geaar may not purchase any of our products or sesvin another year, which n
negatively affect our financial performance. If afyour large customers significantly reduce olaglgdurchases from us or if we are require
sell products to them at reduced prices or unfddergerms, our results of operations and revenu&ldee materially adversely affected.

We depend on our key personnel and if they would &ve us, our business could be adversely affected.
We are dependent on key management personnelgyarty the Chairman and Chief Executive Officeedige R. Jensen, Jr. The los

services of Mr. Jensen or other executive officeosild dramatically affect our business prospectst&in of our employees are particuli
valuable to us because:

° they have specialized knowledge about our compadyoperations
° they have specialized skills that are importardupoperations; ¢
° they would be particularly difficult to replac

We have entered into an employment agreement with Jghsen that expires on June 30, 2014. We haee eadtered into employme
agreements with other executive officers, each itk contain confidentiality and naempete agreements. We have obtained a key mi
insurance policy in the amount of $1,000,000 on d&nsen and a key man life insurance policy inatheunt of $1,000,000 on our Presid
Stephen P. Herbert. We do not have and do notdnierobtain key man life insurance coverage on @hngur other executive officers. At
result, we are exposed to the costs associatedhdgttieath of these key employees.

We also may be unable to retain other existingosemanagement, sales personnel and developmergragideering personnel critical to

ability to execute our business plan, which coasuit in harm to key customer relationships, ldskey information, expertise or knotew
and unanticipated recruitment and training costs.
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Our dependence on proprietary technology and limitd ability to protect our intellectual property may adversely affect our ability tc
compete.

Challenge to our ownership of our intellectual gdp could materially damage our business prospénis technology may infringe upon
proprietary rights of others. Our ability to exexudur business plan is dependent, in part, on bilityato obtain patent protection for ¢
proprietary products, maintain trade secret praeand operate without infringing the proprietaights of others.

Through June 30, 2011, we had 12 pending UniteteStand foreign patent applications, and intenfilécapplications for additional patel
covering our future products, although there candassurance that we will do so. In addition, ¢hgan be no assurance that we will mair
or prosecute these applications. The United Stategrnment and other countries have granted usaghts as of June 30, 2011. There ce
no assurance that:

° any of the remaining patent applications will barged to us

° we will develop additional products that are patble or do not infringe the patents of othi

° any patents issued to us will provide us with anmpetitive advantages or adequate protection fopmducts;
° any patents issued to us will not be challengedilidated or circumvented by others;

° any of our products would not infringe the pateoftsthers.

If any of the products are found to have infringaty patent, there can be no assurance that webavitlble to obtain licenses to continu
manufacture and license such product or that wenetl have to pay damages as a result of sucmgément. Even if a patent applicatio
granted for any of our products, there can be sarasce that the patented technology will be a ceroial success or result in any profit
us.

If we are unable to adequately protect our prognietechnology, third parties may be able to commpetre effectively against us, which cc
result in the loss of customers and our businegmbedversely affected. Patent and proprietarytsiditigation entails substantial legal :
other costs, and diverts Company resources asasdhe attention of our management. There can lessarance we will have the neces
financial resources to appropriately defend or @cage our rights in connection with any such litiga.

Competition from others could prevent the Company ifom increasing revenue and achieving profitability.

Competition from other companies, including thobattare well established and have substantiallyatgreresources may reduce
profitability or reduce our business opportunitigny of our competitors have established reputatfor success in the development, sale
service of high quality products. We face compatitirom the following groups:

° companies offering automated, credit card activatedtrol systems in connection with facsimile maelsi person
computers, debit card purchase/revalue statiomsling machines, and use of the Internet amthd-which directly compe
with our products

° companies which have developed unattended, cradit activated control systems currently used imegtion with publi
telephones, prepaid telephone cards, gasoline rispe machines, or vending machines and are capbtEevelopin
control systems in direct competition with the Camy;

° businesses which provide access to the Interneparmbnal computers to hotel guests. Although teeséces are not cre
card activated, such services would compete wightbmpan’s Business Expre®; and

° two direct competitors, Elstat Electronics Ltd. ekutomatic Retailing Ltd., in the energy managemriedtstry.

In addition, it is also possible that a company coatrently engaged in any of the businesses desxtrdbove could develop services
products that compete with our services and prad@@bmpetition may result in lower profit margins eur products or may reduce potet
profits or result in a loss of some or all of oustomer base. To the extent that our competit@shble to offer more attractive technology,
ability to compete could be adversely affected. stated above under “Business-Competitiomfie National Automatic Merchandisi
Association (‘NAMA”), an association serving the vending, coffee sendod, food service management industries has aneduacashle
vending program for their members which offerspgheducts and services of one or more of the Conipanyrent competitors.
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The termination of any of our relationships with third parties upon whom we rely for supplies and seriees that are critical to oul
products could adversely affect our business and iy achievement of our business plan.

We depend on arrangements with third parties fearéety of component parts used in our products.Hak&e contracted with various suppl
to assist us to develop and manufacture our ePamw@ucts and with various suppliers to manufactureEnergy Mise® products. For oth:
components, we do not have supply contracts withadrour thirdparty suppliers and we purchase components as théema time to time
We have contracted with DBSi to host our networl isecure, 24/7 environment to ensure the religlifi our network services. We also h
contracted with multiple land-based telecommundcegi providers to ensure the reliability of our ldvased network. If these busin
relationships are terminated, the implementatiomwf business plan may be delayed until an alteaupplier or service provider can
retained. If we are unable to find another sourcen that is comparable, the content and qualiyuo products could suffer and our busin
operating results and financial condition coulchiaemed.

A disruption in the manufacturing capabilities of our third- party manufacturers, suppliers or distributors would negatively impact oul
ability to meet customer requirements.

We depend upon thirgarty manufacturers, suppliers and distributorddliver components free from defects, competitivéuinctionality an
cost, and in compliance with our specifications detivery schedules. Since we generally do not taainarge inventories of our products
components, any termination of, or significant ajgron in, our manufacturing capability or our t@aship with our thirdearty manufacture
or suppliers may prevent us from filling custometters in a timely manner.

We have occasionally experienced, and may in theduexperience, delays in delivery of products delivery of products of inferior quali
from thirdparty manufacturers. Although alternate manufacsuemd suppliers are generally available to produgseproducts and prodt
components, the number of manufacturers or sugpliérsome of our products and components is limitettd a qualified replacem:
manufacturer or supplier could take several monthsddition, our use of thirgarty manufacturers reduces our direct control g@reduc
quality, manufacturing timing, yields and costssibption of the manufacture or supply of our praduand components, or a thiparty
manufacturer’s or suppliex’failure to remain competitive in functionalityyality or price, could delay or interrupt our atyilto manufacture
deliver our products to customers on a timely hagigch would have a material adverse effect ontginess and financial performance.

Substantially all of the network service contractswith our customers are terminable for any or no regon upon 30 to 60 daysadvance
notice.

Substantially all of our customers may terminatrthetwork service contracts with us for any orreason upon providing us with 30 or 60-
days’ advance notice. Accordingly, consistent demandafod satisfaction with our products by our customisrsritical to our financi
condition and future success. Problems, defeatiissatisfaction with our products or services cagddse us to lose a substantial number ¢
customers with minimal notice. If a substantial tnemof our customers were to exercise their tertiinaights, it would result in a matet
adverse effect to our business, operating resants financial condition.

Our reliance on our wireless telecommunication seige provider exposes us to a number of risks overhich we have no contro
including risks with respect to increased prices athtermination of essential services.

The operation of our wirelessly networked devicepahds upon the capacity, reliability and secuwitgervices provided to us by our wirel
telecommunication services providers, AT&T Mobilapd Verizon Wireless. We have no control overaperation, quality or maintenance
these services or whether the vendor will imprageservices or continue to provide services thatemsential to our business. In addit
subject to our existing contracts with them, ourelgss telecommunication services providers masease their prices, which would incre
our costs. If our wireless telecommunication sexsiproviders were to cease to provide essentiaicesror to significantly increase prices,
could be required to find alternative vendors fuese services. With a limited number of vendors,cald experience significant delays
obtaining new or replacement services, which cdeittl to slowdowns or failures of our network. Irdgidn, we may have to replace
existing ePort® devices that are already installed in the markegland which are utilizing the existing vendoservices. This coL
significantly harm our reputation and could causeailose customers and revenues.

Our products may contain defects that may be diffialt or even impossible to correct, which could redtiin lost sales, additional cosl
and customer erosion.

We offer technically complex products which, whastfintroduced or released in new versions, mayaia software or hardware defects
are difficult to detect and correct. The existen€elefects and delays in correcting them could Itéaunegative consequences, including
following:

° delays in shipping product

° cancellation of orders
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° additional warranty expens

° delays in the collection of receivablt

° product returns

° the loss of market acceptance of our prodt

° diversion of research and development resources frew product development; a
° inventory write-downs.

Even though we test all of our products, defecty nantinue to be identified after products are phih In past periods, we have experiel
various issues in connection with product launclmesuding the need to rework certain products atabilize product designs. Correct
defects can be a timmnsuming and difficult task. Software errors malget several months to correct, and hardware emarg take eve
longer.

We may accumulate excess or obsolete inventory thabuld result in unanticipated price reductions andwrite downs and adversel
affect our financial results.

Managing the proper inventory levels for componeams finished products is challenging. In formulgtiour product offerings, we he
focused our efforts on providing products with geezapability and functionality, which requirestosdevelop and incorporate the most cul
technologies in our products. This approach tendsdrease the risk of obsolescence for produaiscamponents we hold in inventory
may compound the difficulties posed by other fastbat affect our inventory levels, including tlodildwing:

° the need to maintain significant inventory of comeots that are in limited suppl
° buying components in bulk for the best prici

° responding to the unpredictable demand for progl

° responding to customer requests for short-time delivery schedule:

° failure of customers to take delivery of ordereddarcts; anc

° product returns

If we accumulate excess or obsolete inventory eprédiuctions and inventory writlswns may result, which could adversely affect rasult:
of operation and financial condition.

We may not be able to adapt to changing technolognd our customers’ technology needs.

We face rapidly changing technology and frequent reervice offerings by competitors that can rendgisting services obsolete
unmarketable. Our future depends, in part, on bilityato enhance existing services and to developoduce and market, on a timely and
effective basis, new services that keep pace véthhriological developments and customer requireméseloping new products &
technologies is a complex, uncertain process rieguinnovation and accurate anticipation of tecbgalal and market trends. When chang
the product line are announced, we will be chakdehtp manage possible shortened life cycles fostieg products, continue to sell exist
products and prevent customers from returning iexjgproducts. Our inability to respond effectivaty any of these challenges may ha
material adverse effect on our business and fiahsoiccess.

Security is vital to our customers and therefore beaches in the security of transactions involving aguproducts or services coul
adversely affect our reputation and results of opeations.

Protection against fraud is of key importance techasers and enasers of our products. We incorporate securityufest such as encrypti
software and secure hardware, into our productgrédect against fraud in electronic payment tratisas and to ensure the privacy

integrity of consumer data. Our products may benexdble to breaches in security due to defectdiénsecurity mechanisms, the opere
system and applications or the hardware platforatuBty vulnerabilities could jeopardize the segunf information transmitted or stor
using our products. In general, liability assodlatdth security breaches of a certified electrqréyment system belongs to the institution
acquires the financial transaction. In addition, lvee not experienced any material security bresaeffecting our business. However, if
security of the information in our products is campised, our reputation and marketplace acceptaficaur products will be adverst
affected, which would adversely affect our resaofteperations, and subject us to potential liajilif our security applications are breached
sensitive data is lost or stolen, we could incgngicant costs to not only assess and repair amgadje to our systems, but also to reimk
customers for losses that occur from the fraudulesg of the data. We may also be subject to fimeb @enalties from the credit ci
associations in the event of the loss of confidémtird information. Adverse publicity raising cengs about the safety or privacy of electr
transactions, or widely reported breaches of ouarmther provides security, have the potential to undermine conswoefidence in th
technology and could have a materially adverseceéfe our business.
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Our products and services may be vulnerable to sedty breach.

Credit card issuers have promulgated credit cacdrg guidelines as part of their ongoing effaxisbattle identity theft and credit card fra
We continue to work with credit card issuers toussghat our products and services comply witheheses. There can be no assurar
however, that our products and services are invabie to unauthorized access or hacking. When tkareauthorized access to credit card
that results in financial loss, there is the pagnhat parties could seek damages from us.

If we fail to adhere to the standards of the Visaad MasterCard credit card associations, our registations with these associations cou
be terminated and we could be required to stop prading payment processing services for Visa and MastCard.

Substantially all of the transactions handled byrtwork involve Visa or MasterCard. If we failtcomply with the applicable requirement:
the Visa and MasterCard credit card associatioisg ¥r MasterCard could suspend or terminate aistration with them. The termination
our registration with them or any changes in theavbr MasterCard rules that would impair our regigin with them could require us to s
providing payment processing services through etwark.

We rely on other card payment processors and senacproviders; if they fail or no longer agree to preide their services, our custome
relationships could be adversely affected and we afdl lose business.

We rely on agreements with other large paymenteqssiog organizations, primarily Elavon, Inc. (“Edav), to enable us to provide c:
authorization, data capture, settlement and met@mounting services and access to various regottiols for the customers we serve. V
of these organizations and service providers are@mpetitors and our agreements are subject tairtation by them.

The termination by our service providers of theiaagements with us or their failure to performittservices efficiently and effectively m
adversely affect our relationships with the custmmehose accounts we serve and may cause thosmmarstto terminate their process
agreements with us.

We are subject to laws and regulations that affedhe products, services and markets in which we opate. Failure by us to comply witt
these laws or regulations would have an adverse ettt on our business, financial condition, or resudt of operations.

We are, among other things, subject to bankinglatigns and credit card association regulationgufgato comply with these regulations n
result in the suspension or revocation of our bessn the limitation, suspension or termination eige, and/or the imposition of fines t
could have an adverse effect on our financial diomi Additionally, changes to legal rules and Hagjons, or interpretation or enforcem
thereof, could have a negative financial effecusror our product offerings. The payment processidgstry may become subject to regula
as a result of recent data security breaches that xposed consumer data to potential fraud. &@@xitent this occurs, we could be subje
additional technical, contractual or other requiesis as a condition of our continuing to conduat payment processing business. Tl
requirements could cause us to incur additionaisceghich could be significant, or to lose reventethe extent we do not comply with th
requirements.

New legislation could be enacted regulating thasbagon which interchange rates are charged foit deleredit card transactions, which cc
increase the debit or credit card interchange fd@sged by bankcard networks. An example of sugislition is the so-calledDurbin
Amendment,”to the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and Consurnmeteletion Act of 2010. The Durbin Amendment wasergly enacted at
regulates the basis upon which interchange ratesidbit card transactions are made to ensure tiietchange rates areeasonable ai
proportionate to costs.” As discussed elsewherthi; Form 10K, pursuant to regulations that were recently prigated by the Fedel
Reserve, our credit and debit card processor hidfgedous that effective October 1, 2011, Visa &hasterCard are significantly increasing tl
interchange fees for small ticket debit card tratieas. During the 2011 fiscal year, debit cardsactions represented 82% of the numb
transactions handled by our network. At the presiemé¢, the impact on our business is still uncertdVe anticipate that these signific
increases would be passed on to our customers aronkel cease to accept debit cards in our ePorbo#met devices. In either such event, t
is the possibility that our customers would carhbelr agreements with us resulting in a significaatuction in our licensing and transaction
revenues. In addition, there is the possibilityt tbastomers would not order ePorts or other devinethe future at the levels currer
anticipated by us.

Increases in card association and debit network igrchange fees could increase our operating costs otherwise adversely affect oL
operations. If we do not pass along to our customgrany increases in credit or debit card interchangéees, assessments and transact
fees, our gross profits would be reduced.

We are obligated to pay interchange fees and atbérork fees set by the bankcard networks to thrd @suing bank and the bankc
networks for each transaction we process througmetwork. From time to time, card associations delbit networks increase the organiza
and/or processing fees, known as interchange Fegtshey charge. Under our processing agreemetltsour customers, we are permitte:
pass along these fee increases to our customerggthcorresponding increases in our processing Raessing along such increases could r
in some of our customers canceling their contradtis us. Consequently, it is possible that competipressures will result in our Compi
absorbing some or all of the increases in the &jtwhich would increase our operating costs, reducegross profit and adversely affect
business.
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Visa and MasterCard have indicated that, effeddegober 1, 2011, their interchange fees for sniatkt category transactions paid for thro
debit cards issued by regulated banks would inerfrasn 1.55% of a transaction plus 4 cents, to 0.5% transaction plus 22 cents, wt
represents an increase of approximately 247% basedtransaction of $1.67, which was the averaggstiction experienced by the Comg
during fiscal year 201During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, appratdély 82% of the transactions handled by our netwonsisted ¢
small ticket debit card transactions. If we are algie to pass along such interchange fee increasertcustomers or take steps to recover:
increased fees, our gross profit from license aastction fee revenues and our financial perfoomavould be materially adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

We do not expect to pay cash dividends in the foresable future and therefore investors should not ditipate cash dividends on thei
investment.

The holders of our common stock and series A cdiblerpreferred stock are entitled to receive divids when, and if, declared by our bt
of directors. Our board of directors does not idtém pay cash dividends in the foreseeable futoue,instead intends to retain any anc
earnings to finance the growth of the businessddte, we have not paid any cash dividends on omntan stock or our series A converti
preferred stock and there can be no assuranceabhatdividends will ever be paid on our commonistoc

In addition, our articles of incorporation prohiltite declaration of any dividends on our commorckstonless and until all unpaid &
accumulated dividends on the series A convertilbkfepred stock have been declared and paid. Thréugjust 31, 2011, the unpaid ¢
cumulative dividends on the series A convertiblef@med stock are $10,599,646. Each share of sériesnvertible preferred stock
convertible into 1/100th of a share of common statcthe option of the holder. The unpaid and cutiudalividends on the series A convert
preferred stock are convertible into shares ofaamnmon stock at the rate of $1,000 per share aiftien of the holder. During the years er
June 30, 2011, a total of 1,500 shares of our se&ieonvertible preferred stock and $33,000 woftltwmulative preferred dividends wi
converted into 15 and 33 shares of common stoskgecively.

We may issue additional shares of our common stockyhich could depress the market price of our commorstock and dilute youl
ownership.

As of August 31, 2011, we had issued and outstgndjptions to purchase 90,666 shares of our comnuek sand warrants to purchi
15,562,649 shares of our common stock. The shawdsrlying none of these options, and 14,595,43hede warrants have been registerec
may be freely sold. From inception, we have finahoar business primarily through the sale of oumown stock. Market sales of la
amounts of our common stock, or the potential fimse sales even if they do not actually occur, heaye the effect of depressing the me
price of our common stock. In addition, if our frgufinancing needs require us to issue additiohares of common stock or securi
convertible into common stock, the supply of comnstock available for resale could be increased whimuld stimulate trading activity a
cause the market price of our common stock to deaen if our business is doing well. Furthermohe, issuance of any additional shares o
common stock including those pursuant to the egerof warrants by the holders thereof, or secsrit@nvertible into our common stock cc
be substantially dilutive to holders of our comnstack if they do not invest in future offerings.

Our stock price may be volatile.

The trading price of our common stock is expectede subject to significant fluctuations in respoms various factors including, but
limited to, the following:

° quarterly variations in operating results and aoteent of key business metris

° changes in earnings estimates by securities asalf/siny;

° any differences between reported results and geuanalyst’ published or unpublished expectatio

° announcements of new contracts, service offeringsatinological innovations by us or our compesit

° market reaction to any acquisitions, joint ventusestrategic investments announced by us or ompedtitors;
° demand for our services and produ

° shares being sold pursuant to Rule 144 or uporciesesof warrants

° regulatory matters
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° concerns about our financial position, operatirgults, litigation, government regulation, developrseor disputes relatil
to agreements, patents or proprietary rig

° potential dilutive effects of future sales of slsaoé common stock by shareholders and by the Com@ard subsequent s
of common stock by the holders of warrants andooyst;

° our ability to obtain working capital financing;

° general economic or stock market conditions unedlad our operating performant
The securities market in recent years has from timéme experienced significant price and volurhetiiations that are unrelated to
operating performance of particular companies. &hearket fluctuations, as well as general econarnitditions, may also materially ¢
adversely affect the market price of our commoulsto

The substantial market overhang of our shares wiltend to depress the market price of our shares.

The substantial number of our shares currentlyidégior sale in the open market will tend to degsréhe market price of our shares. A
August 31, 2011, these shares consisted of thewoly:

° 32,285,690 shares of common stc

° 442,968 shares of series A convertible preferredks

° 10,600 shares issuable upon conversion of the ed@nd unpaid dividends on the series A convergibdéerred stock
° 15,562,649 shares underlying common stock warr

° 190,082 shares issuable under our 2010 Stock liwveeAtan; anc

° 300,000 shares issuable under our 2011 Stock liveelan.

Director and officer liability is limited.

As permitted by Pennsylvania law, our by-laws lithi¢ liability of our directors for monetary damader breach of a directarfiduciary dut
except for liability in certain instances. As aukf our byfaw provisions and Pennsylvania law, shareholdeay hrave limited rights
recover against directors for breach of fiduciatgyd In addition, our byaws and indemnification agreements entered intdheyCompan
with each of the officers and directors providet tha shall indemnify our directors and officershe fullest extent permitted by law.

Our publicly-filed reports are reviewed by the SEC from time totime and any significant changes required as a reftuof any suct
review may result in material liability to us, andhave a material adverse impact on the trading pricef our common stock.

The reports of publiclyraded companies are subject to review by the S time to time for the purpose of assisting conigs ir
complying with applicable disclosure requirementsl & enhance the overall effectiveness of comgampieblic filings, and comprehensi
reviews of such reports are now required at leestyethree years under the Sarba@edey Act of 2002. SEC reviews may be initiatechny
time. While we believe that our previously filed SEeports comply, and we intend that all futureorép will comply in all material respe:
with the published SEC rules and regulations, wddbe required to modify or reformulate informaticontained in prior filings as a resul
an SEC review. Any modification or reformulationinformation contained in such reports could beisigant and result in material liability
us and have a material adverse impact on the tgadioe of our common stock.
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Item 2. Properties.

The Company conducts its operations from variousifi@s under operating leases. The Company leasg&19 square feet of space locate
Malvern, Pennsylvania for its principal executiviia@ and used for general administrative functicsedes activities, and product developn
The lease term expires on April 30, 2016. As ofe]8@, 2011, the Company’s rent payment for thigifaés $29,000 per month.

The Company also leases 13,377 square feet of slmmeged in Malvern, Pennsylvania for its produetrehousing, shipping and custol
support. The lease term expires December 31, 284 bf June 30, 2011, the Compasyent payment for this facility is $14,500 per rih
with escalating rental payments through the renwind the lease.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

The Company is not a party to any legal proceedings
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities.

The common stock of the Company trades on The NAQOHobal Market under the symbol USAT. The high dma bid prices on TF
NASDAQ Global Market for the common stock were alfofvs:

Year ended June 30, 20 High Low

First Quarter (through September 30, 2C 1.5C 0.4¢€
Second Quatrter (through December 31, 2( 1.6C 0.97
Third Quarter (through March 31, 201 2.7¢ 1.04
Fourth Quarter (through June 30, 20 3.74 1.9¢
Year ended June 30, 20 High Low

First Quarter (through September 30, 2C 3.01 1.3¢
Second Quatrter (through December 31, 2( 1.82 1.5C
Third Quarter (through March 31, 201 1.77 1.04
Fourth Quarter (through June 30, 20 1.2¢ 0.4¢

On August 31, 2011, there were 632 record holditiseoCommon Stock and 364 record holders of tieéePred Stock.

The holders of the Common Stock are entitled teivecsuch dividends as the Board of Directors ef @ompany may from time to tir
declare out of funds legally available for paymetdividends. Through the date hereof, no cashddivils have been declared on
Companys Common Stock or Preferred Stock. No dividend tmayaid on the Common Stock until all accumulated @npaid dividends «
the Preferred Stock have been paid. As of Augus2311, such accumulated unpaid dividends amount&d0,599,646.

As of June 30, 2011, equity securities authorizedssuance by the Company with respect to compiemsalans were as follows:

Number of Weighted Number of
Securities to b average exerci:  securities remainir
issued upot price of available for future
exercises o outstanding issuance (excludir
outstanding optior options anc securities reflecte
and warrant warrants in column(a)
Plan categor (@) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérs| - - 490,08:(3)
Equity compensation plans not approved by sec
holders 90,66¢ (1) 7.5¢% 140,00( (2)
Total 90,66¢ 7.5¢2 630,08:

1) Represents stock options outstanding as of 30n@011 for the purchase of shares of Common Sebtke Company expiring at varic
times from March 2012 through June 2013. All suptiams were granted to then current employees dnedtdrs of the Company. Exerc
prices for all the options outstanding were atgwithat were either equal to or greater than thd&eharice of the Compang’Common Stoc
on the dates the options were granted. Sharehajgj@oval of these options was not required becthseptions were granted prior to
Company’s shares being listed on The NASDAQ StoekKkét LLC.

2) Represents shares of Common Stock issuableet@tmpanys Chief Executive Officer under the terms of hispesgment agreemel
Shareholder approval of the foregoing was not megubecause the employment agreement was enteedbyinthe Company prior to t
Company’s shares being listed on The NASDAQ Stoekkét LLC.

3) Represents 190,082 shares of Common Stock igsuater the Compang’2010 Stock Incentive Plan as approved by shatet®bn Jur
15, 2010 and 300,000 shares of Common Stock issuadder the Company'2011 Stock Incentive Plan as approved by shadehobn Jur
13, 2011 for use in compensating employees, offieerd directors. The shares either have been,lbbeviegistered with the Securities
Exchange Commission as an employee benefit plaardfarm S-8.
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As of August 31, 2011, shares of Common Stock veskfor future issuance were as follows:

- 90,666 shares issuable upon the exercise of sabns at exercise prices ranging from $7.50 t@@®®er share

- 15,562,649 shares issuable upon the exercise ofmoonstock warrants at exercise prices ranging fiini3 to $7.70 per sha
11,298,649 of which were exercisable as of Augdst2®11 at prices ranging from $1.13 to $7.70 pere; and 4,264,000 will

exercisable beginning on September 18, 2011 a0$8.6er share

- 15,030 shares issuable upon the conversion ofamdstg Preferred Stock and cumulative PreferredkSdaovidends:

- 190,082 shares issuable under the 2010 Stock imedrian;

- 300,000 shares issuable under the 2011 Stock imedrian; anc

- 140,000 shares issuable to Mr. Jensen under hikbgment agreement upon the occurrence of a USAsEetion.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph shows a comparison of thgelr cumulative total shareholder return for ounown stock with The NASDAQ Compos
Index and the S&P 500 Information Technology Infil@xsmall cap companies in the United States. Tlaplgassumes a $100 investmer
June 30, 2006 in our common stock and in the NASD@@mposite Index and the S&P 500 Information Tedbgyw Index, includin

reinvestment of dividends.

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Among USA Technologies, Inc., The NASDAQ Compotitgex and The S&P 500 Information Technology Index
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The information in the performance graph is notndeg to be “soliciting material”
Commission or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C uritle Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenaieth the liabilities of Section 18
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeatiwdlhnot be deemed to be incorporated by refeeeinto any filing under the Securit
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchaeof 1934, as amended, except to the extentweaspecifically incorporate it |
reference into such a filing. The stock price perfance included in this graph is not necessarifjcetive of future stock price performan

or to be “filediith the Securities and Exchar
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data for the fiyears ended June 30, 2011 are derived from theealudonsolidated financial statement
USA Technologies, Inc. The data should be readoimjunction with the consolidated financial statetsemelated notes, and other finan
information.

Year ended June :
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

OPERATIONS DATA

Revenue! $ 22,868,78 $ 15,771,10 $ 12,020,212 $ 16,10354 $ 9,158,01. $ 6,414,80:
Net loss $ (6,457,06) $ (11,571,49) $ (13,731,81) $ (16,417,89) $ (17,782,45) $ (14,847,07)
Cumulative preferred dividenc (665,57) (735,139 (772,99) (780,58) (781,45) (783,28
Loss applicable to common sha $ (7,122,64) $ (12,306,63) $ (14,504,81) $ (17,198,48) $ (18,563,90) $ (15,630,36)
Loss per common share (basic and

diluted) $ (0.2¢) $ (0.55 $ (0.95 $ 1.2 $ (2.19) $ (3.1%)
Cash dividends per common sh - - - - - -
BALANCE SHEET DATA

Total asset $ 36,004,00 $ 29,848,42 $ 25,980,37 $ 40,055,65 $ 34,491,49 $ 23,419,46
Long-term debt $ 253,06. $ 596,15! $ 820,05¢ $ 967,51¢ $ 1,029,74! $ 7,780,85.
Shareholdel equity $ 26,125,53 $ 22,812,217 $ 19,972,27 $ 32,576,544 $ 28,084,20 $ 11,177,06
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Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations.

USA Technologies, Inc. provides wireless networkiogshless transactions, asset monitoring and gmeagagement products and servi
The Company markets and sells its products andcesryprincipally to the vending, hospitality, rétand laundry industries. Our technolc
ePort® and ePort SDK™, can be installed and/or embeddedeveryday devices such as vending machines, &iastl copiers, as well as
eSuds™ technology for washer and dryers. Our assatinetwork service, ePort Conn@ct, provides wireless connectivity that facilite
cashless transaction processing and remote mangtofi assets, through the collection of financ&##s and machine diagnostic data, whit
made accessible to our customers via our USARveebsite. In addition, the Company provides energinagement products, such a:
VendingMiser® and CoolerMiser™, which reduce energy consumptiorending machines and coolers.

The Company generates revenue in multiple ways.Gdrepany generates revenue through the sale @l neéquipment and/or through
licensing of its technology. In addition, we gereraecurring revenues through our associae/ices. The Company charges a mol
network service fee for each device that is coretett the Companyg’network. In addition, we charge a transactiorc@ssing fee for cashle
transactions we process. Since our energy managematucts are a stand-alone, nwtworked device, we only generate revenue thraole
sale of equipment.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
GENERAL

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtconformity with accounting principles geneyadiccepted in the United States reqt
management to make estimates and assumptiondfisettthe amounts reported in the financial stateimand the accompanying notes. Ac
results could differ from those estimates. We helithe policies and estimates related to revenoegrétion, software development co
impairment of londived assets, goodwill and intangible assets, amdstments represent our critical accounting pedieind estimates. Fut
results may differ from our estimates under différ@ssumptions or conditions.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognizetherterms of freight-oboard shipping point, or upon installation and ataece of th
equipment if installation services are purchasedHte related equipment. Activation fee revenueetognized when the Compasytashles
payment device is initially activated for use om tBompany network. Transaction processing revesuedognized upon the usage of
Company’s cashless payment and control networlerise fees for access to the Compamgvices and network services are recognizec
monthly basis. In all cases, revenue is only rezmghwhen persuasive evidence of an arrangemestsexielivery has occurred or serv
have been rendered, the price is fixed and detatntenand collection of the resulting receivables@sonably assured. The Company estir
an allowance for product returns at the date &f.sal

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSETS

In accordance with the Financial Accounting StaddaBoard Accounting Standards Codification ® ("A$Qbpic 360 ‘Impairment o
Disposal of Long-lived Assets”, the Company revieitgslongiived assets whenever events or changes in ciramnoss indicate that t
carrying amount of such assets may not be recolertithe carrying amount of an asset or groupssets exceeds its net realizable value
asset will be written down to its fair value. Iretheriod when the plan of sale criteria of ASC @6®met, londived assets are reported as |
for sale, depreciation and amortization cease tlam@ssets are reported at the lower of carryihgevar fair value less costs to sell.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over faluevaf the net assets purchased in acquisitions. Company accounts for goodwill
accordance with ASC 350, “Intangibles — Goodwild @ther”.Under ASC 350, goodwill is not amortized to earsinigut instead is subject
periodic testing for impairment. The Company tegt®dwill for impairment using a twstep process. The first step screens for pot
impairment, while the second step measures the mimdumpairment. The Company uses a discounteld flaw analysis to complete the fi
step in this process. We also give consideratiooutomarket capitalization. Testing for impairménto be done at least annually and at ¢
times if events or circumstances arise that inditlaat impairment may have occurred. The Compasyshkected April 1 as its annual test ¢
The Company has concluded there has been no imgatiraf goodwill as a result of its testing on Agkil 2011, April 1, 2010 and April
20009.
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The Company trademarks with an indefinite econdiifécare not being amortized. The trademarks, nbfect to amortization, are relatec
the miser asset group and consist of the followtireglemarks: 1) VendingMiser, 2) CoolerMiser, 3) gNliser and 4) SnackMiser. T
Company tests indefinite-lived intangible assetsiffgpairment using a twetep process. The first step screens for potentighirment, whils
the second step measures the amount of impairflkeatCompany uses a discounted cash flow analysisrplete the first step in this proc
Testing for impairment is to be done at least alip@ad at other times if events or circumstanagseathat indicate that impairment may h
occurred. The Company has selected April 1 asnitmial test date for its indefinitared intangible assets. The Company has concluked
was an impairment of its indefinilered trademarks as a result of its testing andrbasrded a $581,900 impairment expense in fourtrtg
of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 (see Nodetlte Consolidated Financial Statements). Ther®wveaimpairment expense recorded du
fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 or 2009.

Patents and trademarks, with an estimated econld@miare carried at cost less accumulated amditizawhich is calculated on a straidhte
basis over their estimated economic life. The Camgpaviews intangibles, subject to amortization,ifopairment whenever events or char
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amaualy not be recoverable. An asset is consideredeténtpaired when the sum of -
undiscounted future net cash flows resulting frbwn tise of the asset and its eventual dispositi@sssthan its carrying amount. The amoul
the impairment loss, if any, is measured as thterdifice between the net book value of the assetitargstimated fair value. Other tt
described above, as of June 30, 2011 and 201@dhwyany has concluded there has been no impaimhéstother patents or trademarks
are subject to amortization.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We were recently notified by Elavon, our Unitedt8sacredit and debit card processor, that effeciewber 1, 2011, Visa and MasterCard
significantly raise their interchange fees for dntiaket category transactions paid for throughitiebrds issued by regulated banks as de
under the “Durbin Amendmentb the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and Consunreteletion Act of 2010. If the Company continue
accept debit cards, then pursuant to our contréttt Elavon, we are obligated to pay to Elavon theréases in these interchange rates
interchange rate would increase from 1.55% of ms@ation plus 4 cents, to 0.5% of a transactios BRicents, which represents an increa
approximately 247% based on a transaction of $IMBifch was the average transaction experiencedéyCompany during fiscal year 20
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, appratdly 82% of the transactions handled by our ntwonsisted of small ticket debit ci
transactions. Of such debit card transactionss istimated that 70% of those were debit trangstfoom regulated banks. Therefore,
anticipate that approximately 57% of all our trarigms handled would be affected by the new rate.

The Company, and its card processor (Elavon), amewtly in discussions with the card associatimnanalyze the impact of the rate incree
in order to attempt to negotiate a viable ratecétne.

In addition to these discussions, the Company diasulated steps that it is contemplating to enasit does not intend to incur the increas
these costs. Although we have not taken any defindction at this time, one of these steps indudet accepting debit cards, so long a
rates remain at the newly announced level. At thesgnt time, we cannot predict how not acceptinbitdegards, or other steps we
contemplating would affect our business.

We believe that if debit cards are not accepteel,réduction in debit card volume could be replaogdredit card use due to the numbe
credit cards in circulation in the United StateseThumber of credit cards and debit cards in cteuh at the end of the 2010 calendar ye
the United States was approximately 489 million &30 million, respectively, according to www.CRE@ARDS.com.However, we cann
estimate at this time, if or to what extent theuattbn in debit card volume would be replaced tgddrcards.

If the amount of cashless volume handled by the fi2omw decreases as a result of the steps takerebdimpany, our license and transac
revenue would decline by an amount equal to thes&etion processing rate the Company charges @ioroer per cashless transactior
addition, the rate of future connections, and/arent connections to our network could be materialliversely affected. If connections
negatively impacted, we could experience a redndtidicense and transaction fee revenue as atrestdwer network services fees collec
as a result of reduced connections to our netwdk cannot estimate a dollar amount at this timedhraduction in cashless processing vol
or connections would have on our revenues, nofutuee acceptance of the Company’s cashless predunct services.

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Revenues for the year ended June 30, 2011 wer8&®289, consisting of $6,426,304 of equipmentssaled $16,442,485 of license .
transactions fees, compared to $15,771,106, conpist $6,464,006 of equipment sales and $9,307¢f0@ense and transaction fees for
year ended June 30, 2010. The increase in totehteyof $7,097,683, or 45%, was primarily due téenanease in license and transaction
of $7,135,385, or 77%, from the prior period, offbg a decrease in equipment sales of $37,702 orfrt¥h the prior period. The increase
license and transaction fees was primarily duéhéincrease in the number of eP@runits connected to our USALM® network, and th
associated fees generated by these connected lLingase and transaction fee revenues consistroefceefees and transaction processing
We anticipate that our license and transactionréaenues would continue to increase if the numliezoonections to our network wol
continue to increase.

As of June 30, 2011, the Company had approximdt&8,000 connections to our USALive@twork (including approximately 13,000 tt
party devices, which are predominantly MEI devigeschased by custome)sas compared to approximately 82,000 connectionsut
USALive® network (including approximately 7,000 rithiparty devices, which are predominantly MEI degi purchased by customéras o
June 30, 2010. During the year ended June 30, 28&1Company added approximately 37,000 connectomir network. The Jump St
program units represented slightly above 60% afid dbconnections added during the June 2011 anel 2010 fiscal years, respectively.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Compangepsed approximately 72 million transactions iogahpproximately $120 million
transaction processing volume compared to apprdein&7 million transactions totaling approximat&8 million of transaction process
volume during the year ended June 30, 2010, aeaser of approximately 95% in the number of tramsastand approximately 76% in doll
processed. During the fiscal year ended June 31, 2fpproximately 82% of the transactions handledur network consisted of small tic
debit card transactions. Pursuant to its agreemeititscustomers, the Company earns transactionegsigg fees equal to a percentage ¢
dollar volume processed by the Company, whichrekided as licensing and transaction processingnugs in its Consolidated Statemen
Operations. The Compargytransaction processing volume is not indicativéhe gross profit from license and transactiorsfesich is base
upon the monthly service fees and transaction gging fees paid to us by our customers.

In addition, our customer base increased with apprately 875 new ePort customers added to its U8&Rinetwork during the year enc
June 30, 2011 bringing the total number of suchoensrs to approximately 1,925 as of June 30, 20h#. Company added approximately
new ePort customers in the year ended June 30, ByL6omparison, the Company had approximately @ @Bort customers as of June
2010, representing an 83% increase during thefast year. We count a customer as a hew ePotomgs upon shipment of the first eF
unit to the customer. When a reseller sells ourtgR@ count a customer as a new ePort customanr tigosigning of the applicable servi
agreement with the customer.

The $37,702 decrease in equipment sales was d oésul increase of approximately $365,000 relateBnergy Miser products offset by a
decrease of approximately $157,000 in sales oft® products and fees and a decrease of approxima?dlg, @00 in sales of the Busin



Center and eSuds® product lines combined. The eatedse in ePort®lated sales revenue of $157,000 is attributableduced hardwa
sales of approximately $683,000, offset by increadfeapproximately $526,000 in revenue associatigl ether aspects of our ePort busir
described below. The decrease in hardware sal@uevis due mainly to a significant portion of tHeoet® units shipped during the year en
June 30, 2011were part of the Jump Start Progranwliich the Company records a diree activation fee, but does not record an equig
(hardware) sale. The Jump Start Program began ¢ermleer 2009, therefore most ePorfiits shipped during the year ended June 30,
were sold to our customers and an equipment (hagjveale was recorded. Pursuant to the Jump Stagrdn, the Company is entitled
receive a onéime activation fee upon shipment of the devicenanthly service fee, generally commencing the mafthr shipment, at
transactional processing fees due in connectioh thi¢ cashless activity generated by the device.ddtrease in hardware sales was offs
increases of (1) approximately $228,000 in actoratielated fees related to Jump Start Program,u@its$225,000 of Visa support funding
installation and making operational Visa accepgigrts, and (3) approximately $73,000 of revenaegeized under our May 2008 agreen
with a customer.

The Company entered into an Acceptance and Pronadtigreement with Visa USA, Inc. on August 16, @0WUnder the first program year
the agreement, the Company is entitled to recepvéou$225,000 to be used to support the instafiatiod making operational of up to 9,
terminals, which accept the Visa brand, by no léhan December 31, 2010. During the year ended 30n&011, the Company recori
$225,000 of revenue related to the support funétingnstallation and making operational of Visa egting terminals. As required by the
agreement, the Company supported the installatidm@ade operational at least 9,000 terminals byeBéer 31, 2010.
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Cost of sales consisted of equipment costs of $3993 and $4,049,433 and network and transactiosices related costs of $11,651,138
$6,861,642 for the year ended June 30, 2011 an@, 264pectively. The increase in total cost of sale$4,209,056 over the prior fiscal y
was due to a decrease in equipment costs of $5800#&et by an increase in network and transaciEmices of $4,789,496. The decreas
equipment costs was a direct result of shippingemaorits under the Jump Start Program. The costeiassd with the Jump Start units w
recorded to Property and Equipment on the CondelitiBalance Sheets. The Jump Start Program startedcember 2009. The increas:
network and transaction services costs was direethted to increases in units connected to thear&tand increases in processing voll
offset by decreases in third party supplier cosest an amendment to a contract which occurréldemuarter ended March 31, 2010.

Gross profit (“GP")for the year ended June 30, 2011 was $7,748,65®a@d to gross profit of $4,860,031 for the presidiscal year, €
increase of $2,888,627, of which $542,738 is aitdble to equipment sales and $2,345,889 is at#ibel to license and transaction fees.
increase in GP from equipment sales is predominalige to the increase in activation fees on Junapt 8bnnections as compared to the |
fiscal year as well as the Visa support fundingorded during the year ended June 30, 2011. Thedserin GP dollars from license
transaction fees was generated by additional devioanected to our network and a decrease in phairty supplier costs related to the con
amendment referred to above. GP increased oveda 81% to 34%, equipment sales GP increased froth ® 46% due mainly to (
approximately $228,000 increase in activation egldees related to Jump Start Program units addedgithe fiscal year 2011 compared to
Jump Start Program units added during the yearcdeddee 30, 2010, (2) $225,000 of Visa support fagdior installation and makil
operational Visa accepting ePorts during the yealed June 30, 2011 and $0 during the year endesl 30n2010, and (3) approximat
$73,000 of revenue recognized under our May 2008emgent with a customer during the year ended 30n2011, and license and transac
fees GP increased from 26% to 29% due mainly t@#ueease in third party supplier costs relatetiéccontract amendment referred to above.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&# $11,430,610 for the year ended June 30, 20Xkkedsed by $3,455,075 or 23%, fi
the prior fiscal year, due to an approximate $2,800 decrease as a result of the Compmmexpense reduction efforts and an approxi
$1,156,000 decrease in proxy contest, litigatiod aettlement expenses. The Compangkpense reduction of $2,300,000 consiste
decreases in consulting and other professionalcesrof approximately $1,511,000, compensation esee of approximately $581,000, faci
expenses of approximately $128,000, product devedop material costs of approximately $127,000,edffsy net increases of approxima
$47,000.

The consulting and other professional serviceseadese of approximately $1,511,000 was primarily tu8522,000 of reductions in costs
information technology, as well as reductions istscof research and development of approximaté86®00, legal costs of approxima
$220,000, accounting charges of approximately B and expenses for other services of approxim&#&56,000, net. The compensa
expense net decrease of approximately $581,000umdo a decrease of approximately $664,000 inrisalaseverances and commission
well as a decrease of approximately $143,000 inefierosts, offset by an increase of approximat$B26,000 related to nocast
compensation expenses.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the iz recorded an impairment charge of $581,900roimtangible asset. The intangi
asset impaired is related to the Miser energy ptsdand consists of the trademarks: 1) VendingMiggiCoolerMiser, 3) PlugMiser and
SnackMiser. This asset is unrelated to the Comparye operations related to the ePort wireleshleas products. The Company believe:
impairment of this non-core asset, and the facoreounding its impairment do not in any way efféne ongoing operations of the Company.

The year ended June 30, 2011 resulted in a nebfdds,457,067 (including approximately $4.6 mitliof noneash charges) compared to a
loss of $11,571,495 (including approximately $2limil of noncash charges) for the year ended June 30, 20lithmovement of $5,114,42
or 44%. Net loss for the year ended June 30, 2044 the lowest net loss of any fiscal year sincesbiares became listed on The NASC
Stock Market in March 2007. For the year ended Bh&€011, the loss per common share was $.26rapared to a loss per common shal
$.55 for the prior fiscal year.

35



FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Total revenues for the year ended June 30, 2016 $#5,771,106, consisting of $6,464,006 of equigrsates and $9,307,100 of license
transaction fees, compared to $12,020,123, congisti $6,158,017 of equipment sales and $5,8620f08ense and transaction fees for
year ended June 30, 2009. The increase in totehteyof $3,750,983, or 31%, was primarily due téenanease in license and transaction
of $3,444,994, or 59% from the prior period, andrarease in equipment sales of $305,989. The aserén license and transaction fees
primarily due to the increase in the number of ¢Rwunits connected to our USALiv® network as well as increased revenue on |
connected units. As of June 30, 2010, the Compandyapproximately 82,000 devices connected to oukLll®® network generating licen
fee revenue as compared to approximately 52,00z eeconnected to our USALive network as of June2B09. During the year ended J
30, 2010, the Company processed approximatelyraéli@n transactions totaling approximately $67.8lion compared to approximately 2:
million transactions totaling over $47.1 millionrihg the year ended June 30, 2009, an increaspmbgimately 65% in transaction volu
and approximately 44% in dollars processed. Dutfiregfiscal year ended June 30, 2010, approxima&@dg of the transactions handled by
network consisted of small ticket debit card tratis@ms. Pursuant to its agreements with custontkesCompany earns transaction proces
fees equal to a percentage of the dollar volumegsged by the Company, which are included as licgrad transaction processing revel
in its Consolidated Statements of Operations. Then@anys transaction processing volume is not indicatifehe GP from license a
transaction fees which is based upon the monthiyicsefees and transaction processing fees paids toy our customers.

The $305,989 increase in equipment sales was defiigen increases in sales of eP@rand Energy Miser products of $488,545 and $234
respectively, offset by decreases in business cantkother equipment sales of $359,339 and $58r&6pectively.

Cost of sales for the 2010 fiscal year consisteceqiiipment costs of $4,049,433 and network andsaetion services related costs
$6,861,642. The increase in total cost of sale$10740,469 or 19% over the prior fiscal year was thuincreases in network and transac
services of $2,181,555 offset by a decrease inpagemt costs of $441,086. The increase in netwodktemsaction services costs was dire
related to increases in units connected to the or&twprocessing volume, as well as increases itsdosm third party transaction suppliers
the first six months of the 2010 fiscal year. Tleer@ase in equipment costs was due to a decreagp@ximately $331,000 in equipment ¢
related to lower equipment sales volume, and aedser of approximately $110,000 related to our edérfor product warranty liabilities.

GP for the year ended June 30, 2010 was $4,86@®3pared to GP of $2,849,517 for the previous figear, an increase of $2,010,514
which $747,075 is attributable to equipment saled $1,263,439 from license and transaction fees. ifibrease in equipment sales Gl
approximately $750,000 was a result of an approter$840,000 increase in GP on higher equipmens sald approximately $110,000 rele
to a reduction in product warranty liabilities. Tapproximate $1.26 million increase in GP rela®didense and transaction fee revenue
generated by additional devices connected to owvark, offset by increased transaction suppliergba incurred during the first six month:
the 2010 fiscal year. The reduction in supplierteassociated with a recently negotiated amenditent supplier contract took effect
December 2009. Therefore, the full impact of thev meegotiated agreement was not realized until #wosd half of the 2010 fiscal ye
Percentage based total GP increased overall fi9fnt® 31%, equipment sales GP increased from 273%4%, and license and transaction
GP increased from 20% to 26%. Considering the amluéor product warranty liabilities and for conrphility purposes, GP would have b
as follows for the year ended June 30, 2010 hadlthege not been maddotal GP would have increased to 30%, equipmessaP woul
have increased to 36%, and license and transdetsnGP would have remained at 24% as it was fexttafl by the reduction.

Selling, general and administrative expense of 883685, decreased by $298,162 or 2%, primarily tdua decrease in compensation
benefit expenses of approximately $1,042,000 awdedses in other professional services of appraeim&635,000, travel and entertainn
of approximately $137,000 and product developmérdapproximately $186,000, offset by an increasgriofessional services related to
proxy contest and related litigation of approxiniatgl,579,000 (net of insurance carrier contribo}ficOf the approximate $1,579,000 in pr
contest and litigation costs (net of insuranceiearontribution), approximately $710,000 (net nurance carrier contribution) was for
legal settlement, approximately $200,000 (net efirance carrier contribution) was for legal expsrafethe Company related to the litigati
and approximately $669,000 was for proxy contestSelling, general and administrative expenstuding the proxy contest and litigat
costs was $13,306,685 a decrease of $1,877,162%rat compared to the prior fiscal year, primadliye to cost reduction measures take
the Company during the third quarter of fiscal 2009

Compensation expense decreased by approximatélZZ000 primarily due to a decrease of approxinge#@|486,000 in salaries and bent
as well as an increase of $419,000 in non-caslgelaelated to the Long-Term Equity Incentive Paog(“LTIP” or “LTIP Program”).

The year ended June 30, 2010 resulted in a nebfddt1,571,495 (including approximately $2 milliohnoncash charges) compared to a

loss of $13,731,818 (including approximately $2.#@iom of non-cash charges) for the year ended June 30, 2008f Asne 30, 2010, net Ic
for the 2010 fiscal year was the lowest fiscal ysetrloss since our shares became listed on TheXd&BStock Market in March 2007.
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FISCAL QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 COMPARED TO FISCAL QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Revenues for the quarter ended June 30, 2011 wGeB8&%630 compared to $4,479,106 for the quartde@dune 30, 2010. This $2,409,52
54% increase was primarily due to an increasecenBe and transaction fees of $2,099,046 and asaise in equipment sales of $310,478.
increase in license and transaction fees was piinthre to the increase in the number of ernits connected to our USALIV@ network
and the associated fees generated by these codnecits. License and transaction fee revenues sobwusiservice fees and transac
processing fees. We anticipate that our license teartsaction fee revenues will continue to increasehe number of connections to
network continues to increase.

As of June 30, 2011, the Company had approximdt&8;,000 connections to our USALive@twork (including approximately 13,000 tt
party devices, which are predominantly MEI devigeschased by custome)sas compared to approximately 82,000 connectionsut
USALive® network (including approximately 7,000 rithiparty devices, which are predominantly MEI degipurchased by customéras o
June 30, 2010. During the quarter ended June 304,,28e Company added approximately 7,000 connextim our network.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2011, the Compargessed approximately 22.5 million transactimtaling approximately $37.4 million
transaction processing volume compared to apprdeimall.7 million transactions totaling approximutes20.8 million of transactic
processing volume during the quarter ended Jun@@MD, an increase of approximately 92% in the remal transactions and approxima
80% in dollars processed. During the quarter erlded 30, 2011, approximately 82%othe transactions handled by our network congist
small ticket debit card transactions. Pursuanttdoagreements with customers, the Company earnsaitdon processing fees equal
percentage of the dollar volume processed by themgaoy, which are included as licensing and trammagbrocessing revenues in
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Companghsaction processing volume is not indicativéhe GP from license and transac
fees which is based upon the monthly service faddransaction processing fees paid to us byaustomers.

In addition, our customer base increased with apprately 275 new ePort customers added to its U8&Rinetwork during the quarter enc
June 30, 2011 bringing the total number of suchorners to approximately 1,925 as of June 30, 2Qhb&t year, the Company adc
approximately 75 new ePort customers in the quanded June 30, 2010. We count a customer as &Rew customer upon shipment of
ePort unit to the customer. When a reseller sellsefort, we count a customer as a new ePort cestapon the signing of the applica
services agreement with the customer.

The $310,478 increase in equipment sales was # oésan increases of approximately $348,000 iesaif ePor® products and approximat
$131,000 in sales of Energy Miser products, offgea decrease of approximately $169,000 in otheipegent sales.

Cost of sales consisted of equipment costs of #1188 and $920,767 and network and transactioricesrvelated costs of $3,342,526
$2,033,420 for the quarters ended June 30, 2012@1h@, respectively. The increase in total costadés of approximately $1,583,000 over
prior fiscal quarter was due to an increase in@gent costs of approximately $273,000, and an as&én network and transaction service
approximately $1,309,000. The increase in equiproests was a result of selling more units in thartgr ended June 30, 2011 than the ¢
qguarter in the prior fiscal year. The costs asdediavith the JumpStart units shipped in the quararded June 30, 2011 and 2010
recorded to Property and Equipment on the CondeliiBalance Sheets. The increase in network anddcéion service costs was relate
increases in units connected to the network ang&ses in processing volume.

GP for the quarter ended June 30, 2011 was $2,36Xk8mpared to GP of $1,524,919 for the same quirtthe previous fiscal year,
increase of $827,017, of which $789,940 is attebié to license and transaction fees and $37,0#dris equipment sales. The increase ir
related to license and transaction fee revenuegeasrated by additional devices connected to ouvark as well as an increase in the ave
number of transactions per unit in the quarter driime 30, 2011. Percentage based total GP stageshine overall, while equipment sales
decreased from 41% to 36% and license and transafete GP increased from 31% to 34%.

Selling, general and administrative expense of $8(872, increased by $132,268 or 4%, primarily ttuenon€ash increases in bad d
expense of approximately $138,000 and increaseskdosn disposal of property and equipment of apprately $102,000 offset by r
decreases in compensation and benefit expensgpahdmately $141,000 and other net increases pfagmately $33,000.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2011, the Compeowyrded an impairment charge of $581,900 on tamdible asset. The intangible a
impaired is related to the Miser energy productd aonsists of the trademarks: 1) VendingMiser, ®pl€rMiser, 3) PlugMiser and
SnackMiser. This asset is unrelated to the Comparye operations related to the ePort wireleshleas products. The Company believe:
impairment of this non-core asset, and the facoreounding its impairment do not in any way efféne ongoing operations of the Company.

The quarter ended June 30, 2011 resulted in aoastdf $1,923,055 (including approximately $1.8lioml of non€ash charges) compared
net loss of $2,089,801 (including approximatelySh@illion of non-cash charges) for the quarter ehdiene 30, 2010.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For the year ended June 30, 2011, net cash of $52F was used by operating activities, primarile do cash used related to changes i
Company’s operating assets and liabilities of $3,280 and the net loss of $6,457,067 offset by cesh charges totaling $4,551,1
representing the change in fair value of commonkstearrants, vesting and issuance of common stockrhployee and director compensal
bad debt expense, loss on disposal of equipmepgifment on an intangible asset and the depreniatiol amortization of assets.

The $3,265,590 change in the Compangperating assets and liabilities was primarily tesult of $4,263,302 of inventory used in the g
Start Program during the fiscal year, offset bylg@067,631 increase in accounts payable.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Compaag $291,390 in investing activities related to ploechase of network equipment and
$10,850,106 of net cash provided by financing #atiy mainly due to proceeds from stock issuanedsch includes $1,390,006 from |
exercise of warrants, less repayment of long-teeiyt.d

The Company has incurred losses since inception.a@cumulated deficit through June 30, 2011 is amsed of cumulative losses amoun
to approximately $196,785,123, preferred dividendaverted to common stock of approximately $2,7@3,(and charges incurred for
openmarket purchases of preferred stock of approxime#&b0,000. The Company has historically raisedtahthrough equity offerings
order to fund operations.

In March 2011, the Company received net cash posceé $9,894,095 from the issuance of restricteshraon stock and common st
warrants (see Note 11 and Note 12 to the Conselid&inancial Statements) to accredited, institaidnvestors. Due largely to this ci
infusion, and the $1,390,006 cash received fromettercise of warrants, the Company had $12,991g5thsh and cash equivalents on h
of which approximately $410,000 was cash receiyethb Company for transaction processing servidastwis payable to customers.

The proceeds from the March 2011 offering will lsed primarily to support the continuation of then@any's Jump Start Program which v
reintroduced to our customers in April 2011.

During the 2012 fiscal year, the Company anticipaeurring capital expenditures of approximately590,000 in connection with ePort u
expected to be used in the Jump Start Programdditianal capital expenditures of approximately2pD,000 for property and equipment.

As a result of the connections added during theafigyear 2011, recurring revenue from license amahstction fees increased fr
approximately $2,930,000 for the three months erldere 30, 2010 to approximately $5,029,000 forttihee months ended June 30, 201:
increase of 72%. In addition, total GP has incrédsem $1,525,000 for the three months ended JON@@&L0 to approximately $2,352,000
the three months ended June 30, 2011, an incréagéo

Our average monthly SG&A expenses during the querided June 30, 2011 were approximately $1,131,088 included norcash charge
of approximately $106,000 for the loss on the déspof property and equipment and approximately3§2%0 of stockiased compensation,
well as cash expenses of approximately $180,0G0eelto legal expenses as a result of issues @nisider the Settlement Agreement d
February 4, 2010 between the Company and SharesoAdivocates for Value Enhancement, which are rpeeted to continue in fiscal yt
2012. Excluding these charges, our average mogtghbased SG&A expenses during the quarter ended Jun2031 were approximate
$938,000.

For fiscal year 2012, and subject to the unknowaces of the recent significant interchange feedase by Visa and MasterCard for si

ticket debit card transactions, we expect reverit@s license and transaction fees, as well astGRpntinue to increase as the Company’

connections to its network grow. Therefore, assgnuar average monthly caslased SG&A expenses incurred in the June 30, 204ite
continues, the Company believes its existing cagh gash equivalents as of June 30, 2011, will pi@\sufficient funds to meet its c:
requirements, including capital for the Jump SRadgram and capital expenditures, described atamrepayment of lontgrm debt, throuc
at least July 1, 2012.
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Reconciliation of net loss to Adjusted EBITDA Idss the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Year ended June 30

2011 2010 2009
Net loss $ (6,457,06) $ (11,571,49) $ (13,731,81)
Less interest incom (82,239 (85,149 (282,93()
Plus interest expen: 35,95: 60,94: 96,99:
Plus income tax expen: - - -
Plus depreciation expen 1,553,97! 783,41! 632,40¢
Plus amortization expen: 1,034,401 1,034,40! 1,040,37!
Plus (less) change in fair value of warrant lidigit 815,13: - -
Plus stoc-based compensatic 356,86¢ 130,52¢ 948,77"
Plus intangible asset impairme 581,90( - -
Adjusted EBITDA los¢ $ (2,161,07) $ (9,647,35) $ (11,296,19)

Reconciliation of net loss to Adjusted EBITDA Idss the quarters ended June 30, 2011 and 2010:

Three months endec

June 30,
2011 2010
Net loss $ (1,923,05) $ (2,089,80)
Less interest incom (25,519 (48,28))
Plus interest expen: 3,52¢ 12,18¢
Plus income tax expen - -
Plus depreciation expen 480,702 264,27
Plus amortization expen: 258,60( 258,60(
Less change in fair value of warrant liabilit (35,609 -
Plus (less) sto-based compensatic 293,38: (19,35)
Plus intangible asset impairme 581,90( -
Adjusted EBITDA loss $ (366,070 $ (1,622,37)

As used herein, Adjusted EBITDA represents net imeo(loss) before interest income, interest expeitsegme taxes, depreciati
amortization, and change in fair value of warrgabilities, stockbased compensation expense and impairment exparistaagible assets. V
have excluded the non-operating item, change mvedue of warrant liabilities, because it reprdsemnoneash charge that is not related tc
Company’s operations. We have excluded the non-eapknses, stodkased compensation and impairment expense on ibtarassets, i
they do not reflect the cash-based operationseof0bmpany. Adjusted EBITDA is a n@&AAP financial measure which is not required b
defined under GAAP (Generally Accepted Accountimgéiples). The presentation of this financial measis not intended to be considere
isolation or as a substitute for the financial nueas prepared and presented in accordance with GAwRiding the net income or net los:
the Company or net cash used in operating actviNanagement recognizes that r®AAP financial measures have limitations in thasytlalc
not reflect all of the items associated with thempany ’'s net income or net loss as determined in accoedaithh GAAP, and are not
substitute for or a measure of the Companyrofitability or net earnings. Adjusted EBITDA jisesented because we believe it is usel
investors as a measure of comparative operatirfgmpeance and liquidity, and because it is less espiiigle to variances in actual performa
resulting from depreciation and amortization and-gash charges for changes in fair value of warlabilities, stockbased compensati
expense and impairment expense on intangible assets
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
As of June 30, 2011, the Company had certain cot@hobligations due over a period of time as samired in the following table:

Payments due by perioc

Less Than More than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Long-Term Debt Obligation $ 182,77: $ 87,68( $ 95,09 $ - $ >
Capital Lease Obligatior 88,13¢ 79,33 8,80¢ - -
Operating Lease Obligatiol 1,867,20: 439,84 1,106,09: 321,26: -
Purchase Obligatior - - - - -
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected on the

Registrant’'s Balance Sheet under GAAP - - - - -
Total $ 213811 $ 606,85¢ $ 1,209,99. $ 321,26. $ -

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk.
The Company’s exposure to market risks for interatst changes is not significant. Interest rateglongterm debt are generally fixed anc

investments in cash equivalents are not significeié Company has no exposure to market risksecttat Available-forsale securities. Mark
risks related to fluctuations of foreign currencaes not significant and the Company has no devigatstruments.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingdrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
USA Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of USA Technologies, Inc. and subsidiargeof June 30, 2011 and 2010,
the related consolidated statements of operat&rereholders' equity, and cash flows for each eftlinee years in the period ended Jun:
2011. Our audits also included the financial stetet schedule of USA Technologies, Inc. listedtéml 15(a). These financial statements
financial statement schedule are the responsilgfithhe Company's management. Our responsibgitp iexpress an opinion on these finai
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBlgUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to obta@asonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to haes, were we engaged to perform an audit of iterimdl control over financi
reporting. Our audit included consideration ofemmial control over financial reporting as a basis designing audit procedures that
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thgppse of expressing an opinion on the effectiverméshe Companyg' internal control ov
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nalswpinion. An audit also includes examining, oneat basis, evidence supporting
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemeastessing the accounting principles used andfisamt estimates made by managemer
well as evaluating the overall financial statenyamsentation. We believe that our audits provideasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above presents fairly, in all materespects, the financial position of U
Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June2@01 and 2010, and the results of their operatiorstheir cash flows for each of the tt
years in the period ended June 30, 2011, in confprwith U.S. generally accepted accounting prifesp Also, in our opinion, the relai
financial statement schedule, when consideredlatioa to the basic consolidated financial statetméaken as a whole, presents fairly ir
material respects the information set forth therein

/s McGladrey & Pullen, LLF

New York, NY
September 27, 2011
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale
Accounts receivable, less allowance for urmible accounts of $113,000 a$41,000, respectivel
Finance receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current a
Total current asse

Finance receivables, less current por
Property and equipment, r
Intangibles, ne

Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholde’ equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued expenst

Current obligations under long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Lon¢-term debt, less current portis
Accrued expenses, less current por
Warrant liabilities, nc-current

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Shareholder equity:

Preferred stock, no par vall

Authorized share- 1,800,000 Series A convertible preferred st- 900,00CIssued and outstanding shé
442,968 and 444,468, respectively (liquidation @refice of $14,697,100 and $14,079,523, respec}i

Common stock, no par value: Authorized shares-®M000 Issued and outstanding shares-
32,281,140 and 25,497,155, respecti

Accumulated deficit

Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

See accompanying notes.

F-2

June 3(

2011 2010
$ 1299151 $ 7,604,322
1,634,71! 2,048,42
285,78t 242,45
2,670,33: 2,633,97
846,03! 847,34
18,428,38 13,376,51
$ 195,60: $ 339,34
7,395,77! 4,511,88!
2,194,35: 3,810,65.
7,663,20:i 7,663,20:!
126,68’ 146,82:
$ 36,004,00 $ 29,848,42.
$ 5,638,36. $ 4,570,73
1,088,091 1,869,36
155,42¢ 344,65:
6,881,87! 6,784,74
97,63: 251,50
166,70¢ -
2,732,25. -
2,996,59! 251,50:
9,878,47. 7,036,25;
3,138,05! 3,148,671
219,772,59 209,958,55
(196,785,12) (190,295,05)
26,125,53 22,812,17
$ 36,004,00 $ 29,848,42




Revenues
Equipment sale
License and transaction fees

Total revenue

Cost of equipmet
Cost of service

Gross profil

Operating expense
Selling, general and administrat
Depreciation and amortizati
Impairment of intangible asset
Total operating expenses
Operating los:

Other income (expense

Interest incom

Interest expens

Change in fair valu
Total other income (expense), |
Net loss
Cumulative preferred dividends
Loss applicable to common sha

Loss per common share (basic and diluted)

USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended June

2011 2010 2009
$ 642630 $ 6,464,000 $ 6,158,01
16,442,48 9,307,10 5,862,10
22,868,78 15,771,10 12,020,12
3,468,99: 4,049,43; 4,490,51
11,651,13 6,861,64: 4,680,08
7,748,65: 4,860,03. 2,849,51
11,430,61 14,885,68 15,183,84
1,424,36! 1,570,04: 1,583,42!
581,90 - -
13,436,87 16,455,72 16,767,27
(5,688,21)  (11,595,69)  (13,917,75)
82,23 85,14« 282,93(
(35,959 (60,94:) (96,99:)
(815,13) - -
(768,85() 24,20. 185,93
(6,457,06)  (11,571,49)  (13,731,81)
(665,57) (735,13 (772,99)

$ (7,122,64) $ (12,306,63) $ (14,504,81)
$ 0.2 $ (055 $ (0.95)
27,665,34 22,370,06 15,263,78

Weighted average number of common shares outsguglasic and dilutec

See accompanying not



USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Series A
Convertible
Preferrec Common Accumulatec
Stock Stock Deficit Total
Balance, June 30, 20! $ 3,686,21i $193,733,10 $(164,842,77) $ 32,576,54
Retirement of 162,599 shares of common s - (375,58 - (375,589
Retirement of 10,122 shares of preferred s (71,664 - (16,389 (88,049

Issuance of 56,487 ful-vested shares of common stoclemployee:

and vesting of shares granted under the 2007-£kSTompensation

Plan - 284,11 - 284,11°
Issuance of 239,253 fu-vested shares of common stoclofficers anc

employees and vesting of shares granted undelO& Qtock Incentive

Plan - 1,040,52i - 1,040,52!
Issuance of 134,611 net shares of common stocsettiement othe

Long-Term Equity Incentive Program liability for Fiscééar 200¢ - 266,53( - 266,53(
Net loss - - (13,731,81) (13,731,81)

Balance, June 30, 2009 $ 3,614,555 $194,948,69 $(178,590,97) $ 19,972,227

See accompanying not
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity (Qdinued)

Series A
Convertible
Preferrec Common Accumulatec
Stock Stock Deficit Total
Retirement of 5,113 shares of common si $ - 8 (9,66¢) $ - $ (9,669
Retirement of 65,802 shares of preferred s (465,879 - (132,58¢) (598,469
Issuance of 40,000 fully-vested shares of commocksio officers and
employees and vesting of shares granted undelOd& Qtock Incentive
Plan - 87,35¢ - 87,35¢
Issuance of 7,285,792 shares of common stock 80§#r shareless
issuance costs of $1,613,4 - 12,958,15 - 12,958,15
Issuance of 2,753,454 shares of common stock 80%&r share, less
issuance costs of $504,0 - 1,974,01. - 1,974,01.
Net loss - - (11,571,49)  (11,571,49)
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 3,148,671 $209,958,55 $(190,295,05) $ 22,812,17

See accompanying not



Conversion of 1,500 shares of preferred stock 1tshares of common

stock

USA Technologies, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity (Qdinued)

Conversion of $33,000 of preferred dividends in3ossBares acommon

stock at $1,000 per she

Issuance of 261,953 shares of common stock at §@06hardess

issuance cost of $230,0:

Retirement of 2,217 shares of common si

Issuance of 20,747 fu-vested shares of common stoclemployees an

vesting of shares granted under the 2008 StoclktiveePlan

Issuance of 109,918 fully-vested shares of comnbackgsoemployees ar

directors and vesting of shares granted under@té Stock Incentive

Plan

Issuance of 150,000 shares of common stock to LirnearkCapital

Issuance of 5,200,000 shares of common stock @6&2ershare less th
fair value of warrants issued of $1,917,122 and &&sh issuance cost

of $838,70¢

Exercise of 497,367 warrants at $1.13 resultindpéissuance 497,367
shares of Common Sto:

Exercise of 376,355 warrants at $2.20 resultingpéissuance (376,355
shares of Common Stox

Cashless exercise of 127,497 warrants resultitigerissuance of 83,472
shares of Common Stor

Issuance of 86,342 shares of common stock forese¢tht of the Long-
Term Equity Incentive Program for Fiscal Year 2!

Net loss

Balance, June 30, 2011

See accompanying not
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Series A
Convertible
Preferrec Common Accumulatec
Stock Stock Deficit Total
$ (10,620 $ 10,62( = 5
- 33,00( (33,000 -
- 5,671 - 5,671
- (2,26]) - (2,267
- 10,20¢ - 10,20¢
- 292,26 - 292,26
- 7,976,97. - 7,976,97.
- 562,02! - 562,02¢
- 827,98: - 827,98:
- 97,56¢ - 97,56¢
- - (6,457,06) (6,457,06)
$ 3,138,050 $219,772,59 $(196,785,12) $ 26,125,53




USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended June

2011 2010 2009

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (6,457,06) $ (11,571,49) $ (13,731,81)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Charges incurred in connection with the vesting isedancef common stock for employ

and director compensati 302,47: 87,35¢ 1,324,64.
Charges incurred (reduced) in connection with thac-term Equitylncentive Progran 54,39¢ 43,17: (375,86¢)
Charges incurred for change in fair value of wats. 815,13: - -
Loss on disposal of property and equiprr 116,82¢ 25,05¢ -
Depreciation, $1,164,013, $247,772, and $89,3&headively of which is allocated to co

of services 1,553,97! 783,41! 632,40t
Amortization 1,034,401 1,034,401 1,040,37!
Impairment of intangible ass 581,90( - -
Bad debt expense (recove 92,02t (50€) (17,15%)
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 321,67 (579,86°) 2,032,77.
Finance receivable 100,40t (247,24) 489,21:
Inventory (4,299,66) (3,468,02) 627,77t
Prepaid expenses and other as 115,75¢ 337,67 181,11
Accounts payabl 1,067,63. 776,03¢ (210,85%)
Accrued expense (571,39) 432,84( (470,28)
Net cash used in operating activit (5,171,52) (12,347,18) (8,477,68)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment, (291,39() (520,83Y) (264,86°)
Net proceeds from redemption/sale of avail-for-sale securities - - 6,875,001
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (291,39() (520,83) 6,610,13

See accompanying not



USA Technologies, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net proceeds from the issuance (payments for nreéirg)of common stocl
Payments for retirement of preferred st

Proceeds from the issuance of I-term debt

Repayment of long-term debt

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informa:
Cash paid for intere:

Equipment and software acquired under capital |

Equipment and software financed with l-term debt

Conversion of convertible preferred stock to comratatk

Conversion of cumulative preferred dividends to own stock
Prepaid insurance financed with long-term debt

Prepaid software licenses and maintenance finawi@bdong-term debt
Disposal of property and equipment

Reclass of inventory to fixed assets for rentata

Fair value of warrants at issuar

See accompanying not
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Year ended June

2011 2010 2009

$ 1128751 $ 1492250 $ (375,58
- (598,46 (88,04¢)

- 7,50( -

(437,40)) (607,46 (891,25
10,850,10 13,724,07 (1,354,88)
5,387,18 856,06 (3,222,42)
7,604,32. 6,748,26: 9,970,69.

$ 1299151 $ 7,604,32 $ 6,748,.26
$ 379 $ 6388 $ 97,38
$ -3 17,337 $  424,61:
$ - $ 195000 $ -
$ (10,620 $ -3 -
$ (33,000 $ - 3 -
$ 9431 $ - $ 22578
$ -3 - $  93.3%
$ - $ 581,12 $ :
$ 426330 $ 250528 $ -
$ 191712 $ -3 -




USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. BUSINESS

USA Technologies, Inc. (the “Company®as incorporated in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvamidanuary 1992. The Company is a lea
supplier of cashless, remote management, repogtird energy management solutions serving the umlgttePoint of Sale market. C
networked devices and associated services enablewmers and operators of everyday, stalode, distributed assets, such as ver
machines, kiosks, personal computers, photoco@ens Jaundry equipment, the ability to remotely ibamm control and report on the result:
these distributed assets, as well as the abilityffeer their customers cashless payment optionspaks of our Intelligent Vending™ solutic
our Company also manufactures and sells energy geament products which reduce the electrical povegrsemption of various existi
equipment, such as refrigerated vending machinégkass front coolers, thus reducing the electécargy costs associated with operating
equipment. The Company’s customers are principadsgited in the United States.

The Company has incurred losses from its incegtioough June 30, 2011 and losses have continuedghrAugust 2011 and are expecte
continue during fiscal year 2012. The Compamgbility to meet its future obligations is depemntdgpon the success of its products and set
in the marketplace and the available capital reseurUntil the Compang’products and services can generate sufficiematipg revenues, tl
Company will be required to use its cash and caslivalents on hand, as well as raise capital totniteeash flow requirements including
issuance of Common Stock and the exercise of audstg Common Stock warrants.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiertiside the accounts of the Company and its whollyted subsidiaries, Stitch Netwo
Corporation (“Stitch”) and USAT Capital Corp LLCUYSAT Capital”). All significant intercompany accounts and transatdi have bet
eliminated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in oconfty with U.S. generally accepted accounting gipfes requires management to
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoaptsted in the financial statements and accompgnyites. Actual results could differ fri
those estimates.

CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents represent all highly liquid inwemtts with original maturities of three months esd. Cash equivalents are comprise
money market funds. The Company maintains its aablank deposit accounts, which may exceed fedeirsdured limits at times.

Included in cash and cash equivalents at June@®d, and 2010 was approximately $410,000 and $10020respectively, of cash receivec
the Company for transaction processing serviceslwisi payable to our customers. Included in accotetteivable are amounts for transact
processed with our card processers for which cashnot been received by the Company and includedtdéounts payable are amounts
transactions processed with our card processersdaedo our customers, which are recorded net @ fiue to the Company. Gener:
contractual terms require us to remit amounts owexlir customers on a weekly basis.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are reported at their outstandinpaid principal balances reduced by an alloedoc doubtful accounts. The Compi
estimates doubtful accounts for accounts receivabtefinance receivables based on historical badsdéactors related to specific customers’
ability to pay and current economic trends. The @Gany writes off accounts receivable against thensdhce when management determine
balance is uncollectible and the Company ceasdsction efforts. Management believes that the adloge accrued is adequate to providi

its estimated credit losses.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCE RECEIVABLES

The Company offers extended payment terms to cectatomers for equipment sales. Through June@®IH payment terms consisted of fi
term notes. During the year ended June 30, 201QCtrapany started offering customers its Quick SRadgram. In accordance with

Financial Accounting Standards Board Accountingn8tads Codification ® ("ASC") Topic 840, “Leasesiyreements under the Quick
Program qualify for salefype lease accounting. Accordingly, the future minin lease payments are classified as finance el in th
Companys consolidated balance sheets. Notes receivab@uak Start leases are generally for a 36 montim.tdfinance receivables
carried at their contractual amount and chargeagéfinst the allowance for credit losses when mamagt determines that recovery is unlil
and the Company ceases collection efforts. The @ompecognizes a portion of the note or lease patgnas interest income in -
accompanying consolidated financial statementsthasehe effective interest rate method.

INVENTORY

Inventory consists of finished goods and packagiragerials. The Company'inventory is stated at the lower of cost (averegg basis) «
market.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In September 2009, the Financial Accounting Stassl&oard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdaASU”) 2010-06, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures (“Topic 820”): ImpngvDisclosures about Fair Value Measurements.” 280906 amends certain disclos
requirements of Subtopic 82®. This ASU provides additional disclosures fansfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2 and for agtivi Level 3
This ASU also clarifies certain other existing distire requirements including level of desegregatod disclosures around inputs
valuation techniques.

The Companys financial assets and liabilities are measuredguisiputs from the three levels of the fair valierérchy. The three levels are
follows:

Level 1-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active ntarfioe identical assets or liabilities that the Grany has the ability to access at
measurement date.

Level 2-Inputs are other than quoted prices included withémel 1 that are observable for the asset orlitgbeither directly or indirectly
Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similasets and liabilities in active markets, quotedegsitor identical or similar assets or liabilitie
markets that are not active, inputs other thanegliptices that are observable for the asset dfitiaf.e., interest rates, yield curves, etc)d
inputs that are derived principally from or corrodted by observable market data by correlatiortloeromeans (market corroborated inputs).

Level 3- Inputs are unobservable and reflect them@any’s assumptions that market participants would ug®iging the asset or liability. T
Company develops these inputs based on the besirafion available.

The Companyg financial instruments, principally cash equivédemccounts receivable, finance receivables, jmepaenses and other ass
accounts payable and accrued expenses, are catriaxst which approximates fair value due to thertsterm maturity of these instrumer
The fair value of the Company’s obligations under Iongterm debt and credit agreements approximates tteitying value as su
instruments are at market rates currently availebtee Company.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Ryoped equipment are depreciated on the strdigatbasis over the estimated useful live
the related assets. Leasehold improvements aretiaetbon the straightne basis over the lesser of the estimated udiédubf the asset or ti
respective lease term.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over faluesaf the net assets purchased in acquisitions. Company accounts for goodwill
accordance with ASC 350, “Intangibles — Goodwild @ther”.Under ASC 350, goodwill is not amortized to earsingut instead is subject
periodic testing for impairment. The Company tegt®dwill for impairment using a twstep process. The first step screens for pot
impairment, while the second step measures the minudumpairment. The Company uses a discountell flae analysis to complete the fi
step in this process. We also give consideratioouromarket capitalization. Testing for impairménto be done at least annually and at ¢
times if events or circumstances arise that inditlaat impairment may have occurred. The Compasyshkected April 1 as its annual test ¢
The Company has concluded there has been no imgratiraf goodwill as a result of its testing on Agkil 2011, April 1, 2010 and April
2009.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Company trademarks with an indefinite econdiifécare not being amortized. The trademarks, nbfect to amortization, are relatec
the miser asset group and consist of the followtireglemarks: 1) VendingMiser, 2) CoolerMiser, 3) gNliser and 4) SnackMiser. T
Company tests indefinite-lived intangible assetsifitpairment using a tweatep process. The first step screens for poteintighirment, whil
the second step measures the amount of impairflkeatCompany uses a discounted cash flow analysisrplete the first step in this proc
Testing for impairment is to be done at least alip@ad at other times if events or circumstanagseathat indicate that impairment may h
occurred. The Company has selected April 1 asnitaial test date for its indefinitared intangible assets. The Company has concltlded
was an impairment of its indefinitared trademarks as a result of its testing and reasrded a $581,900 impairment expense in thetH
guarter of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 Kk#e 5). There were no impairment expenses redoddeing fiscal years ended June
2010 and 2009.

Patents and trademarks, with an estimated econdmiare carried at cost less accumulated amditizawhich is calculated on a straigire
basis over their estimated economic life. The Campaviews intangibles, subject to amortization,ifopairment whenever events or char
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amaualy not be recoverable. An asset is consideredeténtpaired when the sum of -
undiscounted future net cash flows resulting frbwn tise of the asset and its eventual disposititesssthan its carrying amount. The amou
the impairment loss, if any, is measured as thterdifice between the net book value of the assetitargstimated fair value. Other tt
impairment described above, as of June 30, 20112846, the Company has concluded there has beémpairment of its other patents
trademarks that are subject to amortization.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSETS

In accordance with ASC 360, “Impairment or DisposflLong-Lived Assets”, the Company reviews itsgdived assets whenever event:
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargingunt of such assets may not be recoverablee Ifarrying amount of an asset or grou
assets exceeds its net realizable value, the wg#kbe written down to its fair value. In the ped when the plan of sale criteria of ASC 36C
met, longlived assets are reported as held for sale, degti@eiand amortization cease, and the assets poeted at the lower of carrying va
or fair value less costs to sell. The Company lwaladed that the carrying amount of lolged assets is recoverable as of June 30, 201
2010.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that subject the Company t@recentration of credit risk consist principallfyaash and cash equivalents and accc
and finance receivables. The Company maintains aadlicash equivalents with various financial insitins. Approximately 22% and 52%
the Companys accounts and finance receivables at June 30, d 2010, respectively, were concentrated with amtwo (28% with or
and 24% with another) customer(s), respectivelyprgimately 48%, 52%, and 44% of the Companltense and transaction proces
revenues for the years ended June 30, 2011, 26802@09, respectively, were concentrated with t2%8%4 with one and 23% with anothi
two (35% with one and 17% with another), and onstamer(s), respectively. There was no concentraifoaquipment sales revenue for
year ended June 30, 2011. For each of the yeaeslehthe 30, 2010 and 2009 approximately 11% o€tirapan’s equipment sales rever
was concentrated with one customer. The Compamgwomers are principally located in the United &at

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognizetherterms of freight-oiboard shipping point. Activation fee revenue isogrtized whe
the Companys cashless payment device is initially activateduse on the Company network. Transaction procgsgmenue is recogniz
upon the usage of the Company’s cashless paymdrntanrirol network. License fees for access to tamfanys devices and network servi
are recognized on a monthly basis. In all casagnee is only recognized when persuasive evidef@ arrangement exists, delivery
occurred or services have been rendered, the igrfoeed and determinable, and collection of theuténg receivable is reasonably assured.
Company estimates an allowance for product retattise date of sale.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
EQUIPMENT RENTAL

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Compamymamced a rental program, Jump Start, for its eBguipment devices. In accorda
with ASC 840, “Leases”the Company classifies the rental agreements asatipe leases. For the years ended June 30, 20d12@10
there was approximately $597,000 and $369,000 tfaion fee revenue related to Jump Start equigrireriuded in equipment sales in
Consolidated Statements of Operations. There wsts gpproximately $2,725,000 and $433,000 of serféeerevenue related to Jump
equipment included in license and transaction fedhe Consolidated Statements of Operations feryisars ended June 30, 2011 and 2
respectively. Cost for the Jump Start revenueschvbonsists of depreciation expense on the Juntp&faipment, approximated $933,000
$105,000 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and, 20t0was included in cost of services in the Chdated Statements of Operations.
June 30, 2011 and 2010, $5,735,000 and $2,400,0@Part equipment utilized by the Jump Start Prograas included in property a
equipment, net on the consolidated balance sheet\ste 4).

WARRANTY COSTS

The Company generally warrants its products for tinthree years. Warranty costs are estimated ecarded at the time of sale base«
historical warranty experience, if available.

SHIPPING AND HANDLING

Shipping and handling fees billed to our custoniargonnection with sales are recorded as revenbe. cbsts incurred for shipping ¢
handling of our product are recorded as cost @&fssal

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

Research and development expenses are expensentusied. Research and development expenses, whiclineluded in general a
administrative and compensation expense in the dliciased statements of operations, were approximas®97,000, $1,864,000, a
$2,691,000, for the years ended June 30, 2011,, 20tD2009, respectively. Our research and devedapimitiatives focus on adding featt
and functionality to our system solutions throulgé tlevelopment and utilization of our processing @porting network and new technology.

ACCOUNTING FOR EQUITY AWARDS

In accordance with ASC 718 the cost of employegices received in exchange for an award of equisgruments is based on the grdate
fair value of the award and allocated over theimggperiod of the award.

There were no common stock options granted dutiegyear ended June 30, 2011, 2010, or 2009, andlaied expense respectively. '
Company recorded stock compensation expense of,48D2$87,354 and $1,324,643 related to commorksyeants and vesting of sha
previously granted to employees, excluding the &agn Equity Incentive Program (“LTIP” or the “LTIProgram”) during the years end
June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Thepaosnrecorded stock compensation expense of $54838%43,171 related to the ves
of shares under the fiscal year 2010 LTIP Progranng the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010,atésgg and during the year ended J
30, 2009 the Company recorded a reduction to stockpensation expense of $375,866 related to tla $iettlement of the fiscal year 2(
award under the LTIP Program (see Note 11).

INCOME TAXES

The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC 74@ccounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxasich provides detailed guidance
the financial statement recognition, measuremedtdisclosure of uncertain tax positions recognirethe financial statements. Tax positi
must meet a “more-likely-than-not&cognition threshold at the effective date todmognized upon the adoption of ASC 740 and in syumese
periods. Upon the adoption of ASC 740, the Compgaay/no unrecognized tax benefits.

Income taxes are computed using the asset anditliaiiethod of accounting. Under the asset andilitgbmethod, a deferred tax asse!
liability is recognized for estimated future taXesfts attributable to temporary differences andyfarwards. The measurement of defe
income tax assets is adjusted by a valuation alloaif necessary, to recognize future tax benefily to the extent, based on avail
evidence it is more likely than not such benefitth e realized. The Company recognizes interest genalties, if any, related to uncertain
positions in selling, general and administrativpenses. No interest and penalties related to wioelXx positions were accrued or incu
during the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, ar@l 200

We file income tax returns in the United Statesefatljurisdiction and various state jurisdictiofitie tax years ended June 30, 2008 thr

June 30, 2011 remain open to examination by tajirigdictions to which we are subject. As of Juile 3011 we did not have any income
examinations in process.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividmgpme (loss) applicable to common shares by thghted average common she
outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings pearshis calculated by dividing income (loss) apglleato common shares by the weigh
average common shares outstanding for the year thkieffect of potential common shares (approxitgald,673,000, 13,787,000 &
3,524,000 shares as of June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2&¥)sectively) unless such effect is afitistive. No exercise of stock options (90,666)
stock purchase warrants (15,567,199); or the caierof preferred stock (4,430) or cumulative prefd dividends (10,267) was assul
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 bectheseesult would be antiutive. No exercise of stock options (160,000)stwck purchas
warrants (13,526,748); or the conversion of prefistock (4,445) or cumulative preferred divide(@635); or the issuance of shares gra
under LTIP (86,342) was assumed during the fisealryended June 30, 2010 because the result woudahtbéilutive. No exercise of stor
options (160,000) or stock purchase warrants (38&3); or the conversion of preferred stock (5,16B)cumulative preferred divider
(10,349); or the issuance of shares granted uhaer TIP (317,433) was assumed during the fiscat gaded June 30, 2009 because the |
would be anti-dilutive.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUCEMENTS

The Company does not believe that any other recésglied, but not yet effective accounting stanslawdl have a material effect on 1
Company ' s consolidated financial position, resolft operations, or cash flows.

3. FINANCE RECEIVABLES

Finance Receivables consist of the following:

June 3(
2011 2010
Notes receivabl $ - $ 56,96
Lease receivables 481,38’ 524,83.
Total finance receivable 481,38’ 581,79:
Less current portion 285,78t 242 ,45:;
Non-current portion of finance receivables $ 195,60: $ 339,34:

As of June 30, 2011, and 2010, there was no allowdor credit losses of finance receivables. AsGoenpany collects monthly payments
the receivables from the customers’ transactioddiuthe risk of loss was determined to be remote.

Credit Quality Indicator:
As of June 30, 201

Credit risk profile based on payment activ

Notes Lease: Total
Performing $ - $ 481,38 $ 481,38
Nonperforming - - -
Total $ - $ 481,38 $ 481,38’

Age Analysis of Past Due Finance Receival
As of June 30, 201

31-60 61 -90 Greater than Total
Days Past Days Past 90 Days Total Finance
Due Due Past Due Past Due Current Receivable:
Lease - - - - $ 481,38° $ 481,38"
Total $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 481,38° $ 481,38"
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4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, at cost, consist of tHewahg:

Useful June 3(

Lives 2011 2010
Computer equipment and purchased softv 3-7years $ 4,335,16. $4,330,64!
Lessor Equipmer 5 years 6,768,58 2,505,28.
Furniture and equipme! 3-7 years 785,96( 921,44!
Leasehold improvemen Lesser of

life or lease

term 271,75¢ 271,75¢

Vehicles 5years 29,06¢ 29,06¢
12,190,53 8,058,19

Less accumulated depreciation (4,794,75) (3,546,30)

$ 7,395,777 $4,511,88

Assets under capital lease totaled approximateld38000 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010. Capitak l@asortization of approximate
$277,000, $263,000, and $204,000, is included pretgation expense for the years ended June 3@, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

ePort equipment utilized by the Jump Start Progsaidentified as Lessor Equipment in the abovegaBtcumulated depreciation attribute
to the Lessor Equipment is approximately $1,034,800 $105,000 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, résplgcand is included in accumula
depreciation for the respective years in the altalike.

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Amortization expense relating to all acquired igfiate assets was approximately $1,034,000, $1,084,and $1,040,000 during each of

years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, resplgctihe intangible asset balance and related aglzded amortization consisted of
following:

June 30, 201
Gross
Carrying Accumulatec Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Value
Intangible asset:
Trademarks $ 1,482,100 $  (949,37) $ 532,72!
Patents 9,294,00! (7,632,37) 1,661,62
Total $ 10,776,10 $ (8,581,74) $ 2,194,35.
June 30, 201
Gross
Carrying Accumulatec Net Carrying
Amount Amortizatior Value
Intangible asset:
Trademarks $ 2,064,000 $ (853,12) $ 1,210,87
Patents 9,294,00! (6,694,22) 2,599,77!
Total $ 11,358,00 $ (7,547,34) $ 3,810,65:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Company’s test for impairment of its indefiditeed trademarks, consisting of the trademarksV&phdingMiser, 2) CoolerMiser,

PlugMiser and 4) SnackMiser, determined that tima sfi the expected discounted cash flows attribetablthe trademarks was less tha
carrying value of $1,014,000, and that an impairmerite-down was required. The primary driver behind therease in the value wa:
decrease in the revenue expectations for the tradenfrom the time the trademarks were acquireduly 2003 to when the impairm:
assessment was prepared. Accordingly, the Comparfgrmed a valuation of the trademarKair value with the assistance an indeper
valuation specialist. The fair value of the trademsavas determined by a method known as “reliefnfrmyalty”, in which the fair value

determined by reference to the amount of royaltpine the intangible would generate if it were lgethin an arm’sength transaction. Tl
essential assumptions in a valuation via an incappgoach are as follows:

The related dollar sales volurr

The percentage royalty on sal

The adjustment for taxe

The remaining useful economic lif

The percentage return on investment; :
The tax amortization benef

During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year endrohe 30, 2011, the fair value of the trademarks determined to be $432,100. T
assessment resulted in an impairment write-dowinduhe fourth fiscal quarter of $581,900, whichirisluded in Impairment of intangibl
asset” in the Consolidated Statement of Operafionthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

The trademark described above, is not relatedeg@ttmpany’s core operations consisting of its eRodless, cashless products and services.
At June 30, 2011, the expected amortization ofritengible assets is as follows: $998,000 in fiser 2012, $742,000 in fiscal year 2013
$22,000 in fiscal year 2014. The weighted averagggul life of these amortized intangible assetk.$syears at June 30, 2011. At June 30,
and 2010, $432,100 and $1,014,000, respectiveisademarks has an indefinite life and is includethe intangible assets tables above.

6. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

June 3(
2011 2010

Accrued compensation and related sales

commission:s $ 269,33 $ 922,74:
Accrued professional fet 197,96 374,28t
Accrued taxes and filing fet 302,14° 222,24¢
Advanced customer billing 100,39¢ 55,77:
Accrued shar-based payment liabilit - 43,17
Accrued other 384,95! 251,14!

$ 125479 $ 1,869,36
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

June 3(
2011 2010
Capital lease obligatior $ 84,04: $ 280,26
Loan agreement 169,01¢ 315,89
253,06: 596,15!
Less current portio 155,42¢ 344,65:.

$ 97,63 $ 251,50¢

The maturities of long-term debt as of June 30,128 as follows:

2012 $ 155,42¢
2013 74,067
2014 16,99(
2015 6,57¢

$ 253,06:

During July 2010, the Company financed a portiothef premiums for various insurance policies tota$94,331 due in nine monthly
installments at an interest rate of 4.93%.

During May 2010, the company financed softwarengss totaling $77,730, due in 12 monthly installteeri $6,833 at an interest rate of 3.

During March 2010, the Company financed the purettdscomputer equipment totaling $195,000 due im@@ithly installments at an inter
rate of 4.95%. An amount of restricted cash equahé outstanding principal balance of the loavesias security for this loan. According
$65,754 and $51,492 of restricted cash is class#di current and nocurrent other assets, respectively, on the CoretelitiBalance Sheet
June 30, 2011 and $62,585 and $117,246 of resirezeh is classified as current and monrent other assets, respectively, on the Coresel
Balance Sheet at June 30, 2010.

During July 2009, the Company financed a portionttef premiums for various insurance policies totpl85,991 due in nine montl
installments at an interest rate of 5.1%. In tesanonth the Company also entered into a capiakldor office equipment totaling $24,¢€
due in 46 monthly installments of $677 at an inderate of 12.1%.

During May 2009, the Company financed a softwacerise agreement totaling approximately $56,000,inldeur quarterly installments
$14,747 each, at an interest rate of 9%.

During November 2008, the Company entered intoouaricapital leases for network equipment and ma@mtee contracts on the equipn
totaling $462,041, due in 24 to 36 monthly instahts at interest rates from 3.75% to 12.35%.

During August and November 2008, the Company fiedna portion of the premiums for various insurapoécies totaling $90,798 a
$134,987, due in 11 and 10 monthly installmentsnaihterest rate of 5.95% and 6.25%, respectively.

During February, March, and April 2008, the Compamtered into various capital leases for networkiggent totaling approximate
$199,000, due in 36 monthly installments at interates from 3.78% to 12.35%.

During November 2007, the Company entered intang4erm debt agreement for $93,000 with a financistiintion bearing interest at 8.2F
which is collateralized by the assets of the Compautnich requires 84 monthly payments of $1,46€luding interest and principal.

F-16



USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

7. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

During July 2007, the Company entered into loareagrents for $239,740 with a financial institutioeaking interest at 12% that v
collateralized by $274,494 of the Finance Receesbl'he Company agreed to make 32 monthly paynuér$#9,104, which include intere
and principal, from the proceeds received fromRhmance Receivables. During October 2006, the Compatered into a loan agreement \
a financial institution bearing interest at 18% amdlateralized by $470,000 of the Finance Recdesabrhe Company received $470,00
proceeds and agreed to make 12 monthly paymeng2®%000 followed by 18 monthly payments of $15,08@jch include interest a
principal, from the proceeds received from the RagaReceivables. These loan agreements were edtisfiJune 30, 2010.

During May 2007, the Company entered into a capéi@ae agreement in connection with office equipnfi@napproximately $305,000, due
thirty-six equal monthly payments of $9,456 througdril 2010 at an interest rate of 7.13%.

During March 2007, the Company entered into a eaf#ase agreement in connection with softwareniseg for approximately $290,000,
in sixteen equal monthly installments of $17,76tigh July 2008 followed by two equal monthly payitseof $19,787 through Septem
2008 at an interest rate of 14.27%.

During March 2007, the Company entered into a edfpgfase agreement in connection with office eqaipirior approximately $146,000, ¢
in sixty equal monthly payments of $2,965 througarth 2012 at an interest rate of 7.83%.

8. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with the fair value hierarchy desatiin Note 1, the following table shows the failueaof the Company s financial instrumen
that are required to be measured at fair valud dsre 30, 2011 and 2010:

June 30, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash equivalent $ 83,267 $ - $ - $ 83,26
Common stock warrant liability, warrants exercigaél $2.6058 fror

September 18, 2011 through September 18, . $ - $ - $ 263862 $ 2,638,62
Common stock warrant liability, warrants exercigaél $5.90 through

September 14, 201 $ - $ - $ 93,62: $ 93,62¢
June 30, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash equivalent $ 2,972,020 $ - $ - $ 2,972,02
Common stock warrant liabilit $ - $ - $ - $ -

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the fair values efGlompany ’s Level 1 financial instruments were $83,267 an®%2,026, respective
These financial instruments consist of cash eqgeial including certificates of deposit and moneyrkat accounts. As of June 30, 2011
2010, the Company held no Level 2 financial insteuars.

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the fair values @Gbmpanys Level 3 financial instruments totaled $2,732,268 $0, respectively. The Le
3 financial instruments consist of common stock revats issued by the Company in March 2011 and Madi, which include featur
requiring liability treatment of the warrants. Tfar value of warrants issued in March 2011 (sed¢eNd1 and 12) to purchase 3.9 mil
shares of the Compars/'common stock is based on valuations performedrbyndependent third party valuation firm. The faiue wa
determined using proprietary valuation models ugheg quality of the underlying securities of thermats, restrictions on the warrants
security underlying the warrants, time restricticarsd precedent sale transactions completed in e¢benglary market or in other priv
transactions. The fair value of warrants issuellamch 2007 to purchase 903,955 shares of the Coyh@aommon stock was estimated by
Company using the BlacBeholes model and applying an estimated fair valljgstment primarily related to the illiquidity dfe warrant:
Prior to March 31, 2011, the fair value of theseramts was determined to be de minimus and waghtded on the Company’consolidate
balance sheets.

F-17



USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

8. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
There were no transfers of assets or liabilitigsvben level 1, level 2 or level 3 during the yeamgled June 30, 2011 and 2010.

The following table summarizes the changes invalue of the Company ' s Level 3 financial instrurtsefor the year ended:

June 3(
2011 2010
Beginning balance at June 30, 2011 and = $ > >
Issuance of common stock warrants, exercisable.&0%$8 per shai (1,917,12) -
Recognize liability of warrants, exercisable at¥bper share; attributed to loss due to changaiirvélue (151,63)) -
Loss due to change in fair value of warrant lidieiti, net (663,500 -
Ending balanc $ (2,732,25) $ -

9. INCOME TAXES

At June 30, 2011 the Company had net operatingdasyforwards of approximately $166,189,000 tcsefffuture taxable income expir
through approximately 2031. In addition, the Comphad capital loss carryforwards of approximateédyd0 as of June 30, 2011.

The timing and extent to which the Company canzatifuture tax deductions in any year may be lichibg provisions of the Internal Revel
Code regarding changes in ownership of corporaffioasiRS Code Section 382). The changes in ovmgtsnitations under IRS Code Sect
382 have had the effect of limiting the maximum amtoof net operating loss carryforwards as of J8@e2011 and 2010 available for us
offset future yearstaxable income to approximately $121,667,000 arfb112,000, respectively. Those net operating dass/forwards sta
to expire June 30, 2022. Stitch had net operatisg tarryforwards of approximately $11,800,000hat dcquisition date. Such net opere
loss carryforwards are limited under the same gioxis as to the amount available to offset futarable income and to the extent used ir
given year, will result in decreases to goodwillopposed to income tax expense. As of June 30, 2012010 the capital loss carryforwe
were not limited in use under IRS Code Section 382.

At June 30, 2011 and 2010 the Company recordedefetred tax assets of approximately $48,974,0aD%46,782,000, respectively, wh
were reduced by a valuation allowance of the samauat as the realization of the deferred tax assett likely, principally due to the lack
earnings history.

The net deferred tax assets arose primarily fromoperating loss and capital loss carryforwardsywal as the use of different account
methods for financial statement and income taxn@mppurposes as follows:

June 3(
2011 2010

Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss and capital loss carryforw: $ 46,695,000 $ 44,774,000
Deferred research and development ¢ 219,00( 271,00(
Software development cos - 216,00(
Intangibles 1,003,001 721,00(
Stock-based compensatic 476,00( 396,00(
Other 686,00( 628,00(

49,079,000 47,006,000
Deferred tax liabilities

Intangibles (105,000 (224,000
Deferred tax assets, r 48,974,00 46,782,00
Valuation allowanct (48,974,00)  (46,782,00)
Deferred tax assets, net of allowance $ - 3 =
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10. PREFERRED STOCK

The authorized Preferred Stock may be issued fora to time in one or more series, each series sutih rights, preferences or restriction
determined by the Board of Directors. Each shai@asfes A Preferred Stock shall have the rightntetundredth of a vote and is convertibl
any time into onéwundredth of a share of Common Stock. Each shai@oofimon Stock entitles the holder to one votinditidseries
Preferred Stock provides for an annual cumulativeldnd of $1.50 per share, payable when, as adddfared by the Board of Directors, to
shareholders of record in equal parts on FebruanydlAugust 1 of each year. Any and all accumulatediunpaid cash dividends on the S
A Preferred Stock must be declared and paid poithé declaration and payment of any dividendshenGommon Stock.

Cumulative unpaid dividends at June 30, 2011 arkd 20nounted to $10,267,420 and $9,634,843, respéctiCumulative unpaid dividen
are convertible into common shares at $1,000 pemuoon share at the option of the shareholder. Dutiegyear ended June 30, 2011, 1
shares of Preferred Stock and $33,000 cumulatiefeped dividends were converted into 15 shares Z®dshares of common sto
respectively. During the years ended June 30, 20002009 no Preferred Stock or cumulative prefedieidlends were converted into share
Common Stock. The Series A Preferred Stock mayatled:for redemption at the option of the BoardDafectors for a price of $11.00 §
share plus payment of all accrued and unpaid diddeNo such redemption has occurred as of Jun2(®d,. In the event of any liquidatis
the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stemikeid shall be entitled to receive $10.00 for eatstanding share plus all cumulative un
dividends. If funds are insufficient for this dibuition, the assets available will be distributathbly among the preferred shareholders.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Compdimgdel0,122 shares of its Preferred Stock it paseldl on the open market at prices rar
from $8.00 to $9.50 per share for a total of $88,d3uring the year ended June 30, 2010, the Compeatingd 65,802 shares of its Prefe
Stock it purchased on the open market at pricegimgrirom $8 to $9 per share for a total of $598,48uring the year ended June 30, 2011
Company did not purchase any shares of its Pref&teck on the open market.

11. COMMON STOCK

The Companys Board of Directors has authorized various Comi@tatk public and private placement offerings. Aityifor these offering
during the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and &@08s follows:

On September 25, 2006, the Company entered int@mrantbn Stock Purchase Agreement with Steve lllesaeeredited investor. T
Agreement was terminated August 30, 2009 and there no shares issued under this agreement duringdars ended June 30, 2010
2009.

On May 22, 2009, the Company filed a registratitatesnent with the Securities and Exchange Comnisiio a rights offering relating
transferable subscription rights to purchase uglb million of common stock and warrants (the “2@Rights Offering”). The Compan
engaged William Blair & Company and Maxim Group Lit&€act as the dealenanagers for the 2009 Rights Offering and MacKeRz#gner:
Inc. to act as the information agent.

The 2009 Rights Offering commenced on July 13, 2009 expired on July 31, 2009. On August 7, 2008 closing date of the rights offeri
the Company received $14,571,584 of gross procédus.net cash proceeds, after deduction of feeseapdnses, including dealesranage
fees, was $12,958,159. In addition, the Companyess total of 291,432 warrants to the dealer-mersaip purchase the Compasiyzommo
Stock at $2.20 per share at any time through Augu2012.

In accordance with the terms of the 2009 Rightefff), the Company issued an aggregate of 7,285[8&s of common stock for $2.00
share and 7,285,792 warrants, entitling the haldgrurchase one share of common stock at the exeprice of $2.20 per share of comr
stock commencing January 1, 2010 and through Deeeih 2011. The warrants commenced trading on stugu2009, on The NASDA
Global Market under the symbol USATW. During theageended June 30, 2010 no USATW warrants werecisgerto purchase shares
Common Stock. During the year ended June 30, 2826,355 USATW warrants were exercised at $2.20spare resulting in the issuanct
376,355 shares of Common Stock, generating casteeds of $827,981.

On March 16, 2010, the Company filed a registrastatement with the Securities and Exchange Conmnidsr a public offering of up -
$3,000,000 of our common stock and warrants tolage common stock (the “2010 Public Offerindfe proceeds from the offering are tc
used for general corporate purposes, including imgrkapital and providing financing for the manuéae by us of our ePort cashless payr
products anticipated to be used by our custometgipating in our JumpStart Program. The Compangaged Source Capital Group, Inc
act as the placement agent for the offering.
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11. COMMON STOCK (CONTINUED)

The offering closed on May 12, 2010 and we solé&ggregate of 2,753,454 shares and related wat@pisrchase up to 2,753,454 shares
compensation for its services related to the affgrBource received warrants to purchase up t®08%hares at $1.13 per share, exercisa
any time through May 12, 2013. The warrants congaiovisions for one demand registration of the sdiléhe underlying shares of comn
stock for a period of five years at our expensel piggyback registration rights for a period ofefiyears at our expense, and one del
registration right at the placement agsrgxpense for a period of five years. The offer sale of the warrants was exempt from registr:
under Section 4(2) of the Act. The investors areredited investors. The offer and sale thereof riitl involve any general advertising
solicitation and the securities contained appraopniastrictive legends under the Act. The warraotemenced trading on May 24, 2010 on
NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol USATZ. Duritfie years ended June 30, 2010 no USATZ warrants exercised to purche
shares of Common Stock. During the year ended 30n2011, 497,367 USATZ warrants were exercisefilal3 per share resulting in
issuance of 497,367 shares of Common Stock, gémgesh proceeds of $562,025.

On July 7, 2010, we sold an aggregate of 261,988=shand related warrants to purchase up to 265/%&@s pursuant to a subscription ri
offering which concluded on July 6, 2010. In cortimtwith the offering, Source Capital Group, IftSource”) acted as dealer manager.
compensation for its services, Source receivedamssrto purchase up to 15,717 shares at $1.1%hpee at any time through July 7, 2013.
warrants contain provisions for one demand redistieof the sale of the underlying shares of comraturck for a period of five years at
expense, and piggyback registration rights for @ogeof five years at our expense, and one demagibtration right at the dealer manager’
expense for a period of five years. The Compangived $235,757 of gross proceeds; after deducfamiees and expenses, net cash proc
were $5,671.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, Source electkhless exercise of 127,497 warrants receioed &cting as dealer manager for
offerings described above, resulting in the issearf®3,472 shares of Common Stock.

On July 27, 2010, we executed a purchase agreeameint registration rights agreement (the “LPC Agreet”) with Lincoln Park Capita
LLC (“LPC"). On March 16, 2011, the Company gave written naticePC that it had terminated the LPC Agreement Tompany had t
right under the LPC Agreement to terminate the LA&YEeement for any or no reason and without anyilitglwhatsoever of any party to a
other party under the LPC Agreement. The Comparg/nequired to terminate the LPC Agreement as aitiongrecedent to the closing of
March 14, 2011 Securities Purchase Agreement destitielow. Under the LPC Agreement, we had thet tigtsell to LPC up to 4,851,4
shares of our common stock at our option for arreggfe purchase price of up to $5,000,000. Dutiregyear ended June 30, 2011 we is
150,000 shares of our common stock to LPC as a d¢tmnemt fee for entering into the purchase agreement

On March 14, 2011, the Company entered into a 8&ulPurchase Agreement with seven institutiongestors (the “Buyers”Pursuar
thereto, on March 17, 2011 the Company sold tdBiimgers 5,200,000 shares of the Comparggmmon stock at a price of $2.064 per shai
an aggregate purchase price of $10,732,800. Onhvibf¢ 2011 the Company also issued warrants t@tlyers to purchase up to 3,900,
shares of common stock at an exercise price ofd68.¢per share. The Buyers are accredited inveataighe offer and sale of the shares
the warrants was exempt from registration undeeR@6 promulgated under Section 4(2) of the Ace Tompany has agreed to registel
shares and the shares underlying the warrante$ale under the Act until the earlier of (i) theéedas of which the Buyers may sell all of
securities covered by such registration stateméthiowt restriction pursuant to Rule 144 promulgateder the Act, or (ii) the date on wh
the Buyers shall have sold all of the securitiegeced by such registration statement. The Compsumpligated to use its best efforts to ci
the SEC to declare the Registration Statement tefeewithin 90 days of the closing date of the saction (or 120 days in the event thai
Registration Statement is subject to review bySE£), and the Company is required to pay certagotieted cash payments to the Buyel
the event that the Registration Statement is hed fivithin 15 days of the closing date or is notldeed effective within 90 days of the clos
date (or 120 days in the event that the Registrafitatement is subject to review by the SEC). Thgiftration Statement was filed by
Company with the SEC on March 31, 2011, and detleffective by the SEC on April 29, 2011.

In connection with the above private placementraffg Chardan Capital Markets, LLC (“Chardandited as exclusive placement agent
compensation for its services, Chardan receiveld casipensation of $751,296 and warrants to purchpde 364,000 shares of common s
at $2.6058 per share at any time within five ydallewing the sixmonth and one day anniversary of the issuanceeofvérrants, March 1
2011. We have agreed to register the shares uimtgtlye warrants for resale under the Act on tmeesterms afforded to the Buyers.

The total proceeds of $10,732,800 were reducedlk§1%,122, the fair value of the warrants whichsrbject to liability accounting (see N

8), and cash issuance costs of $838,705, resuitingt cash proceeds of $9,894,095 and net procetated to common shares of $7,976,
The proceeds from the offering will be used prityaio support the continuation of the Company’s gustart Program.

F-20



USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

11. COMMON STOCK (CONTINUED)

The Companys Board of Directors has authorized various comgiims plans. Activity for these plans during theaggeended June 30, 20
2010 and 2009 are as follows:

On February 12, 2007, upon recommendation of thegamsation Committee of the Board of Directorshaf Company, the Board adog
the LTIP Program for each of George R. JensenStphen P. Herbert, and David M. DeMedio, our Chieecutive Officer, Chief Operatil
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, respectivelshe LTIP Program is intended to ensure continuitthe Companys executive manageme
to encourage stock ownership by such persons,caalifyn the interests of executive management thibise of the shareholders.

Pursuant to and as defined in the LTIP Programh executive would be awarded shares of the Compagmmon Stock if the Compe
achieves certain target goals relating to revergress profit, and EBITDA (the “Target Goals¥)) the Company during each of the fiscal y
ended June 30, 2007, June 30, 2008 and June 30, @B0February 4, 2009, the Board of Directors appd the recommendation of
Compensation Committee that the final twelve man#asuring period under the LTIP Program be chafrged the fiscal year ended June
2009 to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Tregfing was approved by the Board as the Boarahdidelieve it would be appropriate
reward senior management with bonuses during thieermueconomic slowdown. EBITDA is defined as eagsi before interest, tax
depreciation, and amortization, and excludes cash stock payments/awards and stock options graotefficers and Board members.
Program allows for the executive officers to redtlee number of shares to be issued in order tefgdtie minimum statutory tax withholdi
requirements.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, thebmurof eligible shares to be awarded to the exeeusi based upon the following weightir
40% of eligible shares are determined by reven@6%) of eligible shares are determined by grossitprafid 30% of eligible shares
determined by EBITDA.

If the Target Goals are achieved by the Companynduthe applicable fiscal year, the executive @ffscwould be awarded the follow
number of shares:

Fiscal Year Ended June :
2009 2010 2011

George R. Jensen, . - 178,57( -
Stephen P. Herbe - 53,71: -
David M. DeMedia - 21,66 -

If the actual results for the fiscal year excedusTarget Goals, each executive would be awardeatditional pro rata portion of the eligi
shares, up to an amount no greater than 125% afiuheber of eligible shares. If the actual resuttsthe fiscal year is less than the Ta
Goals, each executive would be awarded a lesserapaqoortion of the number of eligible sharesnlfhimum Target Goals for the fiscal y
are not achieved, no eligible shares would be agdhtd each executive.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Compargrded a reduction to stock compensation expensk3©5,866 related to the fit
settlement of the fiscal year 2008 award.

As a result of the Board'decision to change the final twelve month meagudate of the LTIP Program from fiscal year 2009iscal yea
2010, the accrued share based liability as of Bhe2011, 2010 and 2009 was $0, $43,171 and $pectsely, and compensation expe
during the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and ®@8%54,395, $43,171 and $0, respectively. Fiatlesnent of the award occurrec
December 2010 with 86,342 shares earned and tmgbensation expense recorded of $97,566.

On January 8, 2007, the Board of Directors apprdakied2007A Stock Compensation Plan to allow up to 100,00&ret of Common Stock
be available for issuance to future or current eygds, directors or consultants of the CompanyrRoi the year ended June 30, 2009
Company had issued 43,513 shares under the 208ibck Compensation plan. During the year endete B0, 2009, the Company iss
56,487 under the 200K-Stock Compensation plan totaling $284,117 basethe grant date fair value of the shares. As oBJ80, 2009, ¢
100,000 shares of Common Stock available for isseamder the Plan had been issued.
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11. COMMON STOCK (CONTINUED)

On February 28, 2008, the Companghareholders approved the 2008 Stock Incentixe @l allow up to 300,000 shares of Common Sto
be available for issuance to future or current @ygés, directors and consultants of the CompanyinBthe years ended June 30, 2011, :
and 2009, the Company issued 20,747, 40,000 an@23%hares under the plan totaling $10,208, $&7a3f $1,040,526, respectively be
on the grant date fair value of the shares.

During September 2008, the Company entered intmdments to the employment agreements with Mr. Jerde Herbert and Mr. DeMedi
As part of the amendments, Mr. Jensen was grarite@Q0 shares of Common Stock under the 2008 Siwmelntive Plan valued at $4.44

share which vest as follows: 36,000 on Septembe2@88; 37,000 on January 15, 2009; and 37,000une 30, 2009; Mr. Herbert was &
granted 85,000 shares of Common Stock under th& 3d0ck Incentive Plan valued at $4.44 per sharetwhest as follows: 28,000

September 15, 2008; 28,000 on January 15, 2009290@0 on June 30, 2009; and Mr. DeMedio was gth@5,000 shares of Common St
under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan valued at $get4share which vest as follows: 8,000 on Septerhbe2008; 8,000 on January 15, 2(
and 9,000 on June 30, 2009. During the year engieel 30, 2009, and as permitted under their emplayagreements, these executive offi
cancelled an aggregate of 23,855 shares of Comromk 8eld by them in order to satisfy an aggregdit$43,894 of payroll tax withholdir
obligations related to shares of Common Stock whidted during September 2008 under their employagmeements. During the year en
June 30, 2010, and as permitted under his emplolyaggaement, an executive officer cancelled aneaggge of 5,113 shares of Common S
held by him in order to satisfy an aggregate 0668,0f payroll tax withholding obligations relatéam shares of Common Stock which ve:
during January and June 2009.

On June 15, 2010, the Compasghareholders approved the 2010 Stock Incentize @l allow up to 300,000 shares of Common Stodbe
available for issuance to future or current empésyelirectors and consultants of the Company. @Qutie years ended June 30, 2011 and .
the Company issued 109,918 and O shares undetahéeqtaling $292,263 and $0, respectively basethergrant date fair value of the she
As of June 30, 2011 187,335 shares under the @laa been granted, but have not been issued asatbeybject to various vesting provisic
and 2,747 shares are available for future issuance.

During April 2011, the Company entered into amenditmi¢o the employment agreements with Mr. JensenHdrbert and Mr. DeMedio. /
part of the amendments, Mr. Jensen was grantedd@Shares, Mr. Herbert was granted 75,000 shaig$/a. DeMedio was granted 25,(
shares of Common Stock under the 2010 Stock Ineeitian valued at $2.35 per share. The sharesgdsilows: 75,000 on April 14, 20!
75,000 on April 14, 2012; and 75,000 on April 181 3.

During June 2011, the Board of Directors accepled recommendation of the Compensation Committee eheh noremployee Directc
serving as of June 30, 2011 receive a stock awlat®,0600 shares of Common Stock under the 2010kStam=ntive Plan valued at $2.22
share. A total of 50,000 shares of Common Stoclevesvarded, and the shares vest as follows: 16,66Ri0e 30, 2011; 16,665 on June
2012; and 16,670 on June 30, 2013.

During June 2011, the Company granted 4,000 ster€&mmon Stock to certain employees under the 2@k Incentive Plan valued
$2.19 per share. The shares vest as follows: lg(®eptember 30, 2011; 1,000 on December 31, Z200@0 on March 31, 2012; and 1,00(
June 30, 2012.

On June 13, 2011, the Compasghareholders approved the 2011 Stock Incentize @l allow up to 300,000 shares of Common Stodbe
available for issuance to future or current empésyelirectors and consultants of the Company. There no shares issued under the
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Compatinedel38,744 shares of its Common Stock it puretiasn the open market at pri
ranging from $1.26 to $4.00 per share for a tot&#381,690. The Company did not purchase any d€dsymon Stock during the years en
June 30, 2011 and 2010.

As of June 30, 2011, the Company had reserved slba@ommon Stock for future issuance for the follwg:

Exercise of Common Stock Optio 90,66¢
Exercise of Common Stock Warrai 15,567,19
Conversions of Preferred Stock and cumulative PredfieStock dividend 14,697
Issuance under 2010 Stock Incentive F 190,08:
Issuance under 2011 Stock Incentive F 300,00(
Issuance under Chief Executive Officer's employnagreement upon the occurrence of a USA Transaction 140,00(
Total shares reserved for future issuance 16,302,64
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A summary of the status of the Companponvested common shares as of June 30, 2011,a2@11A009, and changes during the years
ended is presented below:

Weightec-Average

Gran-Date
Shares Fair Value
Nonvested Share
Nonvested at June 30, 20 367,23 $ 5.717
Granted 239,00( 4.3¢€
Vested (268,60() 4.5(C
Forfeited shares due to terminatic (6,200 4.4k
Reversal of forfeited shares due to normalize- FY 2008 (LTIP) 64,75¢ 5.9C
Vested- FY 2008 (LTIP) (64,756 5.9C
Nonvested at June 30, 20 331,43 $ 5.81
Granted 39,00( 1.7¢
Vested (40,000 2.4%
Veste FY 2010 (LTIP) (86,342) 5.9C
Forfeitec- FY 2010 (LTIP) (231,09) 5.9C
Nonvested at June 30, 20 13,00C $ 1.7¢5
Granted 305,00( 2.1¢
Vested (130,669 1.9
Nonvested at June 30, 20 187,33! $ 2.3z

The 187,335 nonvested shares of Common Stock almrd 30, 2011 were granted under the 2010 Stockntive Plan related
employment agreements and nemployee Board of Director grants. A discussiomaggumptions used in calculating the number of s
and weighted-average grant date fair value is deduabove in Note 11 of the Consolidated Finar&ialements.
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12. COMMON STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS

Common Stock Warrant activity for the years endateJ30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was as follows:

Warrants
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,591,73!
Issuec 1,570,62.
Exercisec -
Expired 131,499
Outstanding at June 30, 20 3,030,86:.
Issuec 10,495,88
Exercisec -
Expired -
Outstanding at June 30, 20 13,526,74
Issuec 4,541,67!
Exercisec (1,001,219
Expired (1,500,001
Outstanding at June 30, 2011 15,567,19

All Common Stock warrants outstanding as of June2BQ1 were exercisable except for 4,264,000 engpion September 18, 2016 which
not exercisable until September 18, 2011. The folig table shows exercise prices and expiratioesifdr warrants outstanding as of June
2011:

Exercise
Warrants Price Expiration
Outstandinc Per Shar Date
609,37¢ $ 6.4C December 31, 201
6,909,43 $ 2.2 December 31, 201
291,43: $ 22 August 6, 201:
17,53: $ 7.7C October 17, 201
46,25¢ $ 1.1z May 12, 201z
7,16¢ $ 1.1c July 7, 201z
903,95! $ 5.9 September 14, 201
2,518,041 $ 1.1c December 31, 201
4,264,00! $ 2.605¢ September 18, 2016
15,567,19
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12. COMMON STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

All Common Stock warrants outstanding as of Junge 2810 were exercisable except for the 500,000 BAA0,000 warrants expiring
October 1, 2010 and October 1, 2011, respectiwghich are not exercisable until minimum performameedles in the First Data Jo
Marketing Agreement are achieved, as discusseditathis Note; an additional 2,753,454 warrantsemeot exercisable until January 1, 2(
The following table shows exercise prices and etjgn dates for warrants outstanding as of Jun@QG00:

Exercise
Warrants Price Expiration
Outstandinc Per Shar Date
500,0C $ 5.2t October 1, 201!
1,000,0C $ 6.0C October 1, 201.
609,37 $ 6.4C December 31, 201
7,285,7¢ $ 2.2 December 31, 201
291,43 $ 22 August 6, 201:
17,532 $ 7.7C October 17, 201
165,2C $ 1.1z May 12, 201:
903,9t $ 5.9 September 14, 201
2,753,45 $ 1.12 December 31, 2013
13,526,74

In conjunction with an October 17, 2007 Securitfeschase Agreement, the Company issued warramsrahase up to 17,532 shares of
Companys Common Stock at $7.70 per share at any time giw@ctober 17, 2012 to the broker dealer who aatethe exclusive placem
agent in the transaction.

In connection with a Securities Purchase Agreematht S.A.C. Capital Associates, LLC (“SAC8ntered into by the Company on March
2007, the Company issued warrants to purchase 833/3ares of Common Stock, exercisable at $6.4@hmme. The warrant provided the
the Company would issue securities in the futura ptirchase price that is less than the exercise pf the warrant, then the exercise pric
the warrant would be reduced to such lower purcipaiee, provided, however, that such exercise pcae never be lower than $5.90 wt
was the closing bid price of our shares on thepayr to the sale of our securities to SAC. Theramar also provides that in the event we i
securities at a purchase price less than the eeepeice of the warrant, the number of shares Idsuander the warrant shall be increase
that number of shares determined by multiplying éiercise price in effect immediately prior to swadjustment by the number of shs
issuable under the warrant immediately prior tchsadjustment and dividing the product thereof ®y/riew exercise price of the warrant (wi
can never be less than $5.90). Under this fornmthla,maximum number shares would be issuable umdewarrant would be 903,955.
October 2008, the Company entered into an agreeragmtescribed below, which caused the number ofawis to be automatically increa
to 903,955 and the exercise price reduced to $ma@ddition for a period of five years, SAC hashgranted the premptive right to purcha
that number of securities being offered for salethly Company in order to maintain SAC’s peda ownership of the Common Stock of
Company following the issuance of any such seasitiy the Company. The warrants are exercisatdayatimethrough September 14, 2(
to the extent that such exercise would not resuthé beneficial ownership by SAC and its affilatd more than 9.99% of the number of sh
outstanding immediately after giving effect to teeuance of shares upon exercise of the warrants.

The warrant contains a provision that if a Fundaaefransaction occurs, notably a change in contrdhin ninety days of the Fundamel
Transaction the warrant holder may require the Gompto pay the Blaclscholes calculated value of the then unexercisedawato th
warrant holder in cash. The fair value of the 963,%arrants was estimated using the Bl&ckoles model and applying an estimated fair
adjustment related to warrant exercise restrictiansl the Company recorded a warrant liabilityttnGonsolidated Balance Sheet of $93
and $0 at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectivelyNe&e8).
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At the time of entering into a Joint Marketing Agneent (October 2008), USA issued to First Datagueréncebased warrants to purchase
to 1,500,000 shares of Common Stock of USA. Fiistalhad the right to purchase 500,000 of such sheithin two years of issuance at $t
per share (the “A Warrants”), and 1,000,000 of ssitéres within three years of issuance at $6.0@lme (the “B Warrants”Jhe A Warrant
were only exercisable by First Data if a minimum26f000 ePorts were sold to a customer pursuant to the Jdémketing Agreement prior
the expiration of the A Warrants, which was OctobeP010. The B Warrants were only exercisable gt Pata if the A Warrants beca
exercisable. The performance measurements for tiiéafrants to become exercisable were not met. Ttrereall 1,500,000 warrants isst
under the First Data Joint Marketing Agreement werteited on October 1, 2010.

As a result of the issuance of warrants to FirsiaDthe exercise price of the warrants held by G.Aapital Associates, LLC (“S.A.C.Has
been automatically reduced to $5.90 per share 60 per share, and the number of shares undgtlyese warrants has been automati
increased to 903,955 from 833,333, as requiredhdydrms of the Securities Purchase AgreementSvAhC. dated March 14, 2007.

In conjunction with the 2009 Rights Offering (seet®&l 11), the Company issued warrants to purch&®5,792 shares of Common Stc
exercisable at $2.20 per share at any time pridbéoember 31, 2011. Additionally, the Company issaach of the two dealer manay
warrants to purchase 145,716 shares of Common $tatkvere exercisable at $2.20 per share at amy pirior to August 6, 2012. During
year ended June 30, 2011, 376,355 warrants, withxpination date of December 31, 2011, were exedca $2.20 per share for cash proc
of $827,981.

In conjunction with the 2010 Public Offering (seetBl 11), the Company issued warrants to purcha&3254 shares of Common Stc
exercisable at $1.13 per share at any time pridbéoember 31, 2013. Additionally, the Company islstlee placement agent warrant:
purchase 165,207 shares of Common Stock, exereigal§l1.13 per share at any time prior to May 02,32

In conjunction with the 2010 Rights Offering (seet®&l 11), the Company issued warrants to purcha$ed28 shares of Common Stc
exercisable at $1.13 per share at any time pridbéoember 31, 2013. Additionally, the Company igstlee placement agent warrant:
purchase 15,717 shares of Common Stock at $1.18hpee at any time through July 7, 2013.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, 497,367 watravith an expiration date of December 31, 2018renexercised at $1.13 per share
cash proceeds of $562,025. Additionally, during year ended June 30, 2011, 127,497 warrants, igsuttee placement agent for the 2
Public Offering and 2010 Rights Offering, were dash exercised resulting in the issuance of 83sha2es of Common Stock.

In conjunction with the 2011 Private Placement €ffg (see Note 11), the Company issued warranpsitohase 3,900,000 shares of Com
Stock at an exercise price of $2.6058 per sharelitibdally, the Company issued the placement agemtants to purchase 364,000 share
common stock at $2.6058 per share. The 4,264,00amta are exercisable from September 18, 201Ligr&eptember 18, 2016.

The 3,900,000 warrants issued under the 2011 RrREicement Offering contain a provision that fumdamental Transaction occurs, not
a change in control, the warrant holder may reqtieeCompany to pay the Bla8choles calculated value of the then unexercisedawitc
the warrant holder in cash. The fair value of thernants was estimated, and the Company recordedriaant liability in its Consolidate
Balance Sheet of $2,638,629 and $0 at June 3022014010, respectively (see Note 8).

The Companys Board of Directors has granted options to empsyend Board members to purchase shares of Comtook & prices th

were at or above fair market value on the dateshiens were granted. The option term and vestoigedule were established by the cont
under which the options were granted.

F-26



USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

12. COMMON STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Common Stock Option activity during the years endi@de 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was as follows:

Weighte«-

Exercise Average

Options Price Exercise

Outstanding Per Shart Price

Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 161,50 $ 7.50-2C $ 7.6
Granted - - $ -
Expired (1,500 $ 20.0C $ 20.0(
Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 160,000 $ 7508 % 7.52
Granted - - $ =
Expired - - $ -
Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 160,00( $ 7508 $ 7.52
Granted - - $ -
Expired (69,339 $ 750 $ 7.5C
Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 90,66¢ $ 7.50-8 % 7.5

The following table shows exercisable options, eiser prices, the weighted average remaining coiahtife and the aggregate intrinsic ve
for options outstanding as of June 30, 2011:

Weighted Averag:

Contractua
Options Options Exercise Price P Remaining Life (Years- Intrinsic Value-
Qutstandinc Exercisable Share Outstandinc Exercisable Outstandinc Exercisable
84,66 84,66¢ 7.5C 1.4¢ 0.4¢ - -
6,00 6,00( 8.0C 1.47 0.74 - -
90,66 90,66¢ 1.4k 0.51 - -

The following table shows exercisable options, eiser prices, the weighted average remaining coiahtife and the aggregate intrinsic ve
for options outstanding as of June 30, 2010:

Weighted Averag

Contractua
Options Options Exercise Price P Remaining Life (Years- Intrinsic Value-
Qutstandinc Exercisable Share Outstandinc Exercisable Outstandinc Exercisable
154,00 154,00( 7.5C 1.72 0.8z - -
6,00 6,00( 8.0C 2.47 1.0¢€ - -
160,00 160,00( 1.7¢ 0.8: - -

There was no compensation expense related to gtmgef options outstanding in the years endee Bf) 2011, 2010 and 2009 as all opt
were vested, and all related compensation expeas®&éen recognized, prior to the June 30, 2008lfiszar.
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13. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Company’s 401(k) Plan (the “Plardjows employees who have completed six monthepfice to make voluntary contributions up -
maximum of 100% of their annual compensation, dsee in the Plan. The Company may, in its disorgtimake a matching contributior
profit sharing contribution, a qualified naective contribution, and/or a safe harbor 40tgtribution to the Plan. The Company must n
an annual election, at the beginning of the plaar,yas to whether it will make a safe harbor cbotion to the plan. In fiscal years 2010
2009, the Company elected and made a safe harkichimg contributions of 100% of the participanfirst 3% and 50% of the next 2%
compensation deferred into the Plan. For fiscak y¥l1, the Company did not elect to make a safbdnacontribution to the plan. T
Companys safe harbor contributions for the years endeaé R 2010 and 2009 approximated $160,000 and @Q89respectively. Tt
Company'’s discretionary contribution for the yeaded June 30, 2011 approximated $42,000.

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and, 200 Company incurred approximately $513,000 080, and $438,000, respectively
connection with legal services provided by a mendféhe Companys Board of Directors. At June 30, 2011 and 201pr@pmately $25,00
and $29,000, respectively, were due to this Boaeinber. During the years ended June 30, 2011, 281®,2009, the Company incur
approximately $0, $59,000, and $0 in connectiomwinsulting services provided by another membéh@iCompanys Board of Directors.
June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, no amounts wereodtiestBoard member, who resigned as a directthefCompany effective May 13, 2010.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company conducts its operations from variousifi@s under operating leases. The Company leasg&9 square feet of space locate
Malvern, Pennsylvania for its principal executiviia@ and used for general administrative functicsedes activities, and product developn
In November 2010, the Company entered into an astwetehse of its principal executive office in MalvePennsylvania, which extended
lease term from December 31, 2010 to April 2016 @mendment includes rental payments of approxlyn&g9,000 to $32,000 as well a
four month period of no rent payments. The stralgigd rent expense for this office is approximat®®9,000 per month for the duration of
lease.

The Company also leases 13,377 square feet of slmmeged in Malvern, Pennsylvania for its produetrehousing, shipping and custol
support. In December 2010, the Company entereciimtamended lease of its operations site, alscalvévin, Pennsylvania, to extend the I
term from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 201dntMy lease payments are approximately $14,500.

Rent expense under operating leases was approyn$sé5,000, $616,000, and $612,000 during the yemaded June 30, 2011, 2010
2009, respectively. Future minimum lease paymamtsequent to June 30, 2011 under capital leases@mmhncellable operating leases al
follows:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases
2012 $ 79,33, % 439,84
2013 8,12¢ 360,07:
2014 677 368,69°
2015 - 377,32.
Thereafter - 321,26:
Total minimum lease paymer $ 88,13t $ 1,867,20:
Less amount representing inter 4,092
Present value of net minimum lease paym 84,04
Less current obligations under capital leases 75,82¢
Obligations under capital leases, less currenigro $ 8,21¢
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

On September 24, 2009, Mr. Jensen and the Compdased into an Amended and Restated Employmentehgeat which replaced his pr
employment agreement. The Agreement extended thredEMr. Jensers employment with the Company from June 30, 201il 8aptembe
30, 2012, and will automatically continue from yéauyear thereafter unless terminated as of theoénide original term or any such one
renewal period by the Company or Mr. Jensen bgast|90days notice. Mr. Jensen was granted 30,000 shawesronon stock under the 2C
Stock Incentive Plan which vested as follows: 10,68 October 1, 2009; 10,000 on April 1, 2010; 4800 on September 30, 2010.

The agreement continued Mr. Jensehase salary at $365,000 per annum. The agreamgmtes Mr. Jensen to devote his full time
attention to the business and affairs of the Compand obligates him not to engage in any investmenactivities which would compete w
the Company during the term of the agreement andafperiod of two years thereafter. The Company d@®ed to obtain and pay

premiums for a term life insurance policy in thecamt of $2,000,000 on the life of Mr. Jensen whiteis employed by the Company.

Jensen has the right to designate the beneficfatyegolicy. The Company has agreed to obtaingydthe premiums for a supplemental |
term disability policy covering Mr. Jensen over aafibve the existing longprm group disability plan of the Company. If healstbecom
disabled while employed by the Company, the polisyuld provide for monthly disability coverage of wp 65% of his monthly ba
compensation payable to age 65 or death. If thieypwlould not provide at least 65% of his monthsb salary, then the Company has ag
to make monthly payments to Mr. Jensen in an ameguaél to the difference between the monthly bépedivided under such policy and 6
of Mr. Jensen’s monthly base salary; provided, hawrethat the Company’total obligation for such monthly payments sheit excee
$110,000.

The agreement also provides that if Mr. Jensen dvaefminate his employment with the Company for dygeason (as defined in -
agreement), or if the Company would terminate hipleyment without cause (as defined in the agre&mtren the Company would pay
him a lump sum equal to two times his base salargradbefore the termination of his employment aldiravested restricted stock awards
stock options would immediately become vested.diitéon, upon any such termination of Mr. Jensegrmployment, the Company has agr
at its cost, for a period of two years, to contibu@rovide Mr. Jensen with health, life and diigbbenefits substantially similar to those wt
he had been receiving immediately prior to the dditeermination. The term good reason as definetthénagreement, includes: (A) a mate
breach of the terms of the Agreement by the CompéB)ythe assignment by the Company to Mr. Jendeduties in any way materia
inconsistent with his authorities, duties, respbitiies, and status, as the Chief Executive OffioEthe Company, or a material reductiol
alteration in the nature or status of his authoudiyties, or responsibilities; (C) the Company @uMr. Jenser’annual base salary; or (C
material reduction by the Company in the kind eeleof employee benefits to which Mr. Jensen istiedtimmediately prior to such reduct
with the result that his overall benefit packageignificantly reduced unless such failure to comi a plan, policy, practice or arranger
pertains to all plan participants generally. As andition to Mr. Jensen receiving any payments anefies upon his termination of |
employment for good reason, Mr. Jensen shall haeewted and delivered (and not revoked) a relehaeyand all claims, suits, or cause
action against the Company and its affiliates imfoeasonably acceptable to the Company.

The agreement also provides that as a conditidghed€onsummation of a USA Transaction (as defireddvly), the successor to the Company’
business or assets would agree to assume andmeévforJensen’s employment agreement. If any sucheasor would not do so, Mr. Jensen’
employment would terminate on the date of the comeation of the USA Transaction, and the Companylevpay to Mr. Jensen a lump s
equal to two times his base salary on or beforddhaination of his employment, all unvested restd stock awards and stock options w
become immediately vested, and, at its cost, fpe@od of two years would continue to provide Menden with health, life and disabi
benefits substantially similar to those which hesiseiving immediately prior to the date of terntioa.

The agreement also provides that upon the occlereha USA Transaction, the Company will issue to J&nsen 140,000 shares of com
stock subject to adjustment for stock splits or bovations (the “Jensen Sharedi)r. Jensen is not required to pay any additionalsateratiol
for the Jensen Shares. At the time of any USA Taetisn, all of the Jensen Shares are automaticalgmed to be issued and outstan
immediately prior to any USA Transaction, and antitied to be treated as any other issued and andstg shares of common stocl
connection with such USA Transaction. The Jensearedhare irrevocable and fully vested, representurasonditional obligation of tt
Company, and will not be affected by the terminatbd Mr. Jensen’s employment with the Company for eeason whatsoever.

The term USA Transaction is defined as (i) the &itjon of fifty-one percent or more of the then outstanding vatexyrities entitled to vc
generally in the election of Directors of the Compéy any person, entity or group, or (ii) the apfa by the shareholders of the Compar
a reorganization, merger, consolidation, liquidatior dissolution of the Company, or the sale, gfan lease or other disposition of al
substantially all of the assets of the Companyjigra change in the composition of the Board afdators of the Company over a perioc
twelve (12) months or less such that the contindlingctors fail to constitute a majority of the Boa
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. Jensen endtérto an amendment to the employment agreeméetamendment extended the t
of Mr. Jensers employment with the Company from September 3@220ntil June 30, 2014. In connection with the admeent, and i
recognition of his dedicated and valuable servicthe Company and extending the term of his empétragreement, Mr. Jensen was is:
125,000 shares of common stock under the 2010 Stmektive Plan which vest as follows: 41,666 orriAp4, 2011; 41,667 on April 1
2012; and 41,667 on April 14, 2013.

On September 24, 2009, Mr. Herbert and the Compatsred into an Amended and Restated Employmergehgent which replaced his pi
employment agreement. The Agreement extended tireaeMr. Herberts employment with the Company from June 30, 201l 8eptembe
30, 2012, and will automatically continue from yéauyear thereafter unless terminated as of theoénide original term or any such one
renewal period by the Company or Mr. Herbert bieast 90days notice and Mr. Herbert was granted 9,000 shafreommon stock under 1
2008 Stock Incentive Plan which vested as folla8y800 on October 1, 2009; 3,000 on April 1, 201@] 8,000 on September 30, 2010.

The agreement continued Mr. Herbsrbase salary at $320,000 per annum. The agreeewmuites Mr. Herbert to devote his full time .
attention to the business and affairs of the Compand obligates him not to engage in any investmenactivities which would compete w
the Company during the term of the agreement andafperiod of two years thereafter. The Company d@®ed to obtain and pay
premiums for a term life insurance policy in thecamt of $1,500,000 on the life of Mr. Herbert while is employed by the Company.
Herbert has the right to designate the benefiaiithe policy. The Company has agreed to obtainpgaydthe premiums for a supplemental |
term disability policy covering Mr. Herbert overdiabove the existing longrm group disability plan of the Company. If heaktbecom
disabled while employed by the Company, the polisyuld provide for monthly disability coverage of wp 65% of his monthly ba
compensation payable to age 65 or death.

The agreement also provides that if Mr. Herbert ia@rminate his employment with the Company foodaeason (as defined in

agreement), or if the Company would terminate hipleyment without cause (as defined in the agre&mtren the Company would pay
him a lump sum equal to two times his base salargradbefore the termination of his employment aldiavested restricted stock awards
stock options would become immediately vested diditeon, upon any such termination of Mr. Herbggmployment, the Company has agr
at its cost, for a period of two years, to contitogrovide Mr. Herbert with health, life and didéb benefits substantially similar to thc
which he had been receiving immediately prior te tate of termination. The term good reason aséefin the agreement, includes: (4
material breach of the terms of the agreement byGbmpany; (B) the assignment by the Company to Hiérbert of duties in any w
materially inconsistent with his authorities, datier responsibilities, or a material reductioralteration in the nature or status of his authg
duties, or responsibilities as the President of @wenpany; (C) the Company reduces Mr. Herlseahnual base salary; or (D) a mat
reduction by the Company in the kind or level ofpdoyee benefits to which Mr. Herbert is entitlechirediately prior to such reduction with
result that his overall benefit package is sigaifity reduced unless such failure to continue a,pdalicy, practice or arrangement pertair
all plan participants generally. As a conditionMo. Herbert receiving any payments or benefits upantermination of his employment
good reason, Mr. Herbert shall have executed afideded (and not revoked) a release of any andlaiins, suits, or causes of action ag:
the Company and its affiliates in form reasonalglgegptable to the Company.

The agreement also provides that as a conditidcheoEonsummation of a USA Transaction (as definethé agreement), the successor t
Company’s business or assets would agree to assndheerform Mr. Herberd’ employment agreement. If any such successor wmitldo sc
Mr. Herberts employment would terminate on the date of consatiom of the USA Transaction, and the Company wgalg to Mr. Herbert
lump sum equal to two times his base salary oneforb the termination of his employment, all unedstestricted stock awards and s
options would become immediately vested, and satast, for a period of two years would continu@rtovide Mr. Herbert with health, life a
disability benefits substantially similar to thaghich he is receiving immediately prior to the dafeermination.

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. Herbert egdeinto an amendment to the employment agreerfibetamendment extended the t
of Mr. Herberts employment with the Company from September 3@22ntil June 30, 2014. In connection with the admeent, and i
recognition of his dedicated and valuable servicthe Company and extending the term of his empéntragreement, Mr. Herbert was iss
75,000 shares of common stock under the 2010 $teehtive Plan which vest as follows: 25,000 oniAp4, 2011; 25,000 on April 14, 20!
and 25,000 on April 14, 2013.
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

On April 12, 2005, Mr. DeMedio and the Company esdeinto an employment agreement pursuant to whe&hvas employed as the Cli
Financial Officer of the Company. The term of tlggeeement is for one year and will automaticallytoare from year to year thereafter un
terminated as of the end of the original term or sch one year renewal period by the Company orDdMedio by at least 98ays notice
The agreement requires Mr. DeMedio to devote Hidifue and attention to the business and affairdie Company, and obligates him nc
engage in any investments or activities which wardchpete with the Company during the term of thee@gent and for a period of one y
thereafter. In the event that a USA Transactiordéfmed in Mr. Jensea’employment agreement) shall occur, then Mr. DéMhds the rigt
to terminate his agreement upon 30 days noticegCompany.

During September 2008, Mr. DeMedio and the Compamtgred into an amendment to his employment agmneemeasuant to which he w
granted 25,000 shares of common stock under th8 3@ick Incentive Plan which vested as follows08,0n September 15, 2008; 8,00(
January 15, 2009; and 9,000 on June 30, 2009.

On September 24, 2009, the Company agreed to obtaipay the premiums for a term life insurancécgah the amount of $750,000 on
life of Mr. DeMedio while he is employed by the Cpamy. Mr. DeMedio has the right to designate theeffieiary of the policy. The Compa
has agreed to obtain and pay the premiums for plemental long term disability policy covering MdeMedio over and above the exis!
longterm group disability plan of the Company. If heallbecome disabled while employed by the Compaémy,policy would provide f
monthly disability coverage of up to 65% of his rtitdyp base compensation payable to age 65 or ddditr. DeMedio’s employment with tt
Company would be terminated without cause, the Gomhas agreed, at its cost, to continue to proMdeDeMedio with health insuran
benefits substantially similar to those which heeseiving immediately prior to the date of terntioa for a one year period following st
termination.

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMedio esmdeinto an additional amendment to the employnagreement. The agreem
extended the term of Mr. DeMed&Eemployment with the Company from June 30, 201l dune 30, 2014, and will automatically conti
from year to year thereafter unless terminatedfahenend of the original term or any such one yeaewal period by the Company or
DeMedio by at least 9@ays notice. In connection with the amendment,iamdcognition of his dedicated and valuable sert@the Compar
and extending the term of his employment agreemdntPeMedio was issued 25,000 shares of commorkatader the 2010 Stock Incent
Plan which vest or vested as follows: 8,333 on IApti 2011; 8,333 on April 14, 2012; and 8,334 qriAl4, 2013.

Effective July 1, 2011, Mr. DeMedio’s annual baatasy was increased to $230,000.
16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

During July 2011, the Company financed a portiorthef premiums for various insurance policies to@l$90,372 due in nine equal mon
installment payments of $10,283 at an interestobe57%.

During August 2011, the Company entered into varioapital leases for network equipment and maimenaontracts on the equipm
totaling approximately $465,000, due in thirty-sigual monthly payments of $14,145 through July 28t1@n interest rate of 5.99%.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

On September 15, 2011, at the recommendation ofCiwmpensation Committee, the board of directorsptatb the Fiscal Year 20
Performance Share Plan (the “2012 Plan”) covetigGompany’s executive officersMessrs. Jensen, Herbert and DeMedio. Under the
Plan, each executive officer will be awarded comratock in the event the Company achieves targdsghaing the fiscal year ending Ji
30, 2012 relating to the total number of connedjdatal revenues, operating expenses, and opgredimings. Operating earnings is define
earnings before interest and taxes (after bonusialscand stock awards) and before operating gains or losses. The number of eli
shares to be awarded to the executives is basadthpdollowing weightings: 30% by the total numleérconnections; 30% by total revent
10% by operating expenses; and 30% by operatingreg. No awards would be made under the 2012 iPkither (i) none of the minimur
threshold performance target goals have been aathieor (ii) if operating earnings for the 2012 &kgear are not equal or better than tl
during the 2011 fiscal year.

If all of the target performance goals are achietiee executive officers would be awarded the feitg number of shares: Mr. Jens@25,00(
shares; Mr. Herbert — 120,000 shares; and Mr. Déd4e80,000 shares. If all of the minimum, thresholdf@enance target goals are achie!
the executive officers would be awarded 20% ofrthmber of shares which would have been awardeletm if all of the target performar
goals had been achieved. If all of the maximumtirisiished performance target goals are achievedexecutive officers would be awar
150% of the number of shares which would have lzesrded to them if all of the target performancalgdad been achieved. If the ac
results for the fiscal year are less than the tagygels (but greater than the minimum, thresholdopmance target goals), each executive w
be awarded a lesspro rataportion of the number of eligible shares.

In the event of the occurrence of a USA Transadfianng the fiscal year, and provided that the etige is an employee of USA on the dat
such USA Transaction, the Plan shall be terminatetieach executive shall be awarded shares ags dftle of such USA Transaction as i



of the target performance goals had been met.dretient that the executigeémployment with the Company is terminated byGbenpany fo
cause during the fiscal year, or if the executegigns his employment for any reason other thagdod reason during the fiscal year, ther
executive shall not be entitled to earn any awardien the 2012 Plan. In the event that the execatigmployment with the Company shal
terminated by the Company during the fiscal yeamafty reason whatsoever other than for cause,tbe iéxecutives employment is terminat
by the executive for good reason during the figear, then the executive shall be awarded sharédsaliof the target performance goals

been meet. If the executive&émployment is terminated during the fiscal yesaa aesult of death or disability, the executivallshevertheless |
eligible to earn shares under the 2012 Plan as fifdd remained employed with the Company througletid of the fiscal year.

Notwithstanding the above description of the 20lghPthe executives would receive shares from the@ny pursuant to the 2012 Plan «
if and to the extent that shares would be availéblbe issued to the executives under the exigligl stock incentive plan or another si
plan that has been approved by the shareholdefsed€ompany in accordance with NASDAQ Listing RE&35(c). If there would not be
sufficient number of shares available to be issiwethe executives, the Company would pay to thewkees an amount of cash equal to
value of those shares not available to be issu#tktexecutives. In such event, the executives dvbalrequired to utilize the cash payment
of any withholding, payroll or other taxes attriglte to the cash payment, to purchase shares ahoanstock of the Company on the o
market.
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16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Jemgered into an amended and restated employmergragré, as well as the Jensen S
Agreement described below. The new employment aggaecontinued substantially all of the previousneand conditions of his employm
agreement other than the provisions related taJ#msen Shares. The new agreement did not contieuprovisions of his prior agreem
which obligated the Company to pay any excise takgbutable to any excess parachute paymentshwiizild be payable to Mr. Jensen u
the occurrence of a USA Transaction as well asQbmpany's obligation to pay tax gross up paymettittbatable to such excise taxes.
new agreement also stated that the premiums fodéfrsers supplemental long term disability policy beingdoby the Company would nc
be included in his wages and be taxable to hinexthange for modifying the excise tax and relatedgup provisions, the Company issue
aggregate of 150,000 shares of common stock toJelsen under its stock incentive plans which vesibolows: 50,000 on the date
agreement was signed by Mr. Jensen and the ComBa&@90 on the first anniversary of the date ohsig; and 50,000 on the sect
anniversary of the date of signing.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Jerisereatered into a new agreement (the “Jensen $tgokement”)which contained tf
provisions relating to the issuance by the Compganyir. Jensen of the Jensen Shares which had prEyibeen set forth in his employm
agreement. The provisions of Mr. Jenseprior employment agreement which required the g to pay any excise taxes attributable ti
excess parachute payments attributable to the d&tsares as well as the related obligation to niakeross up payments have been ret:
in the Jensen Stock Agreement and continue to dpplye Jensen Shares.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Hesrgred into a second amendment to his employngmeiement. The amendm
eliminated the provisions of his prior agreemeniclhobligated the Company to pay any excise taxgguatable to any excess paract
payments which would be received by Mr. Herbertrupgte occurrence of a USA Transaction as well agtbmpany s related obligation
make tax gross up payments. The new agreemenstalisl that the premiums for Mr. Herbsrsupplemental long term disability policy be
paid by the Company would now be included in higesand be taxable to him. In exchange for elirmgahe excise tax and related gros
provisions, the Company issued an aggregate o000Cshares of common stock to Mr. Herbert undestitsk incentive plans which vest
follows: 33,333 on the date the agreement was ditpyeMr. Herbert and the Company; 33,333 on th& finniversary of the date of signi
and 33,334 on the second anniversary of the datigoing.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMextiered into another amendment to his employmemeagent pursuant to which |
DeMedio was granted an aggregate of 25,000 shdresnamon stock as a bonus for his performance dutie last six months of the 2(
fiscal year which vest as follows: 8,333 on theedait signing the amendment; 8,333 on the first\eemsiary of such signing date; and 8,33
the second anniversary of such signing date. MM&#o also agreed that the premiums for his supefeal long term disability policy bei
paid by the Company would now be included in hig@gand be taxable to him.

INTERCHANGE RATES

On September 14, 2011, we were notified by ElaWon, (“Elavon”), our United States credit and debit card procesbkat,effective October
2011, Visa and MasterCard will significantly raigeir interchange fees for small ticket debit camhsactions issued by regulated ban}
defined under the “Durbin Amendmentid the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumetetion Act of 2010. If the Compa
continues to accept debit cards, then pursuantit@entract with Elavon, we are obligated to pay¥tavon the increases in these interchi
rates. The interchange rate would increase frori%.b6f a transaction plus 4 cents, to 0.5% of astation plus 22 cents, which represent
increase of approximately 247% based on a tramsaofi $1.67, which was the average transactionréxpeed by the Company during fis
year 2011. During the fiscal year ended June 30128pproximately 82% of the transactions handledur network consisted of small tic
debit card transactions. Of such debit card traiwas; it is estimated that 70% of those were dihiisactions from regulated banks or iss
Therefore, approximately 57% of all our transactibandled would be affected by the new rate.

The Company, and its card processor (Elavon), anewtly in discussions with the card associatimndiscuss the impact of the rate incre¢
in order to attempt to negotiate a viable ratecstme. In addition to these discussions, the Comes formulated steps that it is contemple
to implement, as it does not intend to incur theease in these costs. At the present time, weotgredict how not accepting debit cards
other steps we are contemplating would affect asirtess.

VERIZON WIRELESS JOINT MARKETING AGREEMENT
On September 21, 2011, the Company and Verizon [¥¢Beentered into a Joint Marketing Addendum (tWerizon Agreement”)which
amended the three year agreement previously enitgieedy them in April 2011. Pursuant to the Verizagreement, Verizon Wireless and

Company would work together to help identify bussepportunities for the Compasyproducts and services. The Verizon Agreeme
terminable by either party upon 45 days noticeraiite months.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountéon Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceslure

The principal executive officer and principal firigad officer have evaluated the Compamgisclosure controls and procedures as of Jur
2011. Based on this evaluation, they concludettiatdisclosure controls and procedures were effetti ensure that the information requ
to be disclosed by the Company in the reports ithfites or submits under the Securities Exchange &f 1934 is recorded, process
summarized and reported, within the time periodscsied in the Commissior’rules and forms and to ensure that informatiguired to b
disclosed by the Company in the reports thateisfibr submits under the Securities Exchange AtB8# is accumulated and communicate
the Companys management, including its principal executive gnigcipal financial officers, or persons performisimilar functions, ¢
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure.

(b) Management'’s annual report on internal cortka@r financial reporting.

Management of the Company is responsible for a@stdby and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting as defined
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). The Company'’s intecoatrol over financial reporting is a processeféd by the Company’'management
provide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjalbil financial reporting and the preparation bkEtCompanys financial statements 1
external purposes in accordance with U.S. geneaaltgpted accounting principles.

In designing and evaluating our disclosure contesld procedures, our management recognized thelbslise controls and procedures
matter how well conceived and operated, can prowidg a reasonable, not absolute, assurance thatijectives of the disclosure controls
procedures are met.

The Companys management assessed the effectiveness of iteahteontrol over financial reporting as of Juneg 3011. In making th
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by tbhmr@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of Tmeadway Commission in Inter
Control—Integrated Framework. Based on its assessmenagement believes that, as of June 30, 2B&1Companys internal control ov
financial reporting is effective.

This annual report does not include an attestatimort of the Company’ registered public accounting firm regarding ing&rcontrol ove
financial reporting. Management’s report was ndbject to attestation by the Compasyegistered public accounting firm pursuant ti
exemption for smaller reporting companies undeti®e®89G of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform &uwhsumer Protection Act.

(c) Changes in internal control over financial ndjpgy.

There have been no changes during the quarter ehdesl 30, 2011 in the Compasyihternal controls over financial reporting thatve
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenglly affect, internal control over financialperting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

Not Applicable.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Our Directors and executive officers, on August3111, together with their ages and business bacdkgis were as follows:

Name Age Position(s) Helc
George R. Jensen, . 62 Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board afdators
Stephen P. Herbe 48 Chief Operating Officer and President, Direc
David M. DeMedic 40 Chief Financial Office!
Douglas M. Luric 54 Secretary and Directt
Joel Brooks(2 52 Director
Steven D. Barnhart(1)(2)(: 49 Director
Jack E. Price(1)(2)(< 65 Director
Bradley M. Tirpak(3’ 41 Director
@ Member of Compensation Committ
(2) Member of Audit Committe
3) Member of Nominating Committe

George R. Jensen, Jrhas been our Chief Executive Officer, Chairmad amirector since our inception in January 1992. Mnsers currer
term as a Director expires at the 2012 annual Bbéders’ meeting. Mr. Jensen was Chairman, Director, anceifCBkecutive Officer ¢
American Film Technologies, Inc. (“AFT") from 19&mtil 1992. AFT was in the business of creatingocahaged versions of black-andhite
films. From 1979 to 1985, Mr. Jensen was Chief ltige Officer and President of International Filmo&uctions, Inc. Mr. Jensen was
Executive Producer of the twelve hour miniseries,D.”, a $35 million dollar production filmed in Tunisi&rocter and Gamble, Inc.,
primary source of funds, goroduced and sponsored the epic, which aired irctM&885 for five consecutive nights on the NBC roetw Mr.
Jensen was also the Executive Producer for the 488&al for public television, “A Tribute to Priegs Grace”From 1971 to 1978, Mr. Jens
was a securities broker, primarily for the firm ®ith Barney, Harris Upham. Mr. Jensen was chosaheal989 Entrepreneur of the Yee
the high technology category for the Philadelpttannsylvania area by Ernst & Young LLP and Inc. Mage. Mr. Jensen received
Bachelor of Science Degree from the University ehilessee and is a graduate of the Advanced Manag®mgram at the Wharton Schoa
the University of Pennsylvania. From 1996 until Bta2006, Mr. Jensen was a Director of The Noah FWel believe Mr. Jensemposition a
the founder and Chief Executive Officer of our Camyp, his intimate knowledge and experience withaalpects of our company, and
exceptional leadership and entrepreneurial skitvige the requisite qualifications, skills, persipees, and experiences to serve on our E
of Directors.

Stephen P. Herbemvas elected a Director in April 1996, and joinee fiompany on a fulime basis on May 6, 1996 as Executive "
President. During August 1999, Mr. Herbert was apged President and Chief Operating Officer of @@mmpany. Mr. Herber$ current term ¢
a Director expires at the 2012 annual shareholdeegting. Prior to joining us and since 1986, Merlbert had been employed by PePsia
the beverage division of PepsiCo, Inc. From 199Apoil 1996, Mr. Herbert was a Manager of Marketatgy. In such position he v
responsible for directing development of markeatstgy for the vending channel and subsequenthstipermarket channel for Pefg3dla ir
North America. Prior thereto, Mr. Herbert held wars sales and management positions with -Cola. Mr. Herbert graduated with a Bach
of Science degree from Louisiana State Univerde believe Mr. Herber$' position as the President and Chief Operatingc@ffof ou
Company, his intimate knowledge and experience waitlaspects of our Company, and his extensive ingnexperience at PepsiCo bel
joining our Company provide the requisite qualifioas, skills, perspectives, and experiences teesen our Board of Director

David M. DeMedicjoined the Company on a fuilme basis in March 1999 as Controller. In the sanof 2001, Mr. DeMedio was promotec
Director of Financial Services where he was resiptm$or the sales and financial data reportingustomers, the Comparsyturnkey bankin
services and maintaining and developing relatiqgysh¥ith credit card processors and card assocg@tionJuly 2003, Mr. DeMedio served
interim Chief Financial Officer through April 200Brom April 2004 until April 2005, Mr. DeMedio sexd as Vice Presidentrinancial & Dati
Services. On April 12, 2005, he was appointed as@bmpanys Chief Financial Officer. From 1996 to March 19%®ior to joining th
Company, Mr. DeMedio had been employed by Elkochés, Cunnane and Associates, LLC as a supervisits accounting and auditing ¢
consulting practice. Prior thereto, Mr. DeMediochghrious accounting positions with Intelligent &lenics, Inc., a multbillion reseller o
computer hardware and configuration services. MeMBdio graduated with a Bachelor of Science in Bess Administration fro
Shippensburg University and is a Certified Publiccéuntant. From October 2007 until September 2008, DeMedio was a Director
GammacCan International, Inc.
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Douglas M. Lurigjoined the Board of Directors of the Company ineJd®899 and was appointed Secretary of the CompaS8gptember 201
Mr. Lurio’s current term as a Director expires la¢ 2012 annual shareholderseeting. Mr. Lurio is President of Lurio & Asso@sat P.C
attorneys-ataw, which he founded in 1991. He specializes m phactice of corporate and securities law. Phiereto, he was a partner v
Dilworth, Paxson LLP. Mr. Lurio received a BachetidrArts Degree in Government from Franklin & Maa#iiCollege, a Juris Doctor Deg!
from Villanova Law School, and a Masters in Law X@ton) from Temple Law School. We believe Mr. laig legal background, his serv
as corporate counsel to the Company since 1992hinithtimate knowledge and experience with mameats of our Company provide
requisite qualifications, skills, perspectives, axgeriences to serve on our Board of Directors.

Joel Brooksjoined the Board of Directors of the Company durihgrch 2007. Mr. Brooksturrent term as a Director expires at the 2012 al
shareholdersmeeting. Mr. Brooks is the Chairman of our Auditn@uittee. Since December 2000, Mr. Brooks has seasdhe Chie
Financial Officer and Treasurer of Senesco Teclgiey Inc., a biotechnology company whose sharestraded on the NYSE Am
Exchange. From September 1998 until November 2BDB0Brooks was the Chief Financial Officer of BladBoard and Skate, LLC, a re
establishment specializing in the action sportaigtiy. Mr. Brooks was Chief Financial Officer frat®97 until 1998 and Controller from 1¢
until 1997 of Cable and Company Worldwide, Inc. &lgo held the position of Controller at USA Detenge Inc. from 1992 until 1994, a
held various positions at several public accounfings from 1983 through 1992. Mr. Brooks receivieid Bachelor of Science degree
Commerce with a major in Accounting from Rider Usmsity in February 1983. We believe Mr. Brookxtensive accounting and finai
background, and his executive experience at SenEscionologies provide the requisite qualificatiosid]ls, perspectives, and experience
serve on our Board of Directors.

Steven D. Barnhanvas appointed to the Board of Directors in Octab@®9. Mr. Barnhart is Chairman of our Nominatingn@oittee and
member of our Audit and Compensation Committees. Béarnhart's current term as a Director expireghat 2012 annual shareholders’
meeting. Since January 2010, Mr. Barnhart has Besior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficEBally Total Fitness. Mr. Barnhart w
Chief Executive Officer and President of Orbitz \'daride from 2007 to January 2009, after holdingentbxecutive positions since 2003, w
he joined the company. Prior to Orbitz Worldwide, Wworked for PepsiCo and the Pepsi Bottling Gragmf1990 to 2003, where he v
Finance Director for the Southeast Business UnthefPepsi Bottling Group, and also held otheraegli and strategic positions for Peps
and FritoLay. Mr. Barnhart received a Bachelor of Sciencgrée in Economics in 1984 from the University ofiélgo and a Masters
Business Administration in 1988 from the UniversifyChicago. Mr. Barnhart served on the Board akbBiors of Orbitz Worldwide (NYSI
OWW) from July 2007 to January 2009. We believe Blrnharts extensive executive experience and leadershig,skind prior public boa
experience provide the requisite qualificationsllskperspectives, and experiences to serve oBoard of Directors.

Jack E. Pricewas appointed to the Board of Directors in Octdh@9. Mr. Price is Chairman of our Compensation @ittee and a member
our Nominating Committee and Audit Committee. MricE’s current term as a Director expires at th&28nnual shareholdensieeting. Mr
Price was President and Chief Executive OfficeNofaRay Medical Inc. from 2007 to March 2009. Ptiothat, he was President and C
Executive Officer of VSM MedTech Ltd. from 2003 2006, and was President and Division Chief Exeeutfficer of Philips Medic:
Systems, North America from 1996 to 2003, haviriggd Philips Medical Systems in 1993 as Vice Pessichnd General Manager. He
also with General Electric Medical Systems from 8881993, where he held Vice President and Geaabger positions. Mr. Price recei
his undergraduate degree from the University ofgOne Mr. Price is also Chairman of The RadiologiBakiety of North America Board
Trustees. Mr. Price served on the Board of DirectifrNovaRay Medical, Inc. from 2007 to 2009 andHeflth Solutions Systems, Inc. fr
May 1, 2008 to March 2010. We believe Mr. Pricextensive executive experience, leadership skilid prior public company bo:
experience provide the requisite qualificationsljskperspectives, and experiences to serve oBoard of Directors.

Bradley M. Tirpakjoined the Board of Directors in February 2010. Mrpak is a member of our Nominating Committee. Nirpak’s currer
term as a Director expires at the 2012 annual blokders’ meeting. Since 2008, Mr. Tirpak has beaeldemployed investor who manage
portfolio of equities, fixed income and private @gunvestments. Mr. Tirpak also advises senior agament and members of public comg
boards of directors on corporate governance, sfyatand capital allocation. In 2008, Mr. Tirpak wasSenior Vice President at Chil
Investment Company in London. From 2003 to 2007, Mrpak was a Portfolio Manager at Sigma Capitalndlgement, managing a $.
million equity portfolio within a large multstrategy investment fund, affiliated with S.A.C.g@al Advisors, L.P. From 2000 to 2003, |
Tirpak was a Portfolio Manager at Caxton Associafgem 1997 to 2000, Mr. Tirpak was an analyst eirah Vice President at Credit Sui
First Boston. From 1993 to 1996 Mr. Tirpak was filnender and president of Access Telecom, Inc. angp&Access de Mexico S.A. de C.
telecommunications companies. Mr. Tirpak holds & B.E. from Tufts University and an M.B.A. from Ggetown University. Pursuant to -
Settlement Agreement dated February 4, 2010 betweeiCompany, Shareholder Advocates for Value Ecdrament (the “Committee anc
certain other parties, the Committee appointed Nhpak as its director nominee, and the Compangedito nominate and recommend
Tirpak for election to the Board as a Class Il Diog with a term expiring at the 2012 annual shalddr’ meeting. Pursuant to the Settlen
Agreement, the Company also agreed to appoint pak, as the Committeg’'nominee, to the Nominating Committee. In Junel2@he
Nominating Committee informed Mr. Tirpak that he wld not be nominated by the Company to serve agector for election at the 20
annual shareholders’ meeting.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit Conemsitpresently consisting of each of Mr. Brooks (@han), Mr. Barnhart and Mr. Price. |
Price was appointed as a member of the Audit Cotamion July 8, 2011, and replaced Mr. Michel whiestgnation was accepted by
Board of Directors on June 28, 2011. The CompamBoard of Directors has determined that Joel Bsaskthe Audit Committee financ
expert serving on the Audit Committee as definedippglicable SEC rules. The Board has also detedrtimat Mr. Brooks is “independendt
such term is defined by applicable SEC rules.

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS
Our Board has adopted a Code of Ethics, which eppb all executive officers, directors and empésyef the Company, including our Ci

Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chieingncial Officer, and Controller. A copy of our Goadf Business Conduct and Ethic
accessible on the Company’s website, www.usaterh.co
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Item 11. Executive Compensation.
Compensation Discussion And Analysis

During the 2009 fiscal year, and through Octobed®Q0ur Compensation Committee consisted of Stédegm and William Van Alen, J
Effective October 2009, our Compensation Committeasisted of Mr. Katz, Mr. Van Alen and Jack Priédfective February 2010, c
Compensation Committee consisted of Mr. Katz, Micd®and Peter Michel. Effective May 2010 and tlylodune 28, 2011, our Compensa
Committee was comprised of Jack Price, Steven Batnand Peter Michel. Effective June 28, 2011, #imdugh the date of this Form XQ-
the Compensation Committee consists of Messrs.ePaied Barnhart. The Compensation Committee is ressple for reviewing ar
recommending compensation and compensation chaogethe executive officers of the Company. The cengation of the two oth
employees named in the Summary Compensation Tabbietermined by the executive officers. The Chigédutive Officer assists t
Committee in determining the compensation of dileotexecutive officers and the other executivecef do not have a role in determir
their own compensation. Our Chief Executive Officegularly provides information to the Compensatidommittee. The Compensat
Committee considers each component of executivepeosation in light of total compensation. In coesidg adjustments to the tc
compensation of the executive officers, the Comatms Committee also considers the value of previcempensation. The Compensa
Committee has retained a compensation consultanjeamed necessary, to assist the Committee to mgkepriate recommendatic
regarding the executive officer's compensation.

We have developed a compensation policy that isgded to attract and retain key executives respbadior our success and motiv
management to enhance long-term shareholder vEhgeCompensation Committee believes that compemsafi the Companyg’ executiv
officers should encourage creation of shareholaérevand achievement of strategic corporate objestnd the Committee seeks to aligr
interests of the Company’s shareholders and managfelny integrating compensation with the Compamyisual and longerm corporate at
financial objectives. We believe that providing @xecutive officers who have responsibility for thempanys management and growth v
an opportunity to increase their ownership of Conypatock aligns the interests of the executivecefs with those of the shareholder:
furtherance thereof, in April 2011, the Board ameid Stock Ownership Guidelines that were recommeyethe Compensation Committ
These guidelines provide that the Chief Executif&cer should own shares with a value of at lehsté times his annual base salary, the (
Operating Officer should own shares with a valuatdéast two times his annual base salary, an€thef Financial Officer should own sha
with a value of at least one time his annual badarg. The guidelines provide that the executiviicefs have a period of five years to at
these levels of ownership.

In order to be competitive with compensation offetey other companies in our custom peer group, caspded by our compensati
consultant, and to motivate and retain executiizers, the Company intends to offer a total conga¢ion package competitive with ot
companies in our custom peer group as well asitakeaccount individual responsibilities and penfi@nce. The annual compensation pac
for our executives primarily consists of:

° a base salan

° stock options

° restricted stock award

° cash and stock bonust

° long-term stock incentive award
° other benefits

We believe that each of our executive offisgperformance during the 2011 fiscal year was éxugland we attempted to appropriately rev
each of these executives for such performance gfwoamong other things, restricted stock awards extdnsions of their employm:
contracts.

Base Salary

Base salary is the fixed component of our executifieer’'s annual cash compensation and is set with theajastracting talented executi
and adequately compensating and rewarding therseiices rendered during the fiscal year. Our etkezwfficers’ employment agreemel
specify the level of salary to which the officereistitled, subject to review of our board of dimstor Compensation Committee from tim
time. During September 2008, and in connection \lith execution of amendments to their employmenéergents, we increased eacl
Messrs. Jensen’s and Herbsiase salary by approximately twelve percent. Bagp®n other components of compensation receiveithdy
subsequent to September 2008, primarily restristedk awards and long term stock incentive awands,have not increased these |
salaries. Effective July 1, 2011, we increased dM¥Medio’s base salary approximately eighteen percent iardadfor his base salary to m
competitive with the base salaries of chief finahdfficers of the companies in our custom peemgras compiled by our compensa
consultant. The base salaries of our executiveafi reflect the individua' level of responsibility and performance. In reaoending bas
salaries of our executive officers to the boardlioéctors, the Compensation Committee also consideanges in duties and responsibili
our business and financial results, the relatignsimong base salaries paid to others within our g@my, and its knowledge of base salz
paid to executive officers of our custom peer grollpe base salaries for each of Messrs. Sagady antbr are set forth in their respect
employment agreements, and were established bipresident after discussions with each employee.
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As set forth in their respective employment agre@sieupon the termination of Mr. Jensen’s or Mr.ritéet's employment under cert:
circumstances, including termination by them withod cause or by the Company without cause, the @oynpas agreed to pay them t
base salary for a period of two years followingrteration of employment. We believe that these miovis are an important component of
executive's employment arrangements.

Stock Options

Stock options serve to ensure that executive manegeis properly focused on shareholder value.kStqtions align management incenti
with shareholdes objectives because options granted at fair Vadwe value only if the stock price increases oweetA vesting schedule al
keeps the executives focused on long term perfocmand not short term gains. No stock options leen issued to our executive officer
employees during the 2009, 2010, or 2011 fiscatsiea

Restricted Stock Awards

During the 2009, 2010, and 2011 fiscal years, tbm@ensation Committee has recommended that restratock be awarded to our exect
officers. These restricted stock awards becomesdester a period of time, and are issued undeCtmapanys incentive stock compensat
plans. During September 2008, and based upon gafstrmance and in consideration of the executiommaendments to their employm
agreements, we awarded an aggregate of 220,008sstaour executive officers under our stock ineenplans. During September 2009,
in conjunction with the execution of their amendedi restated employment agreements, we awardedggagate of 39,000 shares under
stock incentive plan as a bonus to Messrs. Jensarbert. During April 2011, and based upon pasformance and in consideration of
extension of their employment agreements, we awlbatleaggregate of 225,000 shares under our stoektive plan to our executive office
During September 2011, we issued 150,000 sharesrunot incentive stock plan to Mr. Jensen and 10D $hares under our incentive st
plan to Mr. Herbert in exchange for the eliminatmfincertain provisions in their employment agreetaerquiring the Company to pay ext
taxes and related tax gross up payments in commegtith excess parachute payments in the eventtbhage in control of the Company. *
Compensation Committee as well as the executivieesf believed that these provisions were no loaggropriate given current compensa
practices and represented good corporate governBueiang September 2011, we issued 25,000 sharésrwur incentive stock plan to !
DeMedio as a bonus for performance during thedixstnonths of the 2011 fiscal year.

Cash and Stock Bonuses

In addition to base salary, we may award variakblghcbonus awards to our executives as well as slaamglable under our incentive st
compensation plans.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

On September 15, 2011, at the recommendation ofCivmpensation Committee, the board of directorsptatb the Fiscal Year 20
Performance Share Plan (the “2012 Plan”) covetigGompany’s executive officersMessrs. Jensen, Herbert and DeMedio. Under the
Plan, each executive officer will be awarded comratmtk in the event the Company achieves targdsghaing the fiscal year ending Ji
30, 2012 relating to the total number of connedjdatal revenues, operating expenses, and opgrimings. Operating earnings is define
earnings before interest and taxes (after bonusialscand stock awards) and before operating gains or losses. The number of eli
shares to be awarded to the executives is basedtbpdollowing weightings: 30% by the total numloérconnections; 30% by total revent
10% by operating expenses; and 30% by operatingreg. No awards would be made under the 2012 iPkither (i) none of the minimur
threshold performance target goals have been amthier (ii) if operating earnings for the 2012 &kgear are not equal or better than tl
during the 2011 fiscal year.

If all of the target performance goals are achietieel executive officers would be awarded the feiigg number of shares: Mr. Jens@25,00(
shares; Mr. Herbert — 120,000 shares; and Mr. Déd4e80,000 shares. If all of the minimum, thresholdf@enance target goals are achie'
the executive officers would be awarded 20% ofrthmber of shares which would have been awardeletm if all of the target performar
goals had been achieved. If all of the maximumtjrdisiished performance target goals are achievedexecutive officers would be awar
150% of the number of shares which would have l@esrded to them if all of the target performancalgdad been achieved. If the ac
results for the fiscal year are less than the taggels (but greater than the minimum, thresholdopmance target goals), each executive w
be awarded a lesspro rataportion of the number of eligible shares.

In the event of the occurrence of a USA Transadiiarng the fiscal year, and provided that the exge is an employee of USA on the dat
such USA Transaction, the Plan shall be terminatetieach executive shall be awarded shares ag dbtk of such USA Transaction as i
of the target performance goals had been metdmretent that the executigémployment with the Company is terminated byGbenpany fo
cause during the fiscal year, or if the executegigns his employment for any reason other thagdod reason during the fiscal year, ther
executive shall not be entitled to earn any awardien the 2012 Plan. In the event that the execatigmployment with the Company shal
terminated by the Company during the fiscal yeamafty reason whatsoever other than for cause,tbei&éxecutives employment is terminat
by the executive for good reason during the figear, then the executive shall be awarded shardsaliof the target performance goals

been meet. If the executive&émployment is terminated during the fiscal yesaa aesult of death or disability, the executivallshevertheless |
eligible to earn shares under the 2012 Plan as ifdd remained employed with the Company througletid of the fiscal year.

Notwithstanding the above description of the 20lghPthe executives would receive shares from the@ny pursuant to the 2012 Plan «
if and to the extent that shares would be availédblbe issued to the executives under the exifO1dl stock incentive plan or another si
plan that has been approved by the shareholdefsed€ompany in accordance with NASDAQ Listing RE&35(c). If there would not be
sufficient number of shares available to be issizethe executives, the Company would pay to the@iees an amount of cash equal to



value of those shares not available to be issu#tktexecutives. In such event, the executives dvbalrequired to utilize the cash payment
of any withholding, payroll or other taxes attriglte to the cash payment, to purchase shares ahoanstock of the Company on the o
market.
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Long-Term Stock Incentive Awards

During February 2007, at the recommendation ofGbenpensation Committee, the board of directors tdbthe LTIP Program covering
Company’s executive officers Messrs. Jensen, Herbert and DeMedio. The purpogbedfTIP Program was to ensure continuity of
Companys executives, encourage stock ownership by theuéixes, align the interests of the executives wfithse of the shareholders, .
provide incentives and rewards to the executives wate largely responsible for the management apnatgr of the Company. The LT
Program expired on June 30, 2010.

Under the LTIP Program, each executive officer wasrded common stock of the Company in the evenCibmpany achieved target gc
relating to each of revenues, GP and EBITDA dugagh of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 3un2008, and June 30, 2010. EBITD.
defined as earnings before interest, taxes, degireej and amortization, and excludes maish stock payments/awards and stock of
granted to officers and members of the board ddatiars. During each such fiscal year, the numbegligible shares to be awarded to
executive was based upon the following weightiri@®s of eligible shares was determined by revens@%; of eligible shares was determi
by GP; and 30% of eligible shares was determineEB§ DA.

If the target goal (100%) for revenues, GP, andTEB\ was achieved by the Company during the appléeéibcal year, the executive offici
would be awarded the following number of shares: J&nsen — 178,570 shares; Mr. Herbert — 53,718shand Mr. DeMedio 21,66«
shares.

If actual revenues, GP, or EBITDA for a particuliscal year exceeded the target goals, each execuduld be awarded additional eligi
shares, up to an amount no greater than 125% ofuhmer of eligible shares. If the actual reven@®#, or EBITDA for a particular fiscal ye
were less than the target goals, each executivédvmiawarded a lesspro rata portion of the number of eligible shares. If minimuarge
goals for revenues, GP, or EBITDA for a particdlacal year were not achieved, no eligible sharesld/be awarded to each executive.

Based upon the financial results of the Companyiferfiscal year ended June 30, 2010, a lower th@et goal (85%) relating to revenues
met and the minimum target goals relating to GPBRUTDA were not met. As a result, the Company éskto the executive officers of a tc
of 86,342 shares under the LTIP Program for theDZxtal year, as follows: Mr. Jensen-60,716 shavks Herbert-18,261 shares; and I
DeMedio- 7,365 shares.

Other Benefits

During the 2009, 2010 and 2011 fiscal years, owrcetive officers were entitled to the health caorerage, group insurance and o
employee benefits provided to all of our employ&asing these fiscal years, and pursuant to thmipleyment agreements, we maintaine
automobile allowance payment program for each of executive officers as well as for Messrs. Sagadgl Lawlor. As required unc
their employment agreements, we agreed to pay tlmipms for a $2,000,000 face amount life insurapolicy on Mr. Jensen and fo
$1,500,000 face amount life insurance policy on Merbert. We also agreed to pay the premiums frpplemental longerm disability polic
for each of Messrs. Jensen and Herbert over andeath@ existing longerm group disability plan of the Company. We agrée pay th
premiums for a $750,000 face amount life insurgraley on Mr. DeMedio and for a supplemental lalegm disability policy for Mr. DeMedi
over and above the existing long-term group digglplan of the Company.

As discussed elsewhere in this FormK,the Company has agreed to pay for health in@gralife insurance, and disability insurance beg
for a two year period following Mr. Jensen’s and. Merberts termination of employment under certain circumsts, including terminatic
by them for good reason or by the Company withause, and to pay health insurance for a one yed@wdpéollowing Mr. DeMediok
termination of employment by the Company withouise=

Impact of Taxation and Accounting Considerations orExecutive Compensation

The Compensation Committee and the Board of Dirsdtke into account tax and accounting consequeenicéhe compensation program
weigh these factors when setting total compensatimhdetermining the individual elements of anycei®e officer's compensation package.

The restricted stock awards to our executive officender our incentive stock plans or under the22Blan provide that the executive
responsible for any withholding or payroll tax @ations incurred by the Company in connection whthaward, and the executive may sa
any such obligations by either the delivery to @@mpany of a cash payment equal to the obligationshe assignment or transfer to
Company of shares having a value equal to the afiidigs, or such other method that shall be satizfat¢o the Company.

In order to have any benefits payable to the exezwfficers under their supplemental long termadisty policies not be included in th

taxable income, the Compensation Committee recordetkio the Board of Directors that the premiumsefoee should be included in th
wages from the Company, and such a change wasledtlin each of their September 2011 employmentraontevisions.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The following “Compensation Committee Repostiall not be deemed incorporated by reference antofiling under the Securities Act
1933, as amended, or under the Securities Exchaagef 1934, as amended, except to the extentttieaCompany specifically incorpora
this information by reference, and shall not otlisenbe deemed filed under such Acts.

The Compensation Committee reviewed the above Cosgtien Discussion and Analysis and discussed dtsteats with Compar
management. Based on the review and discussioasCtmmittee has recommended to the Board of Diredivat this Compensati
Discussion and Analysis be included in the FornKifor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Respectfully submitted:

Jack E. Price, Chairman
Steven D. Barnhart
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Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth certain informatiasith respect to compensation paid or accrued byQbmpany during the fiscal years en
June 30, 2011, June 30, 2010 and June 30, 20@&toof the executive officers and employees ofGtbmpany named below:

Non- Nonqualifiec
Equity Deferred
Incentive Compel-
Name anc Stock  Option Plan sation All Other
Principal Fiscal Bonus Awards Awards Compensatic Earnings Compenatio Total
Position Year Salary %) (2 (2 (€)) (%) (3 (%)
(@) () _($(©) (d) (e) ® (¢)) (h) 0) )
George R. Jensen, . 2011 $365,00( $ - $293,75( $ - $ - $ $ 31,137 $689,88°
Chief Executive Office 201C $365,00( $ - $52500 $ - $ - $ $ 38,67 $456,17"
& Chairman of the Boar 200¢ $354,23: $ - $488,40( $ - $ - $ $ 27,07F $869,70¢
Stephen P. Herbe 2011 $320,00( $ - $176,25( % - $ - $ $ 24,87: $521,12-
Chief Operating Office 201C $320,00( $ - $ 15,75 % - $ - $ $ 32,41 $368,16:.
& Presiden 200¢ $310,57° $ - $377,40( $ - % - $ $ 27,07% $715,05:
David M. DeMedia 2011 $195,00( $ - $58,75( $ - $ - $ $ 19,17 $272,92!
Chief Financial Office! 201C $195,00( $ - $ - $ - % - $ $ 28,941 $223,94:
200¢ $195,00( $ - $111,00C $ - $ - $ $ 26,35: $332,35:
Cary Sagad 2011 $188,60t $ 88,68¢ $ - $ -3 - $ $ 10,44+ $287,73¢
Sr. VP Product Management 201C $185,00( $ 13,20¢ $ - $ - 3% - $ $ 15,997 $214,20¢
Network Solutions 200¢ $187,08: $ 29,83¢ $ 79,75! $ - $ - $ $ 17,000 $313,67¢
Michael Lawlor 2011 $166,07° $148,17( $ - $ - % - $ $ 10,28: $324,53(
VP of Sales & Busines 201C $ - $ - $ - % - 3% - % $ - $ -
Developmen 200¢ $ - $ - $ -3 - $ - $ $ - $ -

(1) Represents cash bonuses paid based upon such’s performance during the fiscal ye

(2) Represents the grant date fair value of aweodsputed in accordance with stooised compensation accounting rules (FASB ASC *
718). A discussion of assumptions used in calaujatiward values is included in Note 11 of the Cbdated Financial Statemen
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(3) The following table shows each component of theimwl above titlec All Other Compensatio”

Company Long-term

401(k) Disability Life
Matching Insurance  Insurance Auto
Contribution:  Premiums Premiums Allowance Total
Fiscal
Name and Principal Positic Year ($) (%) ($) ($) $

George R. Jensen, . 2011 $ 2,26: $ 5,44t $ 555t $ 17,87 $31,13%
Chief Executive Office 201C $ 9,80( $ 544t $ 555t $ 17,87t $38,67¢
& Chairman of the Boar 200¢ $ 9,20C $ - $ - $ 17,87 $27,07¢
Stephen P. Herbe 2011 $ 226: $ 3352 $ 1,388 $ 17,87t $24,87:
Chief Operating Office 201C $ 9,80( $ 3352 $ 1,388 $ 17,87F $32,41:
& President 200¢ $ 9,20C $ - % - $ 17,87 $27,07F
David M. DeMedic 2011 $ - % 98t $ 31t $ 17,87 $19,17*F
Chief Financial Officel 201C $ 9,80( $ 951 $ 31 $ 17,87 $28,94:

200¢ $ 8471 $ - % - $ 17,87 $26,35:
Cary Sagad 2011 $ 1,70¢ $ 732 $ 204 % 7,80C $10,44:
Sr. VP Network Solution 201C $ 8,07t $ - $ 124 $ 7,80C $15,99%

200¢ $ 9,20 $ - % - % 7,80C $17,00(
Michael Lawlor 2011 $ 1,547 $ 73z $ 204 $ 7,80C $10,28:
VP of Sales & Busines 201C $ - $ - $ - % - $ -
Developmen 200¢ $ - $ - 3 - 8 - $ -

Grants Of Plan-Based Awards Table

The table below summarizes the amounts of awawsten to our named executive officers and emploglaesg the fiscal year ended June
2011:

All
Other
Stock Grant
Awards: All Other Date Fai
Number  Option Value of
of Awards: Exercisc  Stock
Estimated Future Payol Estimated Future Payol Shares Number o or Base and
Under Non-Equity Incentive  Under Equity Incentive Plan of Stock Securities Price ol  Option
Plan Awards Awards or Underlyinc  Option (1)
Grant
Name Date  Thresholc Targel Maximun Thresholc Targe Maximun  Units Options  Awards Awards
@) (b) @ O _®E &0 ®0@ _®h #H0) #H0) Gk _®0
George R. Jenser
Jr. 4/14/201. - - - 125,00( $293,75(
Stephen P. Herbe 4/14/201: - - - 75,00( $176,25(
David M.
DeMedio 4/14/201. - - - 25,00( $ 58,75(
Cary Sagad' - - - - $ -
Michael Lawlor - - - - $ -

(1)  Amount represents the grant date fair@aetermined in accordance with ASC 718.
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Total Option Exercises And Stock Vested

The following table sets forth information regamlinptions exercised and shares of common stockir@cqupon vesting by our namr
executive officers and employees during the figear ended June 30, 2011:

1)

(2)

3)

(4)

()

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number of Number of Value
Shares Value Shares Realized or

Acquired on Realized or Acquired on Vesting

Name Exercise (# Exercise ($ Vesting (#) E3]EH)]

(@ (b) © (d) (e)

George R. Jensen, Jr.| - $ - 112,38: $ 178,62:
Stephen P. Herbert(: - 3 - 46,26. $ 83,01
David M. DeMedio(4, - $ - 15,69¢ $ 27,901
Cary Sagad' - $ - - $ -
Michael Lawlor(5) - 3 - 10,00 $ 24,80(

For awards classified as equity, the value equaleler of shares multiplied by the market value lom testing date. For awa
classified as liabilities, the value equals the hamof shares multiplied by the market value onstiiement date

Represents 10,000 shares valued at $1.21 per sitzreested on October 1, 2010, 60,716 sharesdalt81.13 per share that w
issued on October 7, 2010 and 41,666 shares valug?l35 per share that vested on April 14, 2!

Represents 3,000 shares valued at $1.21 per diaredsted on October 1, 2010, 18,261 shares valu8d.13 per share that w
issued on October 7, 2010 and 25,000 shares valug2l 35 that vested on April 14, 20.

Represents 7,365 shares valued at $1.13 per $tareere issued on October 7, 2010 and 8,334 skiahesed at $2.35 per share 1
vested on April 14, 201:

Represents shares valued at $2.48 per share #stathven April 1, 2011
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Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year-End

The following table shows information regarding xekecised stock options and unvested equity awaralstgd to the executive officers as

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011:

Option Awards Stock Awards
Equity
Incentive
Plan
Equity Awards:
Incentive  Market or
Plan Payout
Equity Awards: Value
Incentive Number o of
Plan Unearned Unearned
Awards: Market Shares, Shares,
Number of  Numberof  Number of Number o  Value of Units Units
Securities Securities Securities Shares or Shares or or Other  or Other
Underlying  Underlying  Underlying Units of Units of Rights Rights
Unexercise Unexercised Unexercise Option Option Stock Tha Stock Tha That That
Options(#)  Options(#) Unearned Exercist Expiratior Have Not Have Not Have Not Have Not
Name Exercisable Unexercisabl Options(#) Price($, Date Vested Vested($) Vested(# Vested($)
@) (b) (©) (d) (e) U] # Q) (h) () ()}
George R. Jensen, ¢
Chief
Executive Officer &
Chairman of the Boarc
Q) - - - $ - 223,33: 495,80: - % =
25,00( - - $ 7.5C 6/28/201. - - - % =
25,00( - - $ 7.5C 6/29/201. - - - $ =
Stephen P. Herbert,
Chief
Operating Officer &
President (2 - - - 3 - 50,00( 111,00( - $ -
6,00( - - $ 7.5C 6/28/201. - - - 3 -
6,00( - - $ 7.5C 6/29/201: - - - $ -
David M. DeMedio,
Chief
Financial Officer (3 - - - 3 = 16,66¢ 36,99¢ - $ =
2,33 - - $ 7.5C 6/28/201. - - - % =
2,33: - - $ 7.5C 6/29/201. - - - 3 =

Reflects shares issued to Mr. Jensen undezrhjoyment agreement1,667 shares that vest on April 14, 2012, 41,66fes the
vest on April 14, 2013 and 140,000 shares onlyaisuupon the occurrence of a USA Transaction.clbging market price on Ju
30, 2011, or $2.22 per share, was used in the lagiloo of market value (column (h)). The optionpiexg on June 28, 2012 and J
29, 2013 vested on June 30, 2007 and June 29, B&sjR:ctively

(1)

Reflects shares issued to Mr. Herbert undsrelployment agreement25,000 shares that to vest on April 14, 2012 an®
shares that vest on April 14, 2013. The closingkeigprice on June 30, 2011, or $2.22 per share useg in the calculation of mar
value (column (h)). The options expiring on JuneZ&BL2 and June 29, 2013 vested on June 30, 2@DJuare 29, 2008, respective

(2)

Reflects shares issued to Mr. DeMedio under hisleynpent agreemer— 8,333 shares that vest on April 14, 2012 and 8s3&8e
that vest on April 14, 2013. The closing marketeron June 30, 2011, or $2.22 per share, was ndéd icalculation of market val
(column (h)). The options expiring on June 28, 28h@ June 29, 2013 vested on June 30, 2007 and29u2608, respectivel

3)

Executive Employment Agreements

George R. Jensen, Jr.

On September 24, 2009, Mr. Jensen and the Compwdased into an Amended and Restated Employmentehgeat which replaced his pr
employment agreement. The Agreement extended thredEMr. Jensers employment with the Company from June 30, 201il 8aptembe
30, 2012, and will automatically continue from yéawear thereafter unless terminated as of theoénlde original term or any such one )



renewal period by the Company or Mr. Jensen badtl 90days notice., Mr. Jensen was granted 30,000 slohresmmon stock under t
2008 Stock Incentive Plan which vested as follok@000 on October 1, 2009; 10,000 on April 1, 2Cdr@iJ 10,000 on September 30, 2010.
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The agreement continued Mr. Jensebase salary at $365,000 per annum. The agreamguites Mr. Jensen to devote his full time
attention to the business and affairs of the Compand obligates him not to engage in any investmenactivities which would compete w
the Company during the term of the agreement andafperiod of two years thereafter. The Company dgreed to obtain and pay

premiums for a term life insurance policy in thecamt of $2,000,000 on the life of Mr. Jensen whitis employed by the Company.

Jensen has the right to designate the beneficfatyegoolicy. The Company has agreed to obtaingaydthe premiums for a supplemental |
term disability policy covering Mr. Jensen over amuobve the existing longrm group disability plan of the Company. If heaklbecom:
disabled while employed by the Company, the policyuld provide for monthly disability coverage of up 65% of his monthly ba
compensation payable to age 65 or death. If thieypwlould not provide at least 65% of his monthsb salary, then the Company has ag
to make monthly payments to Mr. Jensen in an ameguél to the difference between the monthly bépedivided under such policy and 6
of Mr. Jensen’s monthly base salary; provided, haxethat the Compang’total obligation for such monthly payments shadt excee
$110,000.

The agreement also provides that if Mr. Jensen avaeiminate his employment with the Company for dygeason (as defined in -
agreement), or if the Company would terminate hipleyment without cause (as defined in the agreémdren the Company would pay
him a lump sum equal to two times his base salargrdbefore the termination of his employment alhdimvested restricted stock awards
stock options would immediately become vested daitéon, upon any such termination of Mr. Jensezmployment, the Company has agr
at its cost, for a period of two years, to contitu@rovide Mr. Jensen with health, life and diigbbenefits substantially similar to those wk
he had been receiving immediately prior to the dditeermination. The term good reason as definethénagreement, includes: (A) a mate
breach of the terms of the Agreement by the CompéB)the assignment by the Company to Mr. Jendeduties in any way materia
inconsistent with his authorities, duties, respbififes, and status, as the Chief Executive Offiothe Company, or a material reductiol
alteration in the nature or status of his authouiyties, or responsibilities; (C) the Company muMr. Jensers’annual base salary; or (C
material reduction by the Company in the kind eeleof employee benefits to which Mr. Jensen istlextimmediately prior to such reduct
with the result that his overall benefit packagsignificantly reduced unless such failure to coumi a plan, policy, practice or arranger
pertains to all plan participants generally. As andition to Mr. Jensen receiving any payments anefies upon his termination of |
employment for good reason, Mr. Jensen shall hagewted and delivered (and not revoked) a relebiaeyand all claims, suits, or cause
action against the Company and its affiliates imfeeasonably acceptable to the Company.

The agreement also provides that as a conditidheo€onsummation of a USA Transaction (as defiredvl), the successor to the Company’
business or assets would agree to assume andrpévforJensen’s employment agreement. If any suchessor would not do so, Mr. Jensen’
employment would terminate on the date of the comsation of the USA Transaction, and the Companylévpay to Mr. Jensen a lump s
equal to two times his base salary on or beforadhmination of his employment, all unvested res#d stock awards and stock options w
become immediately vested, and, at its cost, fperod of two years would continue to provide Menden with health, life and disabi
benefits substantially similar to those which hesiseiving immediately prior to the date of terntioa.

The agreement also provides that upon the occuereha USA Transaction, the Company will issue to 3&nsen 140,000 shares of com
stock subject to adjustment for stock splits or borations (the “Jensen Shared¥)t. Jensen is not required to pay any additionalsamteratiol
for the Jensen Shares. At the time of any USA Taetisn, all of the Jensen Shares are automaticelemed to be issued and outstan
immediately prior to any USA Transaction, and antited to be treated as any other issued and andsig shares of common stocl
connection with such USA Transaction. The JenseareShare irrevocable and fully vested, representurasonditional obligation of tl
Company, and will not be affected by the terminatd Mr. Jensen’s employment with the Company for eeason whatsoever.

The term USA Transaction is defined as (i) the &ition of fifty-one percent or more of the then outstanding vatemrities entitled to vc
generally in the election of Directors of the Compéy any person, entity or group, or (ii) the ap@l by the shareholders of the Compar
a reorganization, merger, consolidation, liquidatior dissolution of the Company, or the sale, 4fan lease or other disposition of al
substantially all of the assets of the Companyjigra change in the composition of the Board dfeBtors of the Company over a periot
twelve (12) months or less such that the contindlingctors fail to constitute a majority of the Bda

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. Jensen edtérto an amendment to the employment agreeméetamendment extended the t
of Mr. Jensers employment with the Company from September 3@220ntil June 30, 2014. In connection with the admeent, and i
recognition of his dedicated and valuable servicthe Company and extending the term of his empétragreement, Mr. Jensen was is:
125,000 shares of common stock under the 2010 Staekntive Plan which vest as follows: 41,666 orridp4, 2011; 41,667 on April 1
2012; and 41,667 on April 14, 2013.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Jemgered into an amended and restated employmentragre, as well as the Jensen S
Agreement described below. The new employment aggae continued substantially all of the previousnig and conditions of his pr
employment agreement other than the provisionsele the Jensen Shares. The new agreement dicbnthue the provisions of his pr
agreement which obligated the Company to pay aoisexaxes attributable to any excess parachutegatg which would be received by |
Jensen upon the occurrence of a USA Transactiometisas the Company s related obligation to make tax gross up paymertis. nev
agreement also stated that the premiums for Miselen supplemental long term disability policy beindgdpby the Company would now
included in his wages and be taxable to him. Irharge for modifying the excise tax and related gngs provisions, the Company issuet
aggregate of 150,000 shares of common stock toJelsen under its stock incentive plans which vesibolows: 50,000 on the date

agreement was signed by Mr. Jensen and the Coma&@90 on the first anniversary of the date ohisig; and 50,000 on the sect
anniversary of the date of signing.
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On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Jerisereatered into a new agreement (the “Jensen ${gokement”)which contained tf
provisions relating to the issuance by the Compganyir. Jensen of the Jensen Shares which had prEyibeen set forth in his employm
agreement. The provisions of Mr. Jenseprior employment agreement which required the Gomg to pay any excise taxes attributable ti
excess parachute payments attributable to the d&Stsares as well as the related obligation to niakeross up payments have been ret:
in the Jensen Stock Agreement and continue to dpplye Jensen Shares.

Stephen P. Herbert

On September 24, 2009, Mr. Herbert and the Compatsred into an Amended and Restated Employmergehgent which replaced his pi
employment agreement. The Agreement extended tireaeMr. Herberts employment with the Company from June 30, 201l 8eptembe
30, 2012, and will automatically continue from yéauyear thereafter unless terminated as of theoénide original term or any such one
renewal period by the Company or Mr. Herbert bieast 90days notice and Mr. Herbert was granted 9,000 shafreommon stock under 1
2008 Stock Incentive Plan which vested as folla8y800 on October 1, 2009; 3,000 on April 1, 201@] 8,000 on September 30, 2010.

The agreement continued Mr. Herbsrbase salary at $320,000 per annum. The agreeewmuites Mr. Herbert to devote his full time .
attention to the business and affairs of the Compand obligates him not to engage in any investmenactivities which would compete w
the Company during the term of the agreement andafperiod of two years thereafter. The Company d@®ed to obtain and pay
premiums for a term life insurance policy in thecamt of $1,500,000 on the life of Mr. Herbert while is employed by the Company.
Herbert has the right to designate the benefigiéthe policy. The Company has agreed to obtainpaydthe premiums for a supplemental |
term disability policy covering Mr. Herbert overdiabove the existing longrm group disability plan of the Company. If heaktbecom
disabled while employed by the Company, the polisyuld provide for monthly disability coverage of wp 65% of his monthly ba
compensation payable to age 65 or death.

The agreement also provides that if Mr. Herbert ia@rminate his employment with the Company foodaeason (as defined in

agreement), or if the Company would terminate hipleyment without cause (as defined in the agre&mtren the Company would pay
him a lump sum equal to two times his base salargradbefore the termination of his employment aldiravested restricted stock awards
stock options would become immediately vested diditeon, upon any such termination of Mr. Herbggmployment, the Company has agr
at its cost, for a period of two years, to continogorovide Mr. Herbert with health, life and didéb benefits substantially similar to thc
which he had been receiving immediately prior te tate of termination. The term good reason aseéefin the agreement, includes: (4
material breach of the terms of the agreement kbyGbmpany; (B) the assignment by the Company to Hiérbert of duties in any w
materially inconsistent with his authorities, datier responsibilities, or a material reductioralteration in the nature or status of his authg
duties, or responsibilities as the President of @wenpany; (C) the Company reduces Mr. Herlseahnual base salary; or (D) a mat
reduction by the Company in the kind or level ofpdoyee benefits to which Mr. Herbert is entitlechirediately prior to such reduction with
result that his overall benefit package is sigaifity reduced unless such failure to continue a,pdalicy, practice or arrangement pertair
all plan participants generally. As a conditionMo. Herbert receiving any payments or benefits upantermination of his employment

good reason, Mr. Herbert shall have executed afideded (and not revoked) a release of any andlaiins, suits, or causes of action ag:
the Company and its affiliates in form reasonalglgegptable to the Company.

The agreement also provides that as a conditidcheoEonsummation of a USA Transaction (as definethé agreement), the successor t
Company’s business or assets would agree to assndheerform Mr. Herberd’ employment agreement. If any such successor wmitldo sc
Mr. Herbert's employment would terminate on the date of consatiom of the USA Transaction, and the Company waalg to Mr. Herbert
lump sum equal to two times his base salary onefork the termination of his employment, all unedstestricted stock awards and s
options would become immediately vested, and satast, for a period of two years would continu@rtovide Mr. Herbert with health, life a
disability benefits substantially similar to thaghich he is receiving immediately prior to the dafeermination.

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. Herbert egdeinto an amendment to the employment agreerfibetamendment extended the t
of Mr. Herberts employment with the Company from September 3@22ntil June 30, 2014. In connection with the admeent, and i
recognition of his dedicated and valuable servicthe Company and extending the term of his empétragreement, Mr. Herbert was iss
75,000 shares of common stock under the 2010 $teehntive Plan which vest as follows: 25,000 oniAp4, 2011; 25,000 on April 14, 20!
and 25,000 on April 14, 2013.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Hedrgdred into a second amendment to his employngmeement. The amendm
eliminated the provisions of his prior agreemeniclhobligated the Company to pay any excise taxggatable to any excess paract
payments which would be received by Mr. Herbertrugiee occurrence of a USA Transaction as well asbmpany 's related obligation
make tax gross up payments. The new agreemenstalisl that the premiums for Mr. Herbsrsupplemental long term disability policy be
paid by the Company would now be included in higesgand be taxable to him. In exchange for elirmgahe excise tax and related gros
provisions, the Company issued an aggregate o000Chares of common stock to Mr. Herbert undestitsk incentive plans which vest
follows: 33,333 on the date the agreement was digpyeMr. Herbert and the Company; 33,333 on th& finniversary of the date of signi
and 33,334 on the second anniversary of the datigoing.
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David M. DeMedio

On April 12, 2005, Mr. DeMedio and the Company esdeinto an employment agreement pursuant to whe&hvas employed as the Cli
Financial Officer of the Company. The term of tlggeeement is for one year and will automaticallytoare from year to year thereafter un
terminated as of the end of the original term or amch one year renewal period by the Company orDdMedio by at least 98ays notice
The agreement requires Mr. DeMedio to devote Hidifue and attention to the business and affairdie Company, and obligates him nc
engage in any investments or activities which wardchpete with the Company during the term of thee@gent and for a period of one y
thereafter. In the event that a USA Transactiordéfmed in Mr. Jensea’employment agreement) shall occur, then Mr. DéMhds the rigt
to terminate his agreement upon 30 days noticegCompany.

During September 2008, Mr. DeMedio and the Compamtgred into an amendment to his employment agmreemeasuant to which he w
granted 25,000 shares of common stock under th8 3@ick Incentive Plan which vested as follows08,0n September 15, 2008; 8,00(
January 15, 2009; and 9,000 on June 30, 2009.

On September 24, 2009, the Company agreed to oltaipay the premiums for a term life insurancécgah the amount of $750,000 on
life of Mr. DeMedio while he is employed by the Cpamy. Mr. DeMedio has the right to designate theeffieiary of the policy. The Compa
has agreed to obtain and pay the premiums for plemental long term disability policy covering MdeMedio over and above the exis!
longterm group disability plan of the Company. If heaklbecome disabled while employed by the Compaémy,policy would provide f
monthly disability coverage of up to 65% of his rttdy base compensation payable to age 65 or dedir. DeMedio’s employment with tt
Company would be terminated without cause, the Gomhas agreed, at its cost, to continue to proMdeDeMedio with health insuran
benefits substantially similar to those which heeseiving immediately prior to the date of terntioa for a one year period following st
termination.

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMedio esdeinto an additional amendment to the employnagreement. The agreem
extended the term of Mr. DeMed&Eemployment with the Company from June 30, 201l dune 30, 2014, and will automatically conti
from year to year thereafter unless terminatedfaheoend of the original term or any such one yeaewal period by the Company or
DeMedio by at least 9@ays notice. In connection with the amendment,iamdcognition of his dedicated and valuable sert@the Compar
and extending the term of his employment agreemdntPeMedio was issued 25,000 shares of commorkatader the 2010 Stock Incent
Plan which vest or vested as follows: 8,333 on IXti 2011; 8,333 on April 14, 2012; and 8,334 qriAl4, 2013.

Effective July 1, 2011, Mr. DeMedio’s annual baatasy was increased to $230,000.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMeuliered into another amendment to his employmenseagent pursuant to which |
DeMedio was granted an aggregate of 25,000 shdresnamon stock as a bonus for his performance dutie last six months of the 2(
fiscal year which vest as follows: 8,333 on theedait signing the amendment; 8,333 on the first\ansary of such signing date; and 8,33
the second anniversary of such signing date. MM&#o also agreed that the premiums for his supefgal long term disability policy bei
paid by the Company would now be included in hig@gand be taxable to him.

Cary Sagady

On July 2, 2008, the Company and Mr. Sagady enietecan employment agreement pursuant to whictCivapany continued to employ |
Sagady as a Senior Vice President, Product Devedopfor a one-year term. Mr. Sagaslgmployment with the Company shall automatit
continue for consecutive one-year periods unlessitated by either party upon notice of at leastdé@s prior to the end of each oyeal
extension. Effective July 2, 2008, Mr. Sagalpase salary has been $185,000 per annum. Inaaddr. Sagady is eligible to earn an ani
discretionary bonus in the maximum amount of 60%iefannual base salary based upon his performaficeSagady is also entitled to
reimbursed by the Company for all reasonable exggeimeurred by him in connection with his employitnduties. The Company issued to
Sagady an incentive bonus of 5,000 free-tradingeshaf the Compang’common stock, 1,250 of which vested on eachefdhlowing dates
September 30, 2008, December 31, 2008, March 319 2a6d June 30, 2009. [Upon renewal of his employragreement, Mr. Sagady v
issued an additional 5,000 shares of common stbhak tested quarterly in fiscal year 2010.] Pursuanhis employment agreement,
Company pays to Mr. Sagady an automobile allowaf&¥,800 per annum. Mr. Sagady is also entitlebe@overed by all standard fringe
employee benefits made available to other emplogéttee Company, including medical and dental iasge, paid vacation and holidays, a 401
(k) plan and a long-term disability planThe agreement requires Mr. Sagady to devote Higifité and attention to the business and affai
the Company, and obligates him not to engage inimwvgstments or activities which would compete vitie Company during the term of
agreement and for a period of one year thereafter.
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Michael Lawlor

On June 7, 2010, the Company and Mr. Lawlor entaredan employment agreement pursuant to whiclCibvapany employed Mr. Lawlor
a Senior Vice President, Sales and Business Dewaop through June 30, 2011. Mr. Lawbremployment with the Company sl
automatically continue for consecutive oyear periods unless terminated by either party upiite of at least 60 days prior to the end oh
one-year extension. Mr. Lawlar'’current base salary is $165,000 per annum. liti@aldMr. Lawlor is eligible to earn an annual clistionan
bonus in the maximum amount of 100% of his annaakbsalary based upon his performance. Mr. Lawlaigo entitled to be reimbursed
the Company for all reasonable expenses incurrebimyin connection with his employment duties. Tempany issued to Mr. Lawlor
incentive bonus of $10,000 upon the signing ofdmployment agreement. Upon renewal of his employragreement before April 1, 20
Mr. Lawlor was issued 10,000 shares of fiemling common stock. Pursuant to his employmergeargent, the Company pays to Mr. Lav
an automobile allowance of $7,800 per annum in Egipaeekly installments of $300. Mr. Lawlor is alsoidatl to be covered by all stand
fringe and employee benefits made available torogheployees of the Company, including medical aedta insurance, paid vacation .
holidays, a 401(k) plan and a loterm disability plan. The agreement requires Mmwlaa to devote his full time and attention to thesines
and affairs of the Company, and obligates him aarigage in any investments or activities which ll@ompete with the Company during
term of the agreement and for a period of one yezeafter.

Potential Payments Upon Termination Or Change Of Cotrol

As described above and herein, each of the emplolyagreements of our executive officers includevizions for the payment and/or
provision of benefits to the executives upon teation of employment under certain conditions aa uccessor to the Compasyjusiness
assets does not agree to assume and perform hisyengmt agreement as a condition to the consummafia USA Transaction.

The term USA Transaction means: (i) the acquisitibriifty-one percent or more of the then outstanding vosiecurities entitled to vc
generally in the election of Directors of the Compéy any person, entity or group, or (ii) the ap@l by the shareholders of the Compar
a reorganization, merger, consolidation, liquidatior dissolution of the Company, or the sale, 4¢fan lease or other disposition of al
substantially all of the assets of the Companyjigra change in the composition of the Board dfe@tors of the Company over a periot
twelve (12) months or less such that the contindlingctors fail to constitute a majority of the Bda

If Mr. Jensens employment had been terminated as of June 3@, @@ien the closing price per share was $2.22)y(him with good cause,
(i) by the Company without cause, or (iii) if acsessor to the Comparsybusiness or assets had not agreed to assumeedidp his
employment agreement as a condition to the constimmaf a USA Transaction, then an aggregate 0338 shares previously issued to
under his employment agreement would become autcaligtvested as of the date of termination, withvadue of $185,000. If a US
Transaction had occurred as of June 30, 2011, &iseh would receive 140,000 shares with a vall&3d0,000 pursuant to the provision
his employment agreement relating to the JensereSha

If Mr. Herbert's employment had been terminated as of June 3@, @@ien the closing price per share was $2.222)y(ihim with good caus
or (i) by the Company without cause, or (iii) ifseiccessor to the Compasybusiness or assets had not agreed to assumesgnchp hit
employment agreement as a condition to the constimmef a USA Transaction, then an aggregate od@D shares previously issued to
under his employment agreement would become auicaigtvested as of the date of termination, withadue of $111,000.

As described above under “Executive Employment Agrents”,the employment agreement between the Company andévisen provid
that the Company is required to provide Mr. Jengigh certain payments and benefits upon the tertiindby the Company of his employm
without cause or upon the termination by Mr. Jensehis employment for good reason or upon autaratimination of his employment i
successor to the Compasybusiness or assets does not agree to assumeediodrp his employment agreement as a conditionhg
consummation of a USA Transaction. Assuming thgtsarch termination occurred on June 30, 2011, khisdn would in addition to the she
described above, receive an aggregate cash pawhswvite his annual base salary or $730,000, ardCtbmpany would pay health insurai
life insurance, and disability insurance premiuimsd two year period following termination in thggaegate amount of $55,656. The afore
premium amount is based on an estimated monthlgipra of $1,402 for the health insurance, $463 for life insurance, and $454
disability insurance.

As described above under “Executive Employment Agrents” the employment agreement between the Company andHétbert provide
that the Company is required to provide Mr. Herbeith certain payments and benefits upon the temtion by the Company of
employment without cause or upon the terminationrMry Herbert of his employment for good reason pomu automatic termination of |
employment if a successor to the Compariyisiness or assets does not agree to assumerdmaphis employment agreement as a conc
to the consummation of a USA Transaction. Assuntiira any such termination occurred on June 30, 2Btt1Herbert would in addition
the shares described above, receive an aggregatgpagment of twice his annual base salary or $40,and the Company would pay he
insurance, life insurance, and disability insurapmiums for a two year period following termimetiin the aggregate amount of $43,104.
aforesaid premium amount is based on an estimatedhty premium of $1,402 for the health insurar®El5 for the life insurance, and $.
for disability insurance..
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As described above under “Executive Employment Agrents”, if Mr. DeMedics employment with the Company would be terminatgthk
Company without cause, the Company would pay healbrance premiums for a one year period followiagmination in the aggreg:
amount of $16,824. The aforesaid premium amoubased on an estimated monthly premium of $1,402.

In addition, if a USA Transaction had occurred ane) 30, 2011, and assuming that their employmettt thé Company had terminated a
such date, there would have been no excess paeapayients received by Messrs. Jensen or Herbéthane would have been no excise
or related tax gross up payments required to beerbgdhe Company.

Compensation Committee Interlocks And Insider Partcipation

During the fiscal year 2011, Jack Price, StevemBart and Peter Michel served at various times asibers of the Compensation Commi
of our board of directors. No member of the Compéna Committee was an employee or former emplafegeur Company or any of ¢
subsidiaries, or had any relationship with us réggidisclosure herein.

During the last fiscal year, none of our executdfficers served as: (i) a member of the compensat@mmmittee (or other committee of
board of directors performing equivalent functiamsin the absence of any such committee, theeehtiard of directors) of another entity,
of whose executive officers served on our Compémsa&ommittee; (ii) a director of another entityyeoof whose executive officers servec
our Compensation Committee; or (iii) a member & ttompensation committee (or other committee ofltbard of directors performil
equivalent functions or, in the absence of any siarthmittee, the entire board of directors) of arotintity, one of whose executive offic
served as a director on our board of directors.
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Compensation Of Directors

Members of the Board of Directors receive cashequdty compensation for serving on the board cdators, as determined from time to time
by the Compensation Committee with subsequent apptbereof by the board of directors.

Director Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the compensation eannpdid in cash by the Company to non-employeedbirs during the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2011.

Change in
Pension
Value
and
Non-Equity  Nonqualified
Fees Earned Incentive Deferred All Other
or Paid in Stock Option Compensatic Compensatic Compensatio
Name Cash($) Awards($) Awards($) Plan Earnings($, %) Total($)
@) (b) @) d (e) U] @ (h)
Steven D. Barnha $ 40,00C $ 7,39¢  $ $ - $ - $ - $ 47,39¢
Joel Brooks $ 30,00 $ 7,39¢ $ $ - $ - $ - $ 37,39¢
Douglas M. Luria $ 20,00 $ 7,39¢  $ $ - % - $ - $ 27,39¢
Peter A. Michel (11  $ 40,000 $ - 8 $ - 8 - $ - % 40,00(
Jack E. Prict $ 30,00 $ 7,39¢  $ $ - $ - $ - $ 37,39¢
Bradley M. Tirpak $ 20,00C $ 7,39¢  $ $ - % - $ - $ 27,39¢

Represents the grant date fair value of awards atedgn accordance with stotlased compensation accounting rules (FASB ASC Top®)

A discussion of assumptions used in calculatingrdwalues is included in Note 11 of the Consoliddtéancial Statements.

(1) Mr. Michel resigned as a Director effective &8, 2011.

During fiscal year ended June, 30, 2011, and iredud the above table, we paid the following feesrd) the fiscal year:

e Director: each Director received $20,0

e Audit Committee: each of Messrs. Brooks, Barnhad Blichel received $10,00

e Compensation Committee: each of Messrs. Barnhachdfland Price received $10,0(

Nominating Committee: each of Messrs. BarnhartcéP@nd Tirpak did not receive compensation forrtluities on thi
committee
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Shareholder Matter
Common Stock

The following table sets forth, as of June 30, 20the beneficial ownership of the common stock aéheof the Compang’ directors ar
executive officers, the other employees named eénstimmary compensation table set forth above, dsawdy the Compang’directors ar
executive officers as a group. Except as set fbeflow, the Company is not aware of any beneficimher of more than five percent of
common stock. Except as otherwise indicated, thegamy believes that the beneficial owners of theroon stock listed below, based
information furnished by such owners, have sol@stment and voting power with respect to such shautgject to community property le
where applicable:

Number of Shares of
Common Stocl

Beneficially Percent of
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Owned(2) Class
George R. Jensen, . 267,321 shares(: *

100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 1¢

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!

Stephen P. Herbe 264,133 shares( *
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 1¢

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!

David M. DeMedia 88,326 shares(* *
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 1¢

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!

Douglas M. Luric 36,778 shares(t *
2005 Market Street, Suite 31

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 191

Bradley M. Tirpak 144,140 shares( *
50 Orchard Street, Apt #

New York, New York 1000:

Steven D. Barnha 107,614 shares (¢ *
1143 N. Sheridan Roe

Lake Forest, lllinois 6004

Joel Brooks 10,000 shares (¢ *
721 Route 202/206, Suite 1

Bridgewater, NJ 0880

Jack E. Prict 10,000 shares (1! *
12942 NE 24th Stre:

Bellevue, Washington, 980(

Cary Sagad 5,050 share *
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 1«

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!

Michael Lawlor 15,552 share *
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 1.

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!

Wellington Management Company, LI 2,620,900 shares (1 7.7%
75 State Stree

Boston, Massachusetts 021

Downsview Capital, Inc 1,890,073 shares (1 5.82%
3100 Dundee Road, Suite 7

Northbrook, lllinois 6006:

All Directors and Executive Officel 928,312 share 2.8€%
As a Group (8 person

* Less than one percent (1%)
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1)

(@)
3)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordanci whe rules of the Securities and Exchange Comomisand derives from eith
voting or investment power with respect to secesitiShares of common stock issuable upon conveosipreferred stock, or sha
of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrantsoptions currently exercisable, or exercisabthim60 days of June 30, 20
are deemed to be beneficially owned for purposesdfie

The percentage of common stock beneficially owsdabised on 32,462,292 shares outstanding as o30u2611

Includes 2,000 shares of common stock beneficiaiyned by his spouse, 25,827 shares owned by Gddrgensen, Jr. Gran
Retained Unitrust dated July 14, 2003 over which J&nsen retains beneficial ownership. Include8@Dshares underlying ves
stock options, 15,000 shares issuable upon thecisgeof warrants and 350 shares underlying predesteck. Does not include |
right granted to Mr. Jensen under his Employmentedment to receive common stock upon the occurrefca US/
Transaction. See “Executive Employment Agreemernigludes 125,000 shares of common stock issuedrtaléhsen on April 1
2011 which vest or vested as follows: 41,666 onilApt, 2011; 41,667 on April 14, 2012; and 41,6@7April 14, 2013

Includes 32,010 shares of common stock benefic@lyed by his child and 27,440 shares of commockseneficially owned L
his spouse and 12,000 shares underlying vestek sfgions. Includes 75,000 shares of common steslieid to Mr. Herbert on Ap
14, 2011 which vest or vested as follows: 25,00@\pril 14, 2011; 25,000 on April 14, 2012; and ZH)®n April 14, 2013

Includes 4,666 shares underlying vested stock ngtimcludes 25,000 shares of common stock issuédrt DeMedio on April 14
2011 which vest or vested as follows: 8,333 on Abtj 2011; 8,333 on April 14, 2012; and 8,334 qriAl4, 2013.

Includes 6,000 shares underlying vested stock eptémd 6,874 shares issuable upon the exercisaronts. Includes 10,000 she
issued to Mr. Lurio as a namployee director of the Company as of June 301 2@ich vest or vested as follows: 3,333 share
June 30, 2011, 3,333 shares on June 30, 2012 a4 Shares on June 30, 20

Includes 10 shares underlying preferred stockubhe$ 10,000 shares issued to Mr. Tirpak as -employee director of the Compe
as of June 30, 2011 which vest or vested as foll@y&33 shares on June 30, 2011, 3,333 sharesnen3iy 2012 and 3,334 share:
June 30, 201:

Includes 32,538 shares issuable upon the exer€iseawants. Includes 10,000 shares issued to Mrnlgat as a ncemploye:
director of the Company as of June 30, 2011 whiett vor vested as follows: 3,333 shares on Jun2((,, 3,333 shares on June
2012 and 3,334 shares on June 30, 2

Includes 10,000 shares issued to Mr. Brooka aenemployee director of the Company as of June 301 2@ich vest or vested
follows: 3,333 shares on June 30, 2011, 3,333 slardune 30, 2012 and 3,334 shares on June 3B,

Includes 10,000 shares issued to Mr. Prica asnemployee director of the Company as of June 301 2@4ich vest or vested
follows: 3,333 shares on June 30, 2011, 3,333 slardune 30, 2012 and 3,334 shares on June 3B,

Based upon a Schedule-F/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Comnaisson August 17, 2011, reflecting the benef
ownership of our common stock by Wellington ManagatmCompany, LLP, which has shared voting autharitgr 948,900 shar
and shared dispositive power over 2,620,900 shhrelsides 1,674,900 shares underlying warrz

Includes 165,073 shares underlying warrants. Bageth a Schedule 13G filed with the Securities ardhBnge Commission
March 24, 2011, Downsview Capital, Inc. (“Downsvigvand Mitchell P. Kopin, the president of Downsviexach has shared vot
and dispositive power over 1,890,073 shares, aadsbire Capital, L.P. (“Cranshire’d, limited partnership of which Downsview
the general partner, has shared voting and dispegiiower over 1,744,725 of such shares (165,078%GEh represent shal
underlying warrants). The address of Mr. Kopin &rdnshire is as indicated in the tablée foregoing excludes 1,293,750 share
common stock issuable upon exercise of warrantstwdiie not exercisable within-days of June 30, 201

Preferred Stock

Other than 1,000 shares and 35,000 shares of mrdfstock owned by Mr. Tirpak and Mr. Jensen, repely, there were no shares
preferred stock that were beneficially owned adwfe 30, 2011 by the Compasylirectors, executive officers, or the other erppés name
in the Summary Compensation Table set forth above.

61



Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ins, and Director Independence.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the @@my incurred professional fees of approximately3$600 in connection with legal servi
rendered to the Company by Lurio & Associates, Padaw firm of which Douglas M. Lurio, a Directas President. Of such amount
professional fees, approximately $57,000 was aitizife to issues arising under the Settlement Ages¢ with the Committee.

REVIEW, APPROVAL OR RATIFICATION OF TRANSACTIONS WI TH RELATED PERSONS

Our policy is that all related party transactiondich are required to be disclosed under Iltem 40Regulation SK promulgated under tl
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are to bewedeand approved by the Audit Committee for anysiiids conflicts of interest. This policy
evidenced in the Charter of the Audit Committe¢hef Board of Directors of the Company.

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The Board of Directors has determined that JoebBspSteven D. Barnhart, Jack E. Price, and BrablleYirpak, which members constitut
majority of the Board of Directors, are independardaccordance with the applicable listing standartiThe NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc.

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit ConmemitiNominating Committee, and Compensation Comenitte

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors prageconsists of Mr. Brooks (Chairman), Mr. Barnhand Mr. Price. The Audit Committ
recommends the engagement of the Commaimdependent accountants and is primarily resptn$or approving the services performec
the Company’s independent accountants, for revigveind evaluating the Compasyaccounting principles, reviewing the independeoi
independent auditors, and reviewing the adequadye#factiveness of the Compasyihternal controls. The Audit Committee operatesspan
to a charter that was last amended and restatedebBoard of Directors on April 11, 2006, a copywdfich is accessible on the Company’
website, www.usatech.com.

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Direcpmesently consists of Mr. Price (Chairman), ard B&rnhart. The Board of Directc
has determined that each of the current membetheofCompensation Committee is independent in aetwel with the applicable listi
standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. The Citteenreviews and recommends compensation and awmapen changes for t
executive officers of the Company and administees@ompanys stock option and restricted stock grant plang Cbmpensation Commiti
operates pursuant to a charter that was adopteatiebBoard in September 2007, a copy of which iessible on the Comparsywebsite
www.usatech.com.

The Nominating Committee of the Board of Directauas established in November 2009, and presentlgistsnof Mr. Barnhart (Chairma
Mr. Price and Mr. Tirpak. The Board of Directorsstdetermined that each of the current memberseofittiminating Committee is indepenc
in accordance with the applicable listing standasfiThe Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC. The Committeeoremends to the entire Board
Directors for selection any nominees for directne Nominating Committee operates pursuant to atehthat was adopted by the Boart
Directors on November 3, 2009, a copy of whichdsessible on the Company’s website, www.usatech.com
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and 2@E3 in connection with services rendered by NMd&ly & Pullen, LLP were as set fc
below:

Fiscal Fiscal

2011 2010
Audit Fees $ 190,00( $ 195,00
Audit-Related Fee 24,00( 50,00(
Tax Fees 5,10(C 85,00(
All Other Fees - -
TOTAL $ 219,10 $ 330,00(

Audit fees consisted of fees for the audit of oonwal financial statements and review of quartérigncial statements as well as serv
normally providedin connection with statutory and regulatory filings engagements, consents and assistance witheaievs of Compar
documents filed with the Securities and Exchange@ission.

Audit related fees were primarily incurred in coati@n with our equity offerings, and fees in contimt with attending the annual shareholi
meeting.

Tax fees related to the review of our analysisheftiming and extent to which the Company canagtifuture tax deductions in any year, wi
may be limited by provisions of the Internal Rever@ode regarding changes in ownership of corparstfoe. IRS Code Section 382).

AUDIT COMMITTEE PRE-APPROVAL POLICY

The Audit Committee’s policy is to pre-approve alldit and permissible namudit services provided by the independent regidtgrublic
accounting firm on a case-by-case basis.
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

Exhibit
Number
3.1

3.11

3.1.2

3.13

3.14

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

4.13

Description

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation &Afiled January 26, 2004 (Incorporated by refeestac Exhibit 3.1.19 1
Form 1(-QSB filed on February 12, 200:

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Articldaadrporation of USA filed on March 17, 2005 (Imporated by referen
to Exhibit 3.1.1 to Form -1 Registration Statement No. -124078).

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Artidléscorporation of USA filed on December 13, 2006cbrporated b
reference to Exhibit 3.1.2 to Forn-1 Registration Statement No. -130992).

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Articleodrporation of USA filed on July 25, 2007. (Imporated by referen
to Exhibit 3.1.3 to Form 2K filed September 23, 200¢

Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Artickegncorporation of USA filed on March 6, 2008. (brporated b
reference to Exhibit 3.1.4 to Form-K filed September 23, 200¢

Amended and Restated -Laws of USA (Incorporated by reference to Exhil§it)3o0 Form1(-Q/A filed on February 22, 201C

Form of Warrant No. SA-001 issued to S.A.C. Capital Associates, LLC (Ipcoated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to For-K
filed on March 15, 2007

Registration Rights Agreement between the CompawySA.C. Capital Associates, LLC dated March 18072 (Incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Forr-K filed on March 15, 2007’

Warrant No.CI-001 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Cranshire @&pi.P. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4fIForr
S-1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR02 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Freestone Athge Partners, LP (Incorporated by reference tutft
4.2 of Form ‘-1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR03 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Iroquois Mastend Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibi 41
Form &1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR04 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Kingsbrook @mpnities Master Fund LP (Incorporated by refeeett
Exhibit 4.4 of Form -1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR05 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Hudson Bay télabund Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to Extdbt
of Form &-1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CRO06 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Cowen Overseasstment LP (Incorporated by reference to Extith
of Form &-1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR07 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Ramius Sdteptity Fund LP (Incorporated by reference to Extdby
of Form &-1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR/-001 dated March 17, 2011 in favor of Chardan Capttarkets, LLC (Incorporated by reference to Exhihi
of Form &-1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR/002 dated March 17, 2011 in favor of Jonathan Sukec(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.%ofm &-
1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR003 dated March 17, 2011 in favor of Joseph Redeo(porated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 of For-1
filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR+004 dated March 17, 2011 in favor of Adam Selkimc@rporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 of For-1
filed March 31, 2011
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10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10. 20

Agreement of Lease between Pennswood Spring Midlo8isites, as landlord, and the Company, as tedated Septemb
2002, and the Rider thereto (Incorporated by refeg¢o Exhibit 10.21 to Form -KSB filed on September 28, 200.

Agreement of Lease between Deerfield Corporate&2dnAAssociates LP, as landlord, and the Companteraant, dated Mar
2003 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2Edom 1(-KSB filed on September 28, 200

Amendment to Office Space Lease dated as of ApraD5 by and between the Company and Deerfielp@ate Cente
Associates, LP. (Incorporated by reference to Bkhilr19.1 to Form -1 Registration Statement No. -124078)

Employment and Nc¢-Competition Agreement between USA and David M. Ddidedated April 12, 2005 (Incorporated
reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Forn-1 Registration Statement No. -124078).

First Amendment to Employment and MCompetition Agreement between USA and David M. DdMealated May 11, 20(
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Fd€-Q filed on May 15, 2006

Option Certificate (No. 200) dated April 12, 200bfavor of David M. DeMedio (Incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.23 -
Form &-1 Registration Statement No. -124078).

Option Certificate (No. 201) dated May 11, 2008awor of George R. Jensen, Jr. (Incorporated bgresice to Exhibit 10.21
Form 1(-K filed on September 28, 200t

Option Certificate (No. 202) dated May 11, 200€awor of Stephen P. Herbert. (Incorporated by efee to Exhibit 10.21
Form 1(-K filed on September 28, 200t

Option Certificate (No. 203) dated May 11, 2006&awor of David M. DeMedio. (Incorporated by refecento Exhibit 10.21 1
Form 1(-K filed on September 28, 200t

Option Certificate (No. 204) dated April 21, 2006favor of William W. Sellers. (Incorporated by eegénce to Exhibit 10.21
Form 1(-K filed on September 28, 200t

Option Certificate (No. 205) dated April 21, 2006 favor of William L. Van Alen, Jr. (Incorporated eference to Exhik
10.21 to Form 1-K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 206) dated April 21, 2006favor of Steven Katz. (Incorporated by referetw&xhibit 10.21 to Fori
10-K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 207) dated April 21, 2006favor of Douglas M. Lurio. (Incorporated by reface to Exhibit 10.21
Form 1(-K filed on September 28, 200t

Option Certificate (No. 208) dated April 21, 2006favor of Albert Passner. (Incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.21 to For
1C-K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 209) dated July 20, 2006awor of Stephen W. McHugh. (Incorporated by refee to Exhibit 10.21
Form 1(-K filed on September 28, 200¢

USA Technologies, Inc. 2010 Stock Compensation Rliacorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to F&-8 filed April 14
2011).

Amendment to Agreement of Lease between E-Spring Mill Drive, L.P., as landlord, and the Compaas tenant, dat
January 15, 2007 (Incorporated by reference toltixhd.1 to Form 1-Q filed on February 13, 2007

Second Amendment to Agreement of Lease between -Spring Mill Drive, L.P., as landlord, and the Compaas tenar
dated December 28, 2010. (Incorporated by referemBahibit 10.1 to Form 1-Q filed on January 20, 2011

Second Amendment to Employment and Sompetition Agreement dated March 13, 2007, betwkerCompany and Da\
M. DeMedio (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit3®to Form -1 filed April 12, 2007)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Comypand each of its officers and Directors (Incogted by reference
Exhibit 10.1 to Form 1-Q filed May 14, 2007)
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10.21

10.22

10.23**

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29**

10.30**

10.31**

10.32**

10.33

21

23.1%

31.1%

31.2%*

32**

First Amendment to MasterCard PayPass Participatigieement dated August 17, 2007 between the CompdasterCar
International Incorporated and Coca Cola Enterprise. And Its Bottling Subsidiaries. (Incorporateyl reference to Exhik
10.26 to Form 1-K filed September 27, 2007

Third Amendment to Employment and MCompetition Agreement between the Company and D&idDeMedio date
September 22, 2008. (Incorporated by referencexhibiE 10.29 to Form 1-K filed September 24, 200¢

Amended and Restated Employment and Rompetition Agreement between the Company and @eBrglensen, Jr., da
September 27, 201

Amended and Restated Employment and Glampetition Agreement between the Company and 8tefph Herbert dat
September 24, 2009. (Incorporated by referencexhibi 10.31 to Form 1-K filed September 25, 200¢

Securities Purchase Agreement dated March 14, Befteen the Company and each of the Buyers (Incatgad by referen
to Exhibit 10.1 of Form -K filed on March 14, 2011

Engagement Agreement between the Company and Gh&dpital Markets LLC dated March 14, 2011 (Incogted b
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Forn-K filed on March 14, 2011

Letter from the Company to David M. DeMedio datexp@mber 24, 2009. (Incorporated by reference tat#x10.32 to Forr
10K filed September 25, 200¢

Settlement Agreement dated February 4, 2010 by eaandng USA Technologies, Inc., Shareholder Advoc#tes Value
Enhancement, Bradley M. Tirpak, Craig W. Thomasl egrtain other parties (Incorporated by refergodexhibit 10.1 to Fort
8-K filed on February 5, 2010

Jensen Stock Agreement between the Company andy&Bodensen, Jr., dated September 27,

Second Amendment to Employment and -Competition Agreement dated September 27, 2011 dmtvthe Company a
Stephen P. Herbe

Fifth Amendment to Employment and N-Competition Agreement dated as of July 1, 2011 betwthe Company and Da
M. DeMedio

Sixth Amendment to Employment and MCompetition Agreement dated September 27, 2011dmithe Company and Da
M. DeMedio

Second Amendment to Office Space Lease dated Bewdmber 17, 2010 by and between the Company amektlyi Malvern
LP. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 tort 1(-Q filed on January 20, 201

List of significant subsidiaries of the Companyddnporated by reference to Exhibit 21 to For-1 filed on March 16, 2010
Consent of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, Independent Reged Public Accounting Firn

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer pursuaatRule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
Certifications of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1!

Certifications by the Chief Executive Officer antli€f Financial Officer pursuant to 18 USC Secti@bQ, as adopted pursu
to Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

** Filed herewith
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Item 15(a).

SCHEDULE 1l

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011, 2010 AND 2009

Deductions
uncollectible
Balance a Additions receivables Balance
written off,
beginning charged tc net at end
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE of period earnings of recoveries of period
June 30, 201 $ 41,00 $ 92,00 $ 20,000 $ 113,00(
June 30, 201 $ 42,000 $ (1,000 $ - $ 41,00(
June 30, 200 $ 215,000 $ (17,000 $ 156,000 $ 42,00(
Balance a Additions Deductions Balance
beginning charged tc  Shrinkage an at end
INVENTORY of period earnings obsolescenc of period
June 30, 201 $ 741,000 $ 11,000 $ 124,000 $ 628,00(
June 30, 201 $ 596,000 $ 171,000 $ 26,000 $ 741,00(
June 30, 200 $ 418,000 $ 390,000 $ 212,000 $ 596,00(
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgeaAct, the registrant has duly caused this reftbe signed on its behalf by
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By: /s/ George R. Jensen,

Jr.

George R. Jensen, Jr., Chairn
and Chief Executive Office

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this repostiieen signed below by the following persons oralietf the registrant and in the capaci
and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURES TITLE DATE
/s! George R. Jensen, Chairman of the Board of Directa September 27, 201
George R. Jensen, . and Chief Executive Office

(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ David M. DeMedic Chief Financial Officer (Principe September 27, 201
David M. DeMedic Accounting Officer)

/s/ Stephen P. Herbe Chief Operating Officer, President Septembkr2d11
Stephen P. Herbe and Directol

/s/ Douglas M. Luric Secretary and Director September 27, 2011

Douglas M. Luric

/s/ Joel Brook: Director September 21, 201
Joel Brooks
/s/ Steven D. Barnha Director September 27, 201

Steven D. Barnha

/sl Jack E. Pric Director September 20, 201
Jack E. Pric
/s/ Bradley M. Tirpal Director September 22, 2011

Bradley M. Tirpak
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Exhibit 10.23

AMENDED AND RESTATED

EMPLOYMENT AND NON -COMPETITION AGREEMENT

Agreement made this 27day of September, 2011, by and between GEORGE RSHE|, JR., an individual (“Jensen’gnd US#
TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Pennsylvania corporation (AJp

BACKGROUND

Jensen is the founder as well as the Chairman aief Executive Officer of USA. Jensen and USA hatkeed into an Amended &
Restated Employment And No@ompetition Agreement dated September 24, 2009adfidst Amendment thereto dated as of April 14,1
As more fully set forth herein, the parties desiramend, completely restate, and replace the éimgggreements effective on the date hereof.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenaetsfarth herein, and intending to be legally botlnedeby, the parties agree
follows:

SECTION 1. Employment

A. USA shall employ Jensen as Chairmath @hief Executive Officer commencing on April 1412, and continuir
through June 30, 2014 (the “Employment Periodi)d Jensen hereby accepts such employment. Ualesimated by either party hereto u
at least 90days notice prior to end of the original EmploymBetiod ending June 30, 2014, or prior to the €rehg one year extension of
Employment Period, the Employment Period shallbeterminated and shall automatically continueulhfbrce and effect for consecutive «
year periods



B. During the Employment Period, Jendaallsievote his full time, energy, skills, and atten to the business of US
and shall not be engaged or employed in any othginbss activity whatsoever, whether or not sutivigcis pursued for gain, profit or ott
pecuniary advantage. During the Employment Pededsen shall perform and discharge well and falthfuch executive management du
for USA as shall be necessary and as otherwisehmaljrected by the Board of Directors of USA.

C. Nothing contained in subparagraph HeBeof shall prohibit Jensen from investing hisspeal assets in busines
which do not compete with USA, where the form ommer of such investments will not require more thanimal services on the part
Jensen in the operation of the affairs of the tegsgrin which such investments are made, or in whiglparticipation is solely that of a pas:
investor; or from serving as a member of boarddidctors, boards of trustees, or other governiodids of any organization, provided 1
USA approves such activities in advance; or frontigigating in trade associations, charitable, cignd any similar activities of a not-for-
profit, philanthropic or eleemosynary nature; amfrattending educational events or classes. lhderstood and agreed that any such pern
activities which shall occur during business hailrall be limited to no greater than forty hours yesr.

SECTION 2. Compensation and Benefits

A. In consideration of his services ramde USA shall pay to Jensen a base salary of §865per year during tl
Employment Period, subject to any withholding reediby law. Jenses’base salary may be increased from time to tintedérdiscretion ¢
the Board of Directors.



B. In addition to the base salary prodider in subparagraph A, Jensen shall be eligibleeceive such bonus
bonuses as the Board of Directors of USA may, @irtliscretion, pay to Jensen from time to timeellagpon his performance and/or
performance of USA. All awards in this regard nb@ymade in cash or in Common Stock of USA (the “Gmm Stock”).

C. Jensen shall be entitled to be reirsddirby USA for all reasonable expenses reasonablyrried by Jensen
connection with his employment duties hereunderchSexpenses shall include, but not be limitedatb,reasonable business exper
including travel expenses such as tolls, gasolimtkraileage. Jensen shall reasonably documergaliessts for expense reimbursements.

D. On the date of the execution and @ejivoy each of USA and Jensen of this Agreemenf Bl&ll issue to Jens
150,000 shares of Common Stock in exchange foreaggdo substantially modify Section 14.B of hisopremployment agreement relating
excess parachute tax gross up payments. Theses $tak vest as follows: 50,000 on the date hers8@f)00 on September 27, 2012;
50,000 on September 27, 2013. The shares shalisdoed pursuant to US#'2011 Stock Incentive Plan, and shall be regidtemraer th
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant ra 5-8 Registration Statement.

Jensen acknowledges that the vesting of the shallegpresent taxable income to him and that hred(aot USA) shall be responsi
for the payment of any and all income or other $afecluding any withholding or payroll tax obligats of USA) attributable to the vesting
the shares. Not later than the business day faligulie date on which any of the shares are inclirdede taxable income of Jensen, Je
shall satisfy USAs withholding or payroll tax obligations in conniect with such shares by either (a) the deliverydbgisen to USA of a ce
payment equal to the amount of the withholding ayrpll tax obligations, or (b) the assignment arahsfer by Jensen to USA of that nun
of shares of Common Stock (which may consist ofvbsted shares issued hereunder to Jensen orfaysbiares of Common Stock ownet
Jensen) having a value equal to the withholdingotaligations required to be withheld by law, or étich other payment method that sha
satisfactory to USA.



E. During the Employment Period, USA $bétain and pay the premiums for, a term life nagice policy on Jensen’
life in the face amount of $2,000,000. During thefoyment Period, Jensen shall designate the lmamsfiof the policy. If Jensen shall
during the Employment Period, the proceeds of tbiicy shall be paid to his designated beneficialgnsen agrees to cooperate with
insurance company and USA in connection with teaasce of the policy. Jensen agrees that he wiithé to examinations by such practic
medical doctors selected by USA or the insuranoepamy upon receipt of written request from USAh® insurance company to do so.

F. During the Employment Period, USA sladitain and pay the premiums for, a supplememagterm disabilit
policy covering Jensen over and above the exisiimg-term group disability plan of USA. If Jensen shiadicome disabled during 1
Employment Period, the supplemental policy wouldvide Jensen with monthly payments of up to 65%efsers base salary through ¢
sixty-five. Jensen agrees to cooperate with the insuramegany and USA in connection with the issuancthefpolicy. Jensen agrees tha
will submit to examinations by such practicing neadlidoctors selected by USA or the insurance compgon receipt of written request fr
USA or the insurance company to do so.



Due to Jenser’age, if Jensen would become disabled while erepldyy USA, the monthly benefit provided by the dapmenta
long-term disability policy is not anticipated toopide Jensen with at least 65% of Jensanbnthly base salary. In such event, and subj
the next sentence, USA shall make monthly paymind&nsen in an amount equal to the difference dmiv65% of his monthly base sa
and the amount of monthly benefit provided by thppdemental disability policy and any group disipipolicy of USA. It is anticipated th
USA'’s obligation to Jensen under the prior sentemoeld be approximately $2,250 per month, and itriderstood and agreed that USAota
obligation to Jensen under the prior sentence bldimited to and in no event exceed $110,000.

Effective as of the date of this Agreement, Jersggnees and acknowledges that the entire amountyoéiad all premiums to be pi
by USA for the supplemental long-term disabilityipp covering Jensen shall be includible as pariarisers taxable wages from USA, ¢
shall be subject to appropriate withholding andrplyax obligations.

G. During the Employment Period, USAlkpay to Jensen an automobile allowance in thewarof $17,875 p«
annum, payable in equal semi-monthly installments.

H. During the Employment Period, and ddision to the other benefits provided to Jenseredneder, Jensen shall
entitled to participate in and be covered by ahdfrd fringe and employee benefits made avaitabtgher employees of USA. These cur
benefits include medical and dental insurance, pagdtion and holidays, a 401(k) plan, and a le@rgitgroup disability plan.

SECTION 3. Termination. In addition to the notice of nomnewal of the Employment Period referred to intidecl.A herec
and as provided in Section 11.B, Jensen’s employmigh USA may be terminated as follows:



A. Voluntary Termination Without Good Reason . Jensen may voluntarily terminate Jenseemployment hereunc
without Good Reason (as defined below) at any tioming the Employment Period effective as of thd ehthe 90day period beginning on t
date Jensen provides USA with a signed, writtencaodf Jensers termination; provided, in its sole discretion i)A may accept su
resignation effective as of an earlier date in lidwaiting for passage of the 90-day notice permd(ii) during all or any part of the 9fay
notice period, USA may retain Jensen as an employemodify, reduce or eliminate Jenseduties hereunder. If Jensen voluntarily termg
Jensen’s employment hereunder without Good Red$8A, will pay to Jensen only (i) Jenserannual base salary earned through the d
termination, (ii) all bonuses earned and vesteamwhefore the date of termination, and (iii) anynékits or compensation provided under
terms of any benefit plan or other provisions @ thgreement.

B. Voluntary Termination With Good Reason.

0] Jensen may voluntarily terminate &'s employment hereunder with Good Reason (as debekxv) at any tim
during the Employment Period, effective as of ¢inel of the 9Qday period beginning on the date Jensen provides Wigh a signed, writte
notice of Jenses’termination; provided, in its sole discretion (4$A may accept such resignation effective as otanlier date in lieu
waiting for passage of the 90-day notice periodBjrduring all or any part of the 9flay notice period, USA may retain Jensen as an@reg
but modify, reduce or eliminate Jensen’s dutiegtieder.

(i) If Jensen voluntarily terminates dens employment hereunder with Good Reason at any tionéng the
Employment Period, Jensen will be entitled to ree¢he following compensation and benefits:



(a) On or before the termination of Jense@mployment, USA shall pay to Jensen a lump sumldq two years ¢
his base salary at the time of the termination;date

(b) all bonuses earned or vested on or beforedte af termination;
(c) all restricted stock awards and stock optidraldecome immediately vested on the date of teation;

(d) any benefits or compensation provided undetehms of any benefit plan or other provisionsto$ tAgreemen
and

(e) During the two year period following the dafaermination, USA shall arrange at its cost tovide Jensen wi
health, life and disability benefits substantiaiynilar to those which Jensen is receiving immedyaprior to the date of termination. Bene
otherwise receivable by Jensen pursuant to thisesiion shall be reduced to the extent comparaiefiis are actually received by or m
available to Jensen without cost during such peftidwing Jensers termination of employment (and any such benefitsially received
Jensen shall be reported to USA by Jensen).

(iii) For purposes of this Agreement, “GloReason’means any of the following conditions, which rensaimcured aftt
the expiration of 30 days following the deliverywfitten notice of such condition to USA by Jenseith respect to which Jensen termin
employment within 120 days after the initial existe of the condition: (A) a material breach of ttems of this Agreement by USA; (B)"
assignment by USA to Jensen of duties in any watgnadly inconsistent with Jensenauthorities, duties, responsibilities, and staassChie
Executive Officer of USA, or a material reductionaiteration in the nature or status of Jensenithority, duties, or responsibilities; provic
however, that a material reduction or alteratidienred to in this subsection (B) shall not incladey change or reduction in Jenseauthorities
duties or responsibilities resulting solely from AJ8ecoming a private company or a subsidiary oistim of another company; (C) Ut
reduces Jensenannual base salary; (D) any reduction by USA@kind or level of employee benefits to which &mis entitled immediate
prior to such reduction with the result that Jens@verall benefit package is significantly reducetess such failure to continue a plan, po
practice or arrangement pertains to all plan pgditts generally; or (E) requiring Jensen to beebas a location in excess of 50 miles f
Jensen’s current residence.



(iv) As a condition to Jensen receivimgontinuing to receive any of the payments or fiessprovided unde
this subsection B, Jensen shall have executed elinebbd to USA (and not revoked) a release of amy all claims, suits, or causes of ac
against USA and its affiliates in form reasonaligeptable to USA.

C. Termination Without Cause .

(i) USA, in its sole discretion, may terminate Jams employment hereunder without Cause (as definkovpea
any time by giving Jensen at least 30 days’ (artdmare than 90 days’) prior written notice of USAgent to terminate Jensaenémploymer
as of a specified date; provided, during all or payt of the remaining Employment Period, USA t;dole discretion, may modify, reduce
eliminate Jensen’s duties hereunder.

(ii) If USA terminates Jenses’employment hereunder without Cause at any timegluhe Employment Peric
Jensen will be entitled to receive the followingmensation and benefits:

(a) On or before the termination of Jense@mployment, USA shall pay to Jensen a lump sumleq twc
years of his base salary at the time of the tertioinalate;

(b) all bonuses earned or vested on or beforedte af termination;



(c) All restricted stock awards or stock optionalshecome immediately vested on the date of teation,;

(d) any other benefit or compensation provided utide terms of any benefit plan or other provisiofhis
Agreement; and

(e) During the two year period following the datetermination, USA shall arrange at its cost tovide
Jensen with health, life and disability benefitbstantially similar to those which Jensen is reiogivimmediately prior to the date
termination. Benefits otherwise receivable by Jarpaérsuant to this subsection shall be reducetigektent comparable benefits are act
received by or made available to Jensen without @asng such period following Jensertermination of employment (and any such ber
actually received by Jensen shall be reported tA b\5Jensen).

D. Termination With Cause.

0] USA may immediately terminate Jenseamployment hereunder for Cause (as defined bedoahy tim
during the Employment Period upon delivery of veritinotice to Jensen.

(i) If USA terminates Jensenémployment hereunder with Cause at any time gdulia Employment Peric
Jensen will only be entitled to receive the follogricompensation and benefits:

(@) On or before the termination of Jenseamployment, USA shall pay Jensen his base stidesygh th
date of termination;

(b) all bonuses earned or vested on or beforeates af termination; and



(c) any other benefit or compensation provided utige terms of any benefit plan or other provisiohshis
Agreement.

(ii) For purposes of this Agreement, “Causegans any of the following have occurred or exsstletermined by ti
USA Board of Directors (or its designee): (A) Jaerisdraud, gross malfeasance, or willful miscondudth respect to USA business; (B) al
material breach by Jensen of this Agreement, whrelach is not cured (if curable) by Jensen withirtyt (30) days after written notice of st
breach is delivered to Jensen by USA; (C) any wlilifiolation by Jensen of any law, rule or reguati which violation results or cot
reasonably be expected to result, in material ltarthe business or reputation of USA; (D) convictaf or the entry of a guilty plea or plee
no contest to any felony or to any other crime lava moral turpitude; or (E) any intentional migdipation by Jensen of USA’funds, or ar
material act of dishonesty committed by Jensen.

E. Termination Due to Death or Disability .
(i) Jensen’s employment with USA will end upon Jsris death. Upon Jensantleath, his designated benefic
shall be entitled to receive the proceeds of tfeeifisurance policy paid for by USA that is refert® in Section 2.E, and USA will pay

Jensen’s personal representative only (A) Jessamual base salary earned through the date df,d&) all bonuses earned and vested ¢
before the date of death, and (C) any benefit arpensation provided under the terms of any bepkfit or other provisions of this Agreem
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(i) If Jensen becomes disabled during the EmployniReriod, USA may terminate Jenseemployment under tt
Agreement upon giving Jensen or Jensdegal representative written notice at least &dsdbefore the termination date. For purposesis
Agreement, and subject to any applicable waitingope “disabled” means if Jensen is deemed disafdegurposes of the supplemental long-
term disability policy obtained and paid for by US#ich is referred to Section 2.F. If Jenseemployment hereunder is terminated dt
Jensen’s disability, USA will pay to Jensen or personal representative only (A) Jenseahnual base salary earned through the di
termination, (B) all bonuses earned and vestedropetore the date of termination, and (C) any biereef compensation provided under
terms of any benefit plan or other provisions @ thgreement.

F. In addition to any other terms or dtinds that survive the termination of Jenseamployment with USA, all of tl
terms and conditions of Section 4, 5 and 6 shatige the termination of Jensen'employment with USA for any reason whatsos
including under this Section 3.

G. Except as specifically provided othisevherein, Jensen shall not be required to méiga¢ amount of any paym
provided for in this Section 3 by seeking other Epment or otherwise, nor shall the amount of spelyment be reduced by reasot
compensation or other income Jensen receives ffeices rendered after Jensen’s termination of eympént with USA.

H. In the event Jensen is terminatedafor reason whatsoever other than for Cause, USis akpense, shall provi

one year of professional outplacement services hwhie customary for an executive of Jensestature through and at the facilities o
outplacement firm.

11



l. For purposes of this Agreement, thent8JSA Transaction” shall mean:

(i) the acquisition by any person, entity or graeqguired to file (or which would be required teefif USA had been subje
to such provisions) a Schedule 13D or Schedule 14demulgated under the Securities Exchange Act3#4 (“Exchange Act”)or any
acquisition by any person entitled to file (or whiwould be entitled to file if USA had been subjersuch provisions) a Form 13G under
Exchange Act with respect to such acquisition ofdfigial ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13gromulgated under the Exchange .
of 51% or more of USA'’s then outstanding votinglgéties entitled to vote generally in the electmfn Directors (the “Outstanding Shargs”
or

(i) a change in the composition of theaBd of Directors of USA over a period of twelv@)Inonths or less such t
the Continuing Directors (as defined below) faildmnstitute a majority of the Board (or, if applite, the Board of Directors of a succe:
corporation to USA), where the term “Continuing &itor’ means at any date a member of the Board (i) whoavaember of the Board on
date of the execution of this Agreement or (ii) whas nominated or elected subsequent to such gladelbast a majority of the directors v
were Continuing Directors at the time of such naation or election or whose election to the Board wecommended or endorsed by at le
majority of the directors who were Continuing Dit@s at the time of such nomination or election; or

(iii) approval by the shareholders of USA of argamization, merger, consolidation, liquidation,dissolution of USA, ¢
the sale, transfer, lease or other dispositicalladr substantially all of the assets of USA (dness Combination”).

12



Notwithstanding subsection (iii) above, and otheant in connection with a liquidation or dissolutiohUSA, a Busine:
Combination described in subsection (iii) abokellsnot constitute a USA Transaction if followgi such Business Combination, (A) al
substantially all of the individuals and entitiebavwere the beneficial owners of the Outstandingr&h immediately prior to such Busin
Combination beneficially own, directly or indiregt] more than 51% of the combined voting powfette then outstanding voting securi
entitled to vote generally in the election of Dias of the entity resulting from such businessbimation (including without limitation,
entity which as a result of such transactions oWt&A or all or substantially all of USA’assets either directly or through one or 1
subsidiaries), and (B) no person owns, directly imdirectly, 49% or more of the combined votingwer of the then outstandi
voting securities of the entity resulting from BUBusiness Combination except to the extent thelh ®wnership existed prior to the Busir
Combination.

SECTION 4. Business Secrets

A. Except in connection with his dutieréunder, Jensen shall not, directly or indireatyany time from and after t
date hereof, and whether or not the EmploymentoBdras terminated, or whether or not Jersemiployment has terminated for any rei
whatsoever, make any use of, exploit, disclosalivulge to any other person, firm or corporationy @onfidential information, including k
not limited to, proprietary information, trade sefgrbusiness secret, documents, process, procedu@s-how, data, marketing informatic
marketing method, marketing means, software infoiona intellectual property, special arrangememtany other confidential informati
concerning the business or policies of USA, or eoning USAS customers, clients, accounts or suppliers, #regeh learned as a result o
connection with, through his employment with, orotigh his affiliation with USA, whether or not puesnt to this Agreement, and whet
prior to or after the date hereof, but not inforimatthat can be shown through documentary evidémee in the public domain, or informat
that falls into the public domain, unless such iinfation falls into the public domain by Jensedirect or indirect disclosure or other ¢
Jensen agrees to use his best endeavors to ptéeeahauthorized disclosure or publication of coafitial information and not to copy |
remove confidential information from USA’s premisedhether physically or electronically, without teepress written permission of USA.

13



B. From and after the date hereof, exdaptonnection with his duties hereunder, and fowa (2) year peric
following the termination of the Employment Periad,for a two (2) year period following the termiiwe of Jensers employment hereunde
earlier, Jensen shall not solicit, or divert busgn&om, or serve, or sell to, any customer or astof USA of which Jensen is or becol
aware, or with which Jensen has had personal doasaa result of, in connection with, through higptboyment with, or through his affiliatit
with USA, whether or not pursuant to this Agreememd whether prior to or after the date hereof.

C. All documents, data, kndvew, designs, inventions, names, marketing infoionatmarketing method, marketi
means, materials, software programs, hardware,igioations, information, data processing reporitgsland sales analyses, price list
information, or any other materials or data of &md furnished to Jensen by USA, or by USAustomers, clients, accounts, or supplie!
developed by Jensen on behalf of USA or at USAtedtion or for USAS use, or otherwise devised, developed, createdhvented il
connection with Jensesvemployment hereunder or his affiliation with US#hether or not during normal working hours), ane ahall remai
the sole and exclusive property of USA, and Jessat have no right or interest whatsoever theiietdyuding but not limited to, any copyri¢
or patent interest whatsoever. If USA requests rétarn of any such items (including all copies)aaty time whatsoever, Jensen ¢
immediately deliver the same to USA.

14



D. All documents, data, knoew, designs, products, ideas, equipment, investioames, devices, marketing informai
marketing method, marketing means, materials, soétvprograms, hardware, configurations, informat@nany other materials or data of
kind developed by Jensen on behalf of USA or atitection or for USAS use, or otherwise devised, developed, createdvented i
connection with Jensen’s employment with USA orséers affiliation with USA (whether or not during noringorking hours), and wheth
before or after the date of this Agreement, aresiradl remain the sole and exclusive property oAU&d Jensen agrees to apprise USA c
existence of such, and Jensen does not and shdilame any right, title, or interest whatsoevesréto. Jensen hereby acknowledges th
such rights to intellectual property shall beloxglasively to USA and not to Jensen. Any and ghts of ownership in connection with an)
the foregoing shall belong solely to USA, and apyright, patent, trademark, or similar rights oterests shall be the sole and exclL
property of USA. Jensen hereby assigns, transérd conveys to USA all of Jenssemnight, title and interest in and to any and aith
inventions, discoveries, improvements, modificadi@md other intellectual property rights to effatéy confirm, or evidence such assignn
transfer and conveyance, including but not limiigdexecuting and delivering any and all applicdbkens, documents, or applications requ
under any applicable copyright, patent, trademarrlother law, rule or regulation.

E. At any and all times from and after the dateebf, and for a two (2) year period following tteemination of Jenseg’

employment with USA for any reason whatsoever, dershall not (a) directly or indirectly, attempthie, or hire, any person employed
USA,; or (b) directly or indirectly, interfere witHSA'’s relations with any person employed by it.
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SECTION 5. Restrictive Covenant From and after the date hereof, and for a twpyéar period following the termination of -
Employment Period, or for a two (2) year periodidaing the termination of Jensenemployment hereunder if earlier, Jensen she
prohibited from competing in all fifty states ofettunited States, and in each foreign country, msése, or territory in which USA is engag
in or actively pursuing business as of the ternmabr at any time during the preceding twelve rhoperiod, with the business of USA
presently or as hereinafter conducted, including rimt limited to, the ownership or licensing orvd®pment of a cashless system w
controls, monitors, and/or networks devices, intigdeverage vending machines. For the purposeohehe term “competingshall mea
acting, directly or indirectly, as a partner, pipad, stockholder, joint venturer, associate, irefgfent contractor, creditor of, consultant, tru
lessor to, sublessor to, employee or agent of) bate any other involvement with, any person, ficorporation, or other business organize
which is engaged in the businesses describedsrsedtion.

SECTION 6. Remedies Jensen acknowledges that any breach by him oflthgations set forth in Sections 4 or 5 hereofild
substantially and materially impair and irreparabgrm USAS business and goodwill; that such impairment agaginhwould be difficult t
measure; and, therefore, total compensation irysnienetary terms would be inadequate. Conseqguelehsen agrees that in the event o
breach or any threatened breach by Jensen of athedfrovisions of Sections 4 or 5 hereof, USA Ishalentitled in addition to monet:
damages or other remedies, to equitable reliefudieg injunctive relief, and to the payment by gem of all costs and expenses incurre
USA in enforcing the provisions thereof, includiajorneys’ fees. Theemedies granted to USA in this Agreement are cative and are
addition to remedies otherwise available to UShwator in equity.

SECTION 7. Waiver of Breach. The waiver by USA of a breach of any provisiorthi§ Agreement by Jensen shall not operz
be construed as a waiver of any other or subsedueath by Jensen of such or any other provision.
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SECTION 8. Notices. All notices required or permitted hereunder sballin writing and shall be sent by certified ogistere:
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaithliasvs:

To USA:

USA Technologies, Inc.

100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140
Malvern, Pennsylvania 19355

Attn: Stephen P. Herbert, President

To Jensen:

Mr. George R. Jensen, Jr.
517 Legion Drive
West Chester, Pennsylvania 19380

or to such other address as either of them maygats in a written notice served upon the othetyparthe manner provided herein.
notices required or permitted hereunder shall gl duly given and received on the second daysuexdeeding the date of mailing.

SECTION 9. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement or thgplication thereof to any person or circumsta
shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceatiie, remainder of this Agreement or the applicabbany such term or provision to person
circumstances other than those as to which itlid inealid or unenforceable, shall not be affectieereby, and each term and provision of
Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to thkedtilextent permitted by law. If any of the préeis contained in this Agreement shall
any reason be held to be excessively broad asradidn, scope, activity or subject, it shall be stoned by limiting and reducing it, so as tc
valid and enforceable to the extent compatible Withapplicable law.
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SECTION 10. Governing Law. The implementation and interpretation of this @gment shall be governed by and enforct
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth ofhBglivania without regard to its conflict of lawdesi.

SECTION 11. Binding Effect and Assignability.

A. The rights and obligations of bgidrties under this Agreement shall inure to theefieonf and shall be binding upon tr
personal representatives, heirs, successors aigthesd his Agreement, or any part thereof, malybe assigned by Jensen.

B. At the time of the consummation of aAJFransaction, and as a condition thereof, USA Isteduire any success
(whether direct or indirect, by purchase, mergensolidation or otherwise) to all or substantiallyof the business or assets of USA expre
to assume and agree to perform this Agreementeedime extent that USA would be required to perfibriino such USA Transaction h
taken place. Failure of USA to obtain an assumptibthis Agreement at or prior to the consummatbrthe USA Transaction shall result
the termination of Jensen’s employment on the datthe USA Transaction. In the event of the terrtioraof Jensers employment, Jens
shall receive from USA all of the compensation dedefits described in subparagraphs (a), (b)afwd, (d) of Section 3.C (ii) as if Jensen’
employment had been terminated by USA without Caurs¢he date of the consummation of the USA Traiimacln addition to any oth
terms or conditions that survive the terminationJefisers employment with USA, all of the terms and comuiii of Section 4, 5 and 6 st
survive the termination of Jensenemployment with USA. Except as specifically pd®ed otherwise herein, Jensen shall not be reqtd
mitigate the amount of any payment provided fothis Section 11.B by seeking other employment betise, nor shall the amount of s
payment be reduced by reason of compensation er otbome Jensen receives for services rendered Jghsers termination of employme
with USA. As used in this Agreement, USA shall mésSA and any successor to its business or assetfoeesaid which assumes and ac
to perform this Agreement, or by operation of lawptherwise.
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SECTION 12. Special Tax Provision Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary iistAgreement, no payments or benefil
which Jensen may become entitled under SectionBBLd@ of this Agreement shall be made or providedhitn prior to the earlier of (i) tl
expiration of the six (6)-month period measuredrfrine date of his “separation from servigath the Company (as determined in accord
with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Codd @86, as amended (the “CodeSgction 409A and the Treasury Regulations therejim
(i) the date of his death, if Jensen is deemeatetime of such separation from service to beey ‘&mployeeiwithin the meaning of that tel
under Code Section 416(i) and such delayed commeemteis otherwise required in order to avoid a fidéd distribution under Cor
Section 409A(a)(2). Upon the expiration of the égaille Code Section 409A(a)(2) deferral periodpalyments and benefits deferred purs
to this Section 12.A (whether they would have otlise been payable in a single sum or in installmiénthe absence of such deferral) she
paid or reimbursed to Jensen in a lump sum, andr@maining payments and benefits due under thié&gent shall be paid or providec
accordance with the normal payment dates spedifiethem herein.

SECTION 13. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreemetiit mespect to the subject matter he
between the parties hereto and there are no otjreements between the parties relating to the subjmtter hereof. This Agreem
completely replaces and supersedes the prior emm@ot/agreements entered into between Jensen and T&AAgreement shall be effect
from and after the date hereof. This Agreement ordy be modified by an agreement in writing exedutg both USA and Jensen.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exetthis Agreement on the day and year first abovtem:
USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By: /s/ Stephen P. Herbe

Stephen P. Herbert, Presid

/s/ George R. Jensen,

GEORGE R. JENSEN, JI
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Exhibit 10.29

JENSEN STOCK AGREEMENT

Agreement made this 27 day of September, 2011, by and between GEORGHERSEN, JR., an individual (“Jensengnd US/
TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Pennsylvania corporation (AJp

BACKGROUND

Jensen is the founder as well as the Chairman &ief Executive Officer of USA. As more fully setrth herein, USA shall issue
Jensen shares of Common Stock of USA (the “Comntonk9 in the event there is a USA Transaction dafined herein)The terms ar
conditions of this Agreement had previously beenfegh in Jensers employment agreements with USA. For clarity, smehemorialize th
terms of this longstanding agreement between US@ Jansen, the parties have now agreed to set floetherms and conditions of t
longstanding agreement in this new separate Agregrard not in the Amended and Restated Employmgreaement between Jensen anc
Company being executed and delivered concurreritly this Agreement.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenaetsfarth herein, and intending to be legally bolnedeby, the parties agree
follows:

SECTION 1. Common Stock Rights

A. If at any time after the date hereof there shala USA Transaction, USA shall issue to Jenseaggregate of 140,0
shares of Common Stock (the “Jensen Stosklject to adjustment as provided in subparagrapii tBis Section 1. At the time of any U
Transaction, all of the shares of Jensen Stock abhtdmatically and without any action on Jensgrert be deemed to be issued and outsta
immediately prior to any such USA Transaction, ahéll be entitled to be treated as any other issmeldoutstanding share of Common S
in connection with such USA Transaction. In conimectvith a USA Transaction, USA and/or such suagess purchasing corporation, pers
or entity, as the case may be, shall recognizespadifically provide for the Jensen Stock as preditbr in this Agreement.



B. The number of shares of Common Stocke issued to Jensen upon the occurrence of aTu&asaction shall |
subject to adjustment from time to time only asfeeth hereinafter: (i) in case USA shall declar€@mmon Stock dividend on the Comn
Stock, then the number of shares shall be propataly increased as of the close of business omate of record of said Common St
dividend in proportion to such increase of outstagdshares of Common Stock; or (ii) if USA shallaty time subdivide its outstand
Common Stock by recapitalization, reclassificatiorsplit-up thereof, the number of shares shall be propuataly increased, and, if USA st
at any time combine the outstanding shares of Com@&tock by recapitalization, reclassification, neeestock split, or combination thereof,
number of shares shall be proportionately decreadeg such adjustment to the number of shares| $femlome effective at the close
business on the record date for such subdivisiaroorbination. All shares of Common Stock issuedetiosen shall be, at the time of deliver
the certificates for such Common Stock, validlyuess and outstanding, fully paid and non-assessable.

C. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “USarnBaction” shall mean:

(i) the acquisition by any person, entity or gragguired to file (or which would be required teefif USA had been subje
to such provisions) a Schedule 13D or Schedule 14demulgated under the Securities Exchange Act3#4 (“Exchange Act”)or any
acquisition by any person entitled to file (or whiwould be entitled to file if USA had been subjersuch provisions) a Form 13G under
Exchange Act with respect to such acquisition afdfigial ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13gromulgated under the Exchange .
of 51% or more of USA'’s then outstanding votinglgéties entitled to vote generally in the electmf Directors (the “Outstanding Shargs”
or



(i) a change in the composition of the Boardafectors of USA over a period of twelve (12) mosor less such that 1
Continuing Directors (as defined below) fail to stitute a majority of the Board (or, if applicabkbe Board of Directors of a succes
corporation to USA), where the term “Continuing &itor’ means at any date a member of the Board (i) whoavaember of the Board on
date of the execution of this Agreement or (ii) whas nominated or elected subsequent to such gladelbast a majority of the directors v
were Continuing Directors at the time of such naation or election or whose election to the Board wecommended or endorsed by at le
majority of the directors who were Continuing Dit@s at the time of such nomination or election; or

(iif) approval by the shareholders of USA of argamization, merger, consolidation, liquidation,dissolution of USA, ¢
the sale, transfer, lease or other dispositicalladr substantially all of the assets of USA (dness Combination”).

Notwithstanding subsection (iii) above, and otheant in connection with a liquidation or dissolutiohUSA, a Busine:
Combination described in subsection (iii) abohallsnot constitute a USA Transaction if followisgich Business Combination, (A) all
substantially all of the individuals and entitiehavwere the beneficial owners of the Outstandingr&himmediately prior to such Busin
Combination beneficially own, directly or indiregtimore than 51% of the combined voting power lné then outstanding voting securi
entitled to vote generally in the election of Di@s of the entity resulting from such business bimation (including without limitation, ¢
entity which as a result of such transactions oWt&A or all or substantially all of USA’assets either directly or through one or 1
subsidiaries), and (B) no person owns, directly imdirectly, 49% or more of the combined votingwer of the then outstandi
voting securities of the entity resulting from BuBusiness Combination except to the extent theh ®wnership existed prior to the Busir
Combination.



D. USA shall at its sole cost and expense, taleh saction as shall be required to have the Jenserk Segistered «
exempted from registration under applicable Faldaend state securities laws. As a conditiothissuance by USA of any Jensen S
Jensen shall execute and deliver such represemati@rranties, and covenants, that may be reqbiyeapplicable Federal and state secul
law, or that USA determines is reasonably necesBaryonnection with the issuance of such JensewkStm addition, the certificat
representing the Jensen Stock shall contain syEnds, or restrictive legends, or stop transferuetions, as shall be required by applic.
Federal or state securities laws, or as shall @soreably required by USA or its transfer agent.

E. The Jensen Stock granted hereunder to Jenskhaliaevocable by USA, and the obligations ofAJSereunder shall |
and are unconditional, absolute and fully vesteligabons of USA. The Jensen Stock shall not bgesuitio any right of set off, recoupmen
any other equitable defenses by USA and shall $gets to Jensen in strict accordance with their geffilne terms and conditions of 1
Agreement shall not be affected by the terminattbrdensers employment with USA for any reason whatsoeved wahether or not ar
“cause” exists therefore, and shall not be affebyedlensen’s breach of this Agreement or ahgradgreement with USA.



F. The right to receive the Jensen Stock shaltdesterable by Jensen, or by any subsequent assignehole or in part,
any time or from time to time, by notice to USA. Ascondition precedent of such transfer, the asgigshall execute and deliver s
representations, warranties, and covenants thatbeagquired by applicable Federal and state deutaws. In addition, USA may reqt
that the transferor deliver to USA an opinion ofigsel, acceptable to USA, to the effect that suahsfer is permitted under and does
violate any applicable state or Federal securities. The right to receive the Jensen Stock sleatrdnsferable under and pursuant to the
will and testament of Jensen in accordance with soibparagraph F, and the death of Jensen shadiffeat the right to receive the Jen
Stock, and in such event the right to receive #resdn Stock shall continue in full force and effaciccordance with this Agreement.

G. There has been reserved, and USA shalll times keep reserved out of the authorized anissued shares
Common Stock, a number of shares of Common Stofficismt to provide for the Jensen Stock. USA agrd®at the Jensen Stock shall b
the time of delivery of the certificates for su@ngen Stock, validly issued and outstanding, fodlid and non-assessable.



SECTION 2.Excess Parachute Payment Tax Gross Up

A. Notwithstanding any other provisiontbfs Agreement, if (i) there shall be a USA Trastgm, and (ii) the paymer
and benefits to be made or provided pursuant ®Algreement and any other payments or benefitswibe to be paid or provided to Jen
under any other plans, programs, arrangementsreeagnts (including Jensenémployment agreement) contingent upon the octcere
such USA Transaction (collectively, the “Terminati®ayments”)create an excess parachute payment (within the ingeari the Intern:
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Cofet}tion 280G) that results in an excise tax paybhpl@ensen pursuant to the terms of (
Sections 280G and 4999 (the “Excise Tax"), then U@k pay to or for the benefit of Jensen an adudiiéil payment (hereinafter, thdehse
Stock Gross Up Payment"The Jensen Stock Gross Up Payment shall be inumilative amount equal to the excess, if any, Joth@ full
amount of Excise Tax attributable to all of the feration Payments, and all of Jenserldditional state and federal income, excise
employment taxes (all computed at the highest egple marginal rate) that arise on, and are payabtespect of, this additional payme
such that Jensen is in the same a@rposition as if he had not been subject to tkeide Tax, less (ii) the full amount of the Excibax
attributable to all of the Termination Paymentseotthan and except for any payments and benefitetmade or provided pursuant to
Agreement, and all of Jenssnadditional state and federal income, excise angl@yment taxes (all computed at the highest apple
marginal rate) that arise on, and are payablespa&t of, this additional payment, such that Jeis@nthe same aftdex position as if he hi
not been subject to such Excise Tax.

B. The Jensen Stock Grags-Payment will be paid by USA to or for the benhefiJensen prior to the time any Ex
Tax is payable by Jensen with respect to any Textioin Payments.



C. The determination of whether the Teatibn Payments constitute an excess parachute grayamd, if so, tt
amount to be paid to Jensen and the time of paymerguant to this Section 2 shall be made by aegaddent accounting firm (i
“Accounting Firm”) selected by USA prior to the USA Transaction. Tlee@dunting Firm shall be a nationally recognizedtedhiStates publ
accounting firm which has not, during the two yeprsceding the date of its selection, acted in way on behalf of USA or any affilie
thereof or Jensen.

D. In the event that the Excise Tax iefdadetermined by the Accounting Firm or pursuantahy proceeding
negotiations with the Internal Revenue Servicexteed the amount taken into account hereunderedtirtie the payment is made under
Section 2 (including, but not limited to, by reasafnany payment the existence or amount of whiaimo&be determined at the time of s
payment), USA shall make an additional paymenespect of such excess (plus any interest or pepaitgble with respect to such exces
the time that the amount of such excess is findgdiermined. In the event that the Excise Tax issegbently determined by the Accoun
Firm or pursuant to any proceeding or negotiatiwith the Internal Revenue Service to be less tharatmount taken into account hereund
calculating the payment to be made pursuant toShigtion 2, Jensen shall repay to USA, at the thmethe amount of such reduction in
Excise Tax is finally determined, the portion oftkuprior payment that would not have been paidughsExcise Tax had been appliec
initially calculating such payment. Notwithstanditige foregoing, in the event that any portion & fflayment made hereunder that is t
refunded to USA has been paid to any Federal, stdtecal tax authority, repayment thereof shall Ine required until actual refund or credi
such portion has been made to Jensen.



SECTION 3. Notices. All notices required or permitted hereunder sballin writing and shall be sent by certified ogistere:
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaithliasvs:

To USA:

USA Technologies, Inc.

100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140
Malvern, Pennsylvania 19355

Attn: Stephen P. Herbert, President

To Jensen:

Mr. George R. Jensen, Jr.
517 Legion Drive
West Chester, Pennsylvania 19380

or to such other address as either of them maygats in a written notice served upon the othetyparthe manner provided herein.
notices required or permitted hereunder shall gl duly given and received on the second daysuexdeeding the date of mailing.

SECTION 4. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement or thgplication thereof to any person or circumsta
shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceatiie, remainder of this Agreement or the applicabbany such term or provision to person
circumstances other than those as to which itlid inealid or unenforceable, shall not be affectieereby, and each term and provision of
Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to thkedtilextent permitted by law. If any of the préeis contained in this Agreement shall
any reason be held to be excessively broad asradidn, scope, activity or subject, it shall be stoned by limiting and reducing it, so as tc

valid and enforceable to the extent compatible Withapplicable law.



SECTION 5. Governing Law . The implementation and interpretation of this égmnent shall be governed by and enforct
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth ofhBglivania without regard to its conflict of lawdesi.

SECTION 6. Binding Effect and Assignability. The rights and obligations of the parties untds Agreement shall inure to 1
benefit of and shall be binding upon their persoaptesentatives, heirs, successors and assigns.

SECTION 7. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreemétit respect to the subject matter he
between the parties hereto and there are no offneements between the parties relating to the subjatter hereof. This Agreement may ¢
be modified by an agreement in writing executedbth USA and Jensen.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exettiis Agreement on the day and year first abovtemr.
USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By: /s/ Stephen P. Herbe
Stephen P. Herbert, Presidi

/s] George R. Jensen,
GEORGE R. JENSEN, Ji




Exhibit 10.3C

SECOND AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AND
NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

This Second Amendment is made on theé"2iay of September 2011, by and between STEPHEN RBHRT ( “ Herbert ” ),anc
USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Pennsylvania corporatfddSA”).

Background

USA and Herbert entered into an Amended and Rekttgployment and No@ompetition Agreement dated September 29, 200
a First Amendment thereto dated April 14, 2011 lémively, the “Employment Agreement’As more fully set forth herein, the parties de
to amend the Employment Agreement in certain reaspec

Agreement

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenaetsfarth herein, and intending to be legally bolnedeby, the parties agree
follows:

1. Amendments

A. Subsection D. SECTION 2. Compensation and Benefit®f the Employment Agreement is hereby deleted bed t
following new Subsection D. substituted in its gac

“D. On the date of the execution and @ejivoy each of USA and Herbert of this Second Ameerat, USA shall isst
to Herbert 100,000 shares of Common Stock in exphdor agreeing to delete Section 13.B of his Emplent Agreement relating to exc
parachute tax gross up payments. These sharesvehals follows: 33,333 on the date hereof; 33@3%eptember 27, 2012; and 33,33
September 27, 2013. The shares shall be issuedamnir® USAS 2011 Stock Incentive Plan, and shall be regidtargler the Securities Act
1933, as amended, pursuant to a Form S-8 Registr&tatement.

Herbert acknowledges that the issuance of the shaik represent taxable income to him and that(éwed not USA) shall t
responsible for the payment of any and all incometber taxes (including any withholding or payralk obligations of USA) attributable to
issuance of the shares. Not later than the busid@gdollowing the date on which the shares ardéuthed in the taxable income of Herb
Herbert shall satisfy USA’withholding or payroll tax obligations in conniect with such shares by either (a) the deliveryHeybert to USA ¢
a cash payment equal to the amount of the withhgldr payroll tax obligations, or (b) the assignimamd transfer by Herbert to USA of t
number of shares of Common Stock (which may comdithhe vested shares issued hereunder to Herbartyoother shares of Common St
owned by Herbert) having a value equal to the valtlimg or payroll tax obligations required to bethtield by law, or (c) such other payrr
method that shall be satisfactory to USA.”



B. The following new sentence shall be added tcetiek of subparagraph F. of

SECTION 2. Compensation and Benefitef the Employment Agreement:

“Effective as of September 27, 2011, Herbert agegmbacknowledges that the entire amount of anyaliptemiums to be paid by
USA for the supplemental long-term disability pglimovering Herbert shall be includible as part @frbert’'s taxable wages from USA, and
shall be subject to appropriate withholding andrpkyax obligations.”

C. Subsection G BECTION 2. Compensation and Benefitsof the Employment Agreement is hereby deleted dre
following new subsection G substituted in its place

“G. During the Employment Period, USA shall pay t&rlbert an automobile allowance in the amount of&25 per annum, payable
equal semi-monthly installments.”

D. Subparagraph D(ii) &ECTION 4. Termination of the Employment Agreement is hereby deleted aedfdllowing nev
subparagraph substituted in its place:

“(ii) If USA terminates Herbes’employment hereunder with Cause at any time duhie Employment Period, Herbert will o
be entitled to receive the following compensatiod henefits:
(&) On or before the termination of Herbsremployment, USA shall pay Herbert his base safargugh the date

termination;
(b) all bonuses earned or vested on or beforedteeaf termination; and
(c) any other benefit or compensation provided utide terms of any benefit plan or other provisiohthis Agreement.”
E. Subsection B Excess Parachute PaymaxtGross Upof SECTION 13. Special Tax Provisionds hereby deleted in

entirety from the Employment Agreement.

2. Modification Except as otherwise specifically set forth imagaaph 1, the Employment Agreement shall not beraiad ¢
modified in any respect whatsoever and shall coetin full force and effect.

3. Effective Time The amendments to the Employment Agreement rnmeBaragraph 1 hereof shall be effective from ditet
the date hereof.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exetthitss Second Amendment on the day and year fisva written.

/sl Stephen P. Herb
STEPHEN P. HERBER

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By: /s/ George R. Jensen,
George R. Jensen, ¢
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 10.31

FIFTH AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AND
NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

This Fifth Amendment is made as of the 1st dayuby 2011, by and between DAVID M. DeMEDIO ( “ DeMed’ ), and US/
TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Pennsylvania corporation (AJp

Background

USA and DeMedio entered into an Employment And Nimmpetition Agreement dated April 12, 2005, a Fikstendment there
dated May 11, 2006, a Second Amendment theretal ddéech 13, 2007, a Third Amendment thereto datesgt&Snber 22, 2008, and a Fo!
Amendment thereto dated April 14, 2011, and USAikssed a letter to DeMedio dated September 149 20dllectively, the Employmen
Agreement”). As more fully set forth herein, thetjes desire to amend the Employment Agreemengiitain respects.

Agreement

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenaetsfarth herein, and intending to be legally botlnedeby, the parties agree
follows:

1. Amendment

A. Subsection (a) of SECTION 2. Compensation andefits of the Employment Agreement is hereby deleted dr
following new subsection (a) substituted in itsgela




(&) In consideration of his services rendered, cemoing on July 1, 2011, USA shall pay to DeMedioase salary of $220,000

year during the Employment Period, subject to aithlvalding required by law. DeMec's base salary may be increased from time to tit
the discretion of the Board of Directors.

2. Modification Except as otherwise specifically set forth ima@saph 1, the Employment Agreement shall not beraiad ¢
modified in any respect whatsoever and shall coetin full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exetthis Fifth Amendment as of the day and year fifstve written.

/s/David M. DeMedi
DAVID M. DEMEDIO

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By: /s/George R. Jensen,

George R. Jensen, ¢
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 10.32

SIXTH AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AND
NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

This Sixth Amendment is made on thet2@ay of September 2011, by and between DAVID M. DEME ( “ DeMedio ” ),and US#
TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Pennsylvania corporation (AJp

Background

USA and DeMedio entered into an Employment And Nimmpetition Agreement dated April 12, 2005, a Fikstendment there
dated May 11, 2006, a Second Amendment theretalddtech 13, 2007, a Third Amendment thereto datept&nber 22, 2008, a FoL
Amendment thereto dated April 14, 2011, and a Fdfthendment dated as of July 1, 2011, and USA haset a letter to DeMedio da
September 24, 2009 (collectively, the “Employmeigréement”).As more fully set forth herein, the parties desodceamend the Employme
Agreement in certain respects.

Agreement

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenaetsfarth herein, and intending to be legally bolwedeby, the parties agree
follows:

1. Amendment

A. Subsection (f) oSECTION 2. Compensation and Benefitef the Employment Agreement is hereby deleted bhaddllowing nev
subsection (f) substituted in its place:




“(f) On the date of the execution and delivery byheat USA and DeMedio of this Sixth Amendment, US#all issue to DeMed
25,000 shares of Common Stock in recognition of Bdid's dedicated and valuable services rendered to UBiagithe second half of t
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. These sharestshakst as follows: 8,333 on the date hereof; B@3 September 27, 2012; and 8,33
September 27, 2013. The shares shall be issuedgmir® USAS 2011 Stock Incentive Plan, and shall be regidtareler the Securities Act
1933, as amended, pursuant to a Form S-8 Registratatement.

DeMedio acknowledges that the issuance of the shail represent taxable income to him and that(dwed not USA) shall t
responsible for the payment of any and all incometber taxes (including any withholding or payralk obligations of USA) attributable to
issuance of the shares. Not later than the bustt@gdollowing the date on which the shares aréughed in the taxable income of DeMe
DeMedio shall satisfy USA' withholding or payroll tax obligations in conniect with such shares by either (a) the deliveryHsybert to US/
of a cash payment equal to the amount of the wittihg or payroll tax obligations, or (b) the assiggnt and transfer by DeMedio to USA
that number of shares of Common Stock (which maysist of the vested shares issued hereunder to Diehde any other shares of Comn
Stock owned by DeMedio) having a value equal towiteholding or payroll tax obligations required tbe withheld by law, or (c) such ot
payment method that shall be satisfactory to USA.”

B. The following new paragraph shall be added dfierthird paragraph of the September 24, 2008rl&étbm USA to DeMedio:
“Effective as of September 27, 2011, you agree akdaavledge that the entire amount of any and a&hpums to be paid by USA 1

the supplemental longerm disability policy covering you shall be inclbtk as part of your taxable wages from USA, analldbe subject 1
appropriate withholding and payroll tax obligatidns



2. Modification Except as otherwise specifically set forth imagaaph 1, the Employment Agreement shall not berated c
modified in any respect whatsoever and shall coetin full force and effect.

3. Effective Time The amendments to the Employment Agreement rimeBaragraph 1 hereof shall be effective from aitet
the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exetthiis Sixth Amendment as of the day and year &ibsive written.

/s/David M. DeMedi
DAVID M. DEMEDIO

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By: /s/Stephen P. Herb

Stephen P. Herbel
Presiden




Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 338657) of USA Technologies, Inc. of our re|
dated September 27, 2011, relating to our audithefconsolidated financial statements and schedhleh appear in this Annual Report
Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2011.
/s McGladrey & Pullen, LLF

New York, NY
September 27, 2011



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

I, George R. Jensen, Jr., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKISA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or amndtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the issuer as of, and for, the parjpetsented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) arefriat control over financial reporting (as defineadExchange Act Rules 13E5(f) anc
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresmused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiarissinade known to us by others within th
entities, particularly during the period in whidhig report is being prepared,;

b. Designed such internal control over financigdarting, or caused such internal control over fomahreporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeanisclosure controls and procedures and preseéntéuis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportinigat occurred during the issugmnost recel
fiscal quarter (the issuer’fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materially affected or is reasondikigly to materially
affect, the issuer’s internal control over finahegporting; and

5. The issueB other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdsh on our most recent evaluation, of internal mbmver financial reporting -
the auditors and the audit committee of the issugoard of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material wealses in the design or operation of internal costmler financial reporting which ¢
reasonably likely to adversely affect the issuabgity to record, process, summarize and repasrfcial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the issues’internal contrc
over financial reporting.

Date: September 27, 2011 /s/ George R. Jensen,

George R. Jensen, .
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

I, David M. DeMedio, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKISA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or amndtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the issuer as of, and for, the parjpetsented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) arefriat control over financial reporting (as defineadExchange Act Rules 13E5(f) anc
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresmused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiarissinade known to us by others within th
entities, particularly during the period in whidhig report is being prepared,;

b. Designed such internal control over financigdarting, or caused such internal control over fomahreporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeanisclosure controls and procedures and preseéntéuis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportinigat occurred during the issugmnost recel
fiscal quarter (the issuer’fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materially affected or is reasondikigly to materially
affect, the issuer’s internal control over finahegporting; and

5. The issueB other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdsh on our most recent evaluation, of internal mbmver financial reporting -
the auditors and the audit committee of the issugoard of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material wealses in the design or operation of internal costmler financial reporting which ¢
reasonably likely to adversely affect the issuabgity to record, process, summarize and repasrfcial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the issues’internal contrc
over financial reporting.

Date: September 27, 2011 /s/ David M. DeMedi
David M. DeMedic
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repditt 8A Technologies, Inc., (the “Company”) on For@HK for the period ende
June 30, 2011 (the “Report”), |, George R. Jen3enChief Executive Officer of the Company, herebytify that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the financtaldition and results of operations of
Company.

/s/ George R. Jensen,

George R. Jensen, .
Chief Executive Office




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repdtt 8A Technologies, Inc., (the “Company”) on For@HK for the period ende
June 30, 2011 (the “Report”), I, David M. DeMedithief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby ifgithat to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the financtaldition and results of operations of
Company.

/s/ David M. DeMedi
David M. DeMedic
Chief Financia
Officer




